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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. All statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K other than statements
of historical fact, including statements regarding our future operating results and financial position, our business strategy and plans, market growth, and our
objectives for future operations, are forward-looking statements. The words “believe,” “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “potential,” “continue,” “anticipate,
“expect,” “could,” “would,” “project,” “plan, “target,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

» o« » o« »owr

intend,”

Forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to, statements about:

« our future financial performance, including our expectations regarding our revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit, Adjusted EBITDA, operating
expenses including changes in sales and marketing, general and administrative expenses (including any components of the foregoing), and
research and development, and our ability to achieve and maintain future profitability;

» our business plan and our ability to effectively manage our growth;

« anticipated trends, growth rates, and challenges in our business and in the markets in which we operate;
* our international expansion plans and ability to continue to expand internationally;

» anticipated release dates for new Connected Fitness Products and services;

» market acceptance of our Connected Fitness Products and services;

» beliefs and objectives for future operations;

* our ability to increase sales of our Connected Fitness Products and services;

» our ability to further penetrate our existing Subscriber base and maintain and expand our Subscriber base;
» the effects of seasonal trends on our results of operations;

»  our expectations regarding content costs for past use;

« our ability to maintain, protect, and enhance our intellectual property;

» the effects of increased competition in our markets and our ability to compete effectively;

» the direct and indirect impacts to our business and financial performance from the COVID-19 pandemic;

»  our ability to stay in compliance with laws and regulations that currently apply or become applicable to our business both in the United States and
internationally; and

+ economic and industry trends, projected growth, or trend analysis.
We caution you that the foregoing list may not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may
affect our financial condition, results of operations, business strategy, short-term and long-term business operations and objectives, and financial needs.
These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, including those described in the section titled “Risk
Factors” in Part Il, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks
emerge from time to time. It is not possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our business or the extent
to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we may
make. In light of these risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, the future events and trends discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may not occur and
actual results could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements. In particular, the impact of the current
COVID-19 pandemic to economic conditions and the fithess industry in general and our financial position and operating results in particular have been
material, are changing rapidly, and cannot be predicted.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. The events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking
statements may not be achieved or occur. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot
guarantee future results, performance, or achievements. We undertake no obligation to update any of these forward-looking statements for any reason after
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to conform these statements to actual results or revised expectations, except as required by law.

You should read this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents that we reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and have filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, with the understanding that our actual future results, performance, and events and circumstances may
be materially different from what we expect.



In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the words "we,
context requires otherwise.

us," "our" and "Peloton" refer to Peloton Interactive, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, unless the



PART |
Item 1. Business

Overview

Peloton is the largest interactive fitness platform in the world with a loyal community of over 3.1 million Members as of June 30, 2020. We pioneered
connected, technology-enabled fitness, and the streaming of immersive, instructor-led boutique classes to our Members anytime, anywhere. We make
fitness entertaining, approachable, effective, and convenient, while fostering social connections that encourage our Members to be the best versions of
themselves.

We are an innovation company at the nexus of fitness, technology, and media. We have disrupted the fitness industry by developing a first-of-its-kind
subscription platform that seamlessly combines the best equipment, proprietary networked software, and world-class streaming digital fitness and wellness
content, creating a product that our Members love.

Driven by our Members-first mindset, we built a vertically integrated platform that ensures a best-in-class, end-to-end experience. We have a direct-to-
consumer multi-channel sales platform, including 95 showrooms as of June 30, 2020, with knowledgeable sales specialists, a high-touch delivery service,
and helpful Member support teams.

Our world-class instructors teach classes across a variety of fithess and wellness disciplines, including indoor cycling, indoor/outdoor running and walking,
bootcamp, yoga, strength training, stretching, and meditation. We produce hundreds of original programs per month and maintain a vast and constantly
updated library of thousands of original fithess and wellness programs. We make it easy for Members to find a class that fits their interests based on class
type, instructor, music genre, length, available equipment, area of physical focus, and level of difficulty.

Our revenue is primarily generated from the sale of our Connected Fitness Products, the Peloton Bike, launched in 2014, and the Peloton Tread, launched in
2018, and associated recurring subscription revenue. We have experienced significant growth in sales of Connected Fitness Products, which, when
combined with our strong Connected Fitness Subscription retention rates, has driven high growth in Connected Fitness Subscriptions. Our Connected
Fitness Subscription base grew by 113% in fiscal 2020.

Our compelling financial profile is characterized by high growth, strong retention, recurring revenue, margin expansion, and efficient subscription acquisition.
When we acquire new Connected Fitness Subscriptions, we are able to offset our subscription acquisition costs with the gross profit earned on our
Connected Fitness Products. This allows for rapid payback of our sales and marketing investments and results in a robust unit economic model.

We are a fast-growing and scaled fitness platform. For fiscal 2020, 2019, and 2018:

+  we generated total revenue of $1,825.9 million, $915.0 million, and $435.0 million, respectively, representing 100% and 110% year-over-year
growth;

« we incurred net losses of $(71.6) million, $(195.6) million, and $(47.9) million, respectively; and

»  our Adjusted EBITDA was $117.7 million, $(71.3) million, and $(30.4) million, respectively.

See the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for information regarding our use of Adjusted
EBITDA and a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA.

For fiscal 2020, 2019, and 2018, key metrics of our business included:

+  Connected Fitness Subscriptions of 1,091,100; 511,200; and 245,600 respectively; and
*  Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn of 0.62%; 0.65%; and 0.64%, respectively.

We define a Member as any individual who has a Peloton account through a paid Connected Fitness Subscription or a paid Peloton Digital subscription, and
a Subscriber as a person, household or commercial property, such as a hotel or residential building, with a Connected Fitness Subscription or an individual
or household that has a paid Peloton Digital subscription. For a definition of Connected Fitness Subscription, Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness
Churn, and Subscription Contribution Margin, see the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Key Operational and Business Metrics.”

COVID-19

In December 2019, an outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) disease was first identified and began to spread across the globe. In March 2020, the
World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic, impacting many countries around the world and causing governments to institute lockdown or
other similar measures to slow infection rates. As a leader in home connected fitness, we were uniquely positioned to be top-of-mind as many were faced
with the possibility of working from home for an indefinite amount of time. To help support our community during this unprecedented time, we extended our
Peloton Digital subscription free trial period from 30 to 90 days in order to help people maintain their physical and mental well-being through our fitness and
wellness programming, pledged $1.0 million in Connected Fitness Subscription waivers for Members who have been financially impacted by COVID-19, and
have continued to donate resources and funds to those in need in our communities, amongst other things.

These factors have driven increased demand for our products and services, and despite being forced to temporarily close our showrooms and studios due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, our sales continue to surpass our expectations.

There is no assurance that we will continue to experience an increase in demand for our products and services or that our current Subscribers will continue
to use our platform after the COVID-19 pandemic has tapered. We may see a decline in Subscribers when shelter-in-place measures are relaxed, and gyms
and fitness studios reopen. While we are unable to accurately predict the full impact that COVID-19 will have on our business in light of the uncertainty as to
the severity and duration of the pandemic, actions that may be taken by government authorities, the
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impact to our Members and business partners, and other factors identified in the section titled "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form
10-K, we continue to evaluate its impact on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

In this unprecedented time, we are grateful for the extreme hard work of all of our employees, incredibly supportive Member community, and unwavering
business partners. Our priorities during this time are to ensure the safety and well-being of our employees, to continue to serve our Members, and to support
our communities.

Our Products

Connected Fitness Products

Peloton Bike and Bike+

Bike

Our current Bike features a carbon steel frame, a nearly silent belt drive, durable magnetic resistance, and a 22” high-definition touchscreen with built-in

stereo speakers to stream live and on-demand classes, all in a compact, 4’ by 2’ footprint. Our Bike is available in the United States, Canada, the United
Kingdom, and Germany.

Bike+

Our new Bike+ provides an immersive cardio experience and seamless transition to floor-based exercises with its 24”, 360 degree rotating display. Members
can easily pivot and tilt the screen to add strength, yoga, and stretching to their routine or take our all new Bike Bootcamp class series. Resistance on Bike+
is controlled digitally allowing Members to “Auto Follow” their instructors’ class programs and control resistance from the touchscreen. A powerful built-in
soundbar and subwoofer system offers an improved audio experience while the integrated Apple GymKit simplifies Apple Watch pairing. Bike+ is currently
available for purchase in the United States, Canada, Germany, and the United Kingdom.

Peloton Tread and Tread+
We are renaming our already available Peloton Tread, “Peloton Tread+” and introducing a more compact “Peloton Tread”.

Tread

The newest addition to our Tread line has all the essential elements of the Tread+ experience but in a more affordable and compact form factor —
maintaining ample running surface area and runner comfort. The Tread features a sleek belt drive, 24” touchscreen with integrated soundbar and subwoofer,
and ergonomic pace and incline control knobs and jump buttons. With an immersive audio and video experience and heart rate monitor integration, Peloton
Tread is designed for both on-Tread as well as floor-based bootcamp content. We anticipate that our new Peloton Tread will be available for sale in the
United Kingdom starting December 26, 2020 with availability in the United States and Canada scheduled for early 2021 and availability in Germany
scheduled for late 2021.

Tread+

Our already available Tread+ provides a one-of-a-kind experience for runners, strength trainers, and bootcamp enthusiasts. Designed for performance and
comfort, Tread+ features a shock-absorbing rubber-slat belt and ball bearing system, ideal for low-impact training. Pace and incline ergonomic control knobs
allow for seamless adjustments, and the 32” high-definition touchscreen features a 20-watt sound bar. Tread+ is only available in the United States.

Through strategic partnerships, we are able to offer qualified customers in the United States a 39-month, 0% APR financing program, allowing them to
purchase our Connected Fitness Products and pay in monthly installments.

Connected Fitness Subscriptions

Our Connected Fitness Subscriptions are on a month-to-month basis, allow for multiple household users, and provide unlimited access to all live and on-
demand classes. Our Connected Fitness Subscription allows Members to access classes through our Connected Fitness Products, compete on our
motivating leaderboard, track performance metrics, and connect and interact with the broader Peloton community. Our Connected Fitness Subscription also
includes access to our content through Peloton Digital, our digital app, which is available through iOS and Android mobile devices and most tablets and
computers. Our Connected Fitness Subscriptions allow up to five Members of a household to access our content simultaneously. On average, we had 2.3
Members per Connected Fitness Subscription as of June 30, 2020.

Peloton Digital

Peloton Digital began as a companion app for Connected Fitness Subscriptions to provide access to our classes while our Members were away from their
Connected Fitness Products. A Peloton Digital Subscriber is an individual or household that has a paid Peloton Digital subscription with a successful credit
card billing.

Peloton Digital is included with all Connected Fitness Subscriptions. As of June 30, 2020, 67% of our Members on Connected Fitness Subscriptions used
Peloton Digital to supplement their workout regimen. Peloton Digital also helps us attract new Connected Fitness Subscriptions by serving as an acquisition
tool for new Members.

In 2020, we repositioned Peloton Digital, broadening access to our Peloton community while greatly expanding our floor-based fitness content offerings.
Connected Fitness Members engaging with floor-based content continues to grow rapidly, with our investment behind our Strength classes posting the most
significant gains. Peloton Digital workouts include indoor/outdoor running and walking, bootcamp, strength training, stretching, yoga and meditation. Our
Members have shown strong interest in these new verticals; in fiscal 2020, 38% of workouts completed were across non-cycling fitness verticals.



Our Vertically Integrated Fitness Platform

Technology

Our content delivery and interactive software platform are critical to our Member experience. We invest substantial resources in research and development
to enhance our platform, develop new products and features, and improve our platform infrastructure. Our research and development organization consists
of world-class engineering, product, and design teams. Our engineering, product, and design teams work together to bring our products to life, from
conception and validation to implementation. We constantly improve our existing Connected Fitness Products through frequent software updates with new
and innovative interactive features.

Video streaming and storage are provided by third-party cloud providers. By leveraging these third parties, we are able to focus our resources on creating
product enhancements and new software features. In addition, our technology platform is designed with redundancy and high availability in mind in order to
minimize Member service disruption.

Content and Music

We create engaging-to-the-point-of-addictive original fitness and wellness content in an authentic live environment that is immersive, motivating, and
encourages a sense of community. We combine high production value content with a broad catalog of music to create a truly unique fitness experience our
Members love.

Content Development

We use performance data to understand our Members’ workout habits in order to evolve and optimize our programming around class type, length, music,
and other considerations. We have developed a diverse content library with thousands of classes across an extensive range of class lengths, difficulty levels,
and fitness preferences ranging from fun and flexible to structured and highly technical, all of which our Members easily access through filtering and search
capabilities. We produce original programs from our production studios in New York City and London, with 33 instructors as of June 30, 2020, and across 10
fitness and wellness disciplines including indoor cycling, indoor/outdoor running and walking, bootcamp, yoga, strength training, stretching, meditation, and
floor cardio.

As we further expand internationally, we will develop localized content, as we have done in the United Kingdom and Germany where we produce content
featuring four British and two German instructors from our London studio as of June 30, 2020. As we expand into other non-English-speaking countries, we
will produce classes in local languages from our existing studios and use subtitling for our English-speaking programming.

Instructors

In front of the camera, our instructors play a critical role in bringing the Peloton experience to life for our Members. Our instructors are not only authorities in
their respective areas of fitness, but also relatable, magnetic personalities who inspire passionate followings. We offer a diverse cast of instructors that
allows us to appeal to a broad audience of Members. Our instructors inspire our Members both on and off the camera and attend showroom openings and
other Member-focused events where they meet and interact with our Members. Our Members feel connected to our instructors, and many Members travel
from far distances to take a class at our New York City studios.

Production Team

Behind the camera, our studio production teams are dedicated to creative excellence. We have top production talent representing decades of experience at
major broadcast and cable networks, some of whom have won Emmy Awards for production excellence. Our teams provide dedicated creative support to
our instructors before, during, and after live productions with the help of content performance data. All classes are shot in broadcast quality environments
with a fraction of the staff and budget typical of a major network show. This allows us to deliver a constant stream of live-produced, authentic fithess and
wellness programming with cinematic quality that provides clarity of instruction and entertainment value.

Music and Music Technology

We have developed a proprietary music platform that fuels the workout experience with thoughtfully curated playlists that align with our Members’ musical
preferences. We have over two million songs under license, representing the largest audiovisual connected fithess music catalog in the world. Our curated
music is as diverse and dynamic as the Members we serve, delivering a custom-fit-and-finish musical experience created by instructors and music
supervisors on our production team.

We control the intersection of fithess and music in a deeply engaging way, motivating Members to achieve their fitness goals while discovering great music in
the process. Peloton is a discovery resource for new artists and songs while also providing the opportunity for our Members to re-discover music they love.
Members consistently rank the music we provide as one of their favorite aspects of the Peloton experience. We believe we have defined a new standard for
musical content development in the fitness and wellness categories, which includes premiering new music and working with artists to co-curate classes
based on their own music or influences.

We have applied, and will continue to apply, technological solutions and an artist-centric partnership strategy to enhance our music platform including:

» data-driven playlist recommendations for our instructors and music supervisors to use in developing class plans;

» instructor-facing song search and filtering functions, including the ability to search by song length and beats per minute;

+ real-time music and content management and reporting;

+ for Members, a display of every song played in a class, including artist name and associated artwork;

+  ability for Members to “like” songs they discover anywhere on our platform and save it to their profile;

+ integrations with Spotify and Apple Music, enabling Members to sync songs they hear on Peloton to their streaming service; and
» strengthen and leverage artist partnerships for deeper membership engagement and heightened brand profile.
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Music Rights Strategy

We have built a world class music content management and reporting system to meet the needs of our music rights holders in order to support our highly-
engaged, growing global community. Peloton is increasingly seen by our partners as an impactful music discovery platform, which has created opportunities
to progressively and meaningfully enhance our classes with custom music experiences. We expect this to continue as we invest in music-first technology to
improve the quality of our Members’ experience, strengthen our competitive advantage over other fitness platforms, and add value to our Members.

Sales and Marketing

Our goal is to increase brand awareness and purchase intent for our Connected Fitness Products and Subscriptions. We use a unique combination of brand
and product-specific performance marketing to build brand awareness and generate predictable sales of our Connected Fitness Products.

Video has been the strongest medium to communicate the features of the Peloton platform. We primarily market through advertisements on broadcast and
cable television, social media, and over-the-top providers such as Hulu and YouTube to reach our target audience, focusing on incremental return on
investment.

Direct to Consumer, Multi-Channel Sales Model

We sell our products directly to customers through a multi-channel sales platform that includes e-commerce, inside sales, and showrooms. Our sales
associates use robust customer relationship management tools to deliver an elevated, personalized, and educational purchase experience, regardless of
channel of capture and conversion.

* E-Commerce and Inside Sales: Our desktop and mobile websites, www.onepeloton.com, www.onepeloton.co.uk, www.onepeloton.de and
www.onepeloton.ca, provide an elevated brand experience where visitors can learn about our products and services and access product reviews.
Our inside sales team engages with customers by phone, email, and online chat on our websites, and offers one-on-one sales consultations seven
days a week.

»  Showrooms: Our showrooms allow customers to experience and try our products. We provide interactive product demonstrations and many of our
showrooms have private areas where customers can do a “test ride” or “test run.” We frequently host Peloton community events in our showrooms,
which help deepen brand engagement and loyalty. As a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, we temporarily closed all of our retail
showrooms, only some of which have since reopened.

»  Commercial: The commercial and hospitality markets represent a small percentage of sales but are important to driving trial and brand awareness.
Our Bikes in hospitality locations help keep our Members riding when they travel, creating further Member engagement, loyalty, and convenience.
Across our markets as of June 30, 2020, there were over 2,200 Peloton Bikes in over 1,200 hotels and resorts.

Showroom Site Strategy

As of June 30, 2020, we operate 95 showrooms across the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom and Germany. Our showrooms are located primarily
in upscale malls, lifestyle centers, and premium street locations. When evaluating potential new markets, we carefully examine historical sales data, key
demographics, traffic patterns, geographic locations, and co-tenancy of other complementary lifestyle-oriented retailers. In the United States, we attempt to
cluster stores around major urban markets and suburbs while also operating in super regional and regional centers that draw from a greater trade area. In
Canada, Germany and the United Kingdom, we will continue to focus on major urban markets.

We operate two showroom formats including our large showrooms which range from 1,500 to 2,000 square feet and “microstores” which are typically around
300 square feet. Large showrooms comprise 83% of our retail locations and provide space for Connected Fitness Products and Peloton-branded apparel, as
well as private areas for “test rides” and “test runs.” Microstores represent 17% of our retail locations and are typically placed in highly visible “center court”
areas. Our large showroom leases are typically five to ten years in lease duration while microstores are typically open for up to 1.5 years. Microstores allow
us to test markets and specific shopping areas, and provide a temporary location while searching for the ideal large showroom space.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we closed our global showrooms on March 16, 2020. Our e-commerce and inside sales channels remained open
allowing us to continue to sell our Connected Fitness Products to people during a time when they needed it most. On June 15, 2020, we began re-opening
select showrooms in the United States, the United Kingdom, and Canada, following the re-opening of our German stores in late May. Our re-opening
schedule is guided by local state and municipal guidelines and is accompanied by extensive safety training for our retail team members and stringent
cleaning protocols.

Retention Marketing & Member Support Services

The retention marketing team is focused on driving engagement to help us maintain our high Connected Fitness Subscription retention rates. The team
develops new ways to promote engagement with our products and community or help Members reengage with our platform when activity has lapsed. The
retention team helps curate goal-based challenges, awards digital badges for Member accomplishments, and sends Peloton-branded “Century Club” shirts
after a Member’'s 100" class. The team also communicates with Members with no recent activity through email campaigns that help encourage these
Members to get back to their workout routine. The retention marketing team also collects and responds to feedback about our platform that is on our closed
Facebook group of over 307,000 Members as of June 30, 2020.

In order to bring our community together, we organize several in-person events throughout the year including welcoming Members for workouts, milestone
celebrations, and instructor meet-and-greets at our production studios in New York City. We also host Members at our showrooms,
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and celebrate our Members with our flagship Member event, Peloton Homecoming, held in New York City each May. During the COVID-19 pandemic, we
have cancelled all in-person events.

The Member support team was created to serve all the needs of our customers and Members including sales support, scheduling, delivery, installation,
account and billing inquiries, Connected Fitness Product trouble-shooting and repair, product education, returns and exchanges, and anything else our
Members need. This team primarily operates in New York City and Plano, Texas. We also utilize some additional third-party support services in Ireland and
North America to help us efficiently scale our team.

Manufacturing

We manufacture as well as outsource the manufacturing of our products to multiple contract manufacturers located in Asia. The components used in our
products are sourced either directly by us or on our behalf by our contract manufacturers from a variety of component suppliers. To continue to provide our
Members with leading fitness technology, our supply chain team coordinates the relationships between our contract manufacturers and component suppliers.
We regularly review our existing contract manufacturers and component suppliers, and evaluate new partners and suppliers, to ensure that we can scale our
manufacturing base as we grow.

We purchase from our primary contract manufacturers on a purchase order basis. Under our governing agreements, our contract manufacturers must follow
our established product design specifications, quality assurance programs, and manufacturing standards. We have developed preferred relationships with
our partners to maintain access to the resources needed to scale seasonally and ensure our partners have the requisite experience to produce our
Connected Fitness Products and accessories. We pay for and own certain tooling and equipment specifically required to manufacture our products to have
control of supply and component pipelines.

In order to mitigate against the risks related to a single source of supply, we qualify alternative suppliers and manufacturers when possible, and develop
contingency plans for responding to disruptions, including maintaining adequate inventory of any single source components and products.

Logistics and Fulfillment

To control every touchpoint of our product and service offering, we have built networks of last mile field operations centers, which have further expanded
from the United States into Canada, Germany, and the United Kingdom. With locations in major markets of North America and Europe as of June 30, 2020,
our field operations team supports in-home delivery of our Connected Fitness Products with professional high-touch set up service and ongoing in-home
service and care. As highly trained experts on our products and services, our field specialists offer product education, assistance with account set up, and
tips and recommendations for product care and content selection. As we grow our logistics network, we are able to efficiently service, deploy, and install
replacement parts to our Members over time.

With our commitment to our Members-first approach, we will continue to invest to strengthen our field operations’ coverage in locations we identify as cost-
effective delivery markets throughout North America and in new international regions. To further scale our distribution system and maintain flexibility, we also
work with third-party fulfillment partners that deliver our products from multiple locations in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, and Germany.
Third-party fulfillment partnerships allow us to reduce order fulfillment time, reduce shipping costs, and expand our geographical reach.

Connected Fitness Product Backlog

As of June 30, 2020, we had a backlog of orders for our Connected Fitness Products of approximately $230 million, compared to an immaterial amount of
backlogged orders at June 30, 2019. The increase in Connected Fitness Product backlog as compared to fiscal 2019 is primarily due to an increase in
demand for our Connected Fitness Products due to the effects of COVID-19, including government shelter-in-place orders, and the closing of many fithess
studios and gyms.

Our Connected Fitness Product backlog consists of products for which firm orders for future shipments have been received. Backlog as of a given date
fluctuates based on order rescheduling, order cancellation, and specific timing of Connected Fitness Product shipment within the typical shipment
timeframes for such product. Because of the possibility of changes in Connected Fitness Product orders and shipments, our backlog as of a particular date
may not necessarily be indicative of net revenue for any succeeding period.

Intellectual Property

The protection of our technology and intellectual property is an important aspect of our business. We rely upon a combination of patents, trademarks, trade
secrets, copyrights, confidentiality procedures, contractual commitments, and other legal rights to establish and protect our intellectual property. We
generally enter into confidentiality agreements and invention or work product assignment agreements with our employees and consultants to control access
to, and clarify ownership of, our proprietary information.

As of June 30, 2020, we held nine U.S. issued patents and had 23 U.S. patent applications pending. We also held 35 issued patents in foreign jurisdictions
and 27 patent applications pending in foreign jurisdictions. Our U.S. issued patents expire between May 20, 2025 and July 16, 2034. As of June 30, 2020,
we held 11 registered trademarks in the United States, including the Peloton mark and our “P” logo and also held 84 registered trademarks in foreign
jurisdictions. We continually review our development efforts to assess the existence and patentability of new intellectual property. We intend to continue to
file additional patent applications with respect to our technology.

Intellectual property laws, procedures, and restrictions provide only limited protection and any of our intellectual property rights may be challenged,
invalidated, circumvented, infringed, or misappropriated. Further, the laws of certain countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws
of the United States, and, therefore, in certain jurisdictions, we may be unable to protect our proprietary technology.

Competition



We believe that our first-mover advantage, leading market position, brand recognition, and vertically integrated platform set us apart in the rapidly growing
market for connected, technology-enabled fithess. We provide a superior value proposition and benefit from the clear endorsement of our Connected Fitness
Subscriptions, giving us a competitive advantage versus traditional fitness and wellness products and services, and future potential entrants.

While we believe we are changing the consumption patterns for fitness and growing the market, our main sources of competition include in-studio fitness
classes, fitness clubs, at-home fitness equipment and content, and health and wellness apps.

The areas in which we compete include:

+  Consumers and Engagement. \We compete for consumers to join our platform through Connected Fitness Subscriptions or Peloton Digital
subscriptions, and we seek to retain them through engagement and community.

*  Product Offering. We compete with producers of fithess products and work to ensure that our Connected Fitness Products maintain the most
innovative technology and user-friendly features.

+ Talent. We compete for talent in every vertical across our company including technology, media, fitness, design, logistics, music, marketing,
finance, legal, and retail. As our platform is highly dependent on technology and software, we require a significant base of engineers to continue
innovating.

The principal competitive factors that companies in our industry need to consider include, but are not limited to: total cost, manufacturing efficiency,
enhanced products and services, original content, product quality and safety, competitive pricing policies, vision for the market and product innovation,
strength of sales and marketing strategies, technological advances, and brand awareness and reputation. We believe we compete favorably across all of
these factors and we have developed a business model that is difficult to replicate.

Government Regulation

We are subject to many varying laws and regulations in the United States, the United Kingdom, the European Union and throughout the world, including
those related to privacy, data protection, content regulation, intellectual property, consumer protection, e-commerce, marketing, advertising, messaging,
rights of publicity, health and safety, employment and labor, product liability, accessibility, competition, customs and international trade, and taxation. These
laws often require companies to implement specific information security controls to protect certain types of information, such as personal data, “special
categories of personal data” or health data. These laws and regulations are constantly evolving and may be interpreted, applied, created, or amended in a
manner that could harm our current or future business and operations. In addition, it is possible that certain governments may seek to block or limit our
products and services or otherwise impose other restrictions that may affect the accessibility or usability of any or all of our products and services for an
extended period of time or indefinitely.

Seasonality

Historically, we have experienced higher revenue in the second and third quarters of the fiscal year compared to other quarters, due in large part to seasonal
holiday demand, New Year’s resolutions, and cold weather. For example, in fiscal 2018 and 2019, our second and third quarters combined each represented
63% of our total revenue. In fiscal 2020, we saw a significant increase in demand in the fourth quarter related to COVID-19, and therefore only 54% of our
total revenue was generated in our second and third quarters. Over time, we expect the seasonality of our business to return, with pronounced increases in
demand during our second and third quarters. We also incur higher sales and marketing expenses during these periods, which may decrease during periods
of high demand like we experienced during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 driven by the shelter-in-place impacts of COVID-19.

Employees

We are extremely proud of our team which embodies a diverse mix of backgrounds, industries, and levels of experience. As of June 30, 2020, we employed
approximately 3,281 individuals in the United States across our New York City headquarters, Plano campus, Atlanta office, showrooms, and field operations
warehouses. Internationally, we had 283 employees in the United Kingdom and Germany across corporate, showroom, and warehouse functions, 59
employees in Canada largely in showroom and warehouse roles, and 71 individuals in Taiwan across manufacturing, quality engineering and operations
functions. Certain of our instructors are covered by collective bargaining agreements with the Screen Actors Guild-American Federation of Television and
Radio Artists, or SAG-AFTRA. However, we are not signatories to any agreements with SAG-AFTRA. With the exception of SAG-AFTRA, none of our
domestic employees are currently represented by a labor organization or a party to any collective bargaining. We also hire additional seasonal employees in
our field operations, member support, and showrooms during the holiday season.

Corporate Information

We were formed in 2012 as Peloton Interactive, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. Peloton Interactive, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was
incorporated in March 2015, and through a corporate restructuring in April 2015, Peloton Interactive, LLC merged with and into Peloton Interactive, Inc.

Our principal executive offices are located at 125 West 25th Street, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10001 and our telephone number is (866) 679-9129. Our
website address is www.onepeloton.com. The information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference into,
and is not a part of, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Investors should not rely on any such information in deciding whether to purchase our Class A
common stock.

Peloton, the Peloton logo, Peloton Bike, Peloton Tread, Peloton Digital, and other registered or common law trade names, trademarks, or service marks of
Peloton appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are the property of Peloton. This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains additional trade names,
trademarks, and service marks of other companies that are the property of their respective owners. We do not intend our use or display of other companies’
trade names, trademarks, or service marks to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, these other companies. Solely for
convenience, our trademarks and tradenames referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K appear without
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the ® and ™ symbols, but those references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that we will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our
rights, or the right of the applicable licensor, to these trademarks and tradenames.

Available Information

Our reports filed with or furnished to the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange
Act, are available, free of charge, on our Investor Relations website at https://investor.onepeloton.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. The SEC maintains a website at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, and other information
regarding us and other companies that file materials with the SEC electronically. We use our Investor Relations website as a means of disclosing material
information. Accordingly, investors should monitor our Investor Relations website, in addition to following our press releases, SEC filings, and public
conference calls and webcasts.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below, together
with all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes and the information contained in our other
public filings before deciding whether to invest in shares of our Class A common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we
face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of or that we deem immaterial may also become important factors that adversely affect our
business. If any of the following risks occur, our business, financial condition, operating results, and future prospects could be materially and adversely
affected. In that event, the market price of our Class A common stock could decline, and you could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

We have incurred operating losses in the past, may incur operating losses in the future, and may not achieve or maintain profitability in the
future.

We have incurred operating losses each year since our inception in 2012, including net losses of $(71.6) million, $(195.6) million, and $(47.9) million for
fiscal 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively, and may continue to incur net losses in the future. We expect our operating expenses to increase in the future as
we continue our sales and marketing efforts, continue to invest in research and development, expand our operating and retail infrastructure, add content and
software features to our platform, expand into new geographies, develop new Connected Fitness Products, and in connection with legal, accounting, and
other expenses related to operating as a new public company. These efforts and additional expenses may be more costly than we expect, and we cannot
guarantee that we will be able to increase our revenue to offset our operating expenses. Our revenue growth may slow or our revenue may decline for a
number of other reasons, including reduced demand for our products and services, increased competition, a decrease in the growth or reduction in size of
our overall market, the impacts to our business from the COVID-19 pandemic, or if we cannot capitalize on growth opportunities. If our revenue does not
grow at a greater rate than our operating expenses, we will not be able to achieve and maintain profitability.

We may be unable to attract and retain Subscribers, which could have an adverse effect on our business and rate of growth.

We have experienced significant Subscriber growth over the past several years. Our continued business and revenue growth is dependent on our ability to
continuously attract and retain Subscribers, and we cannot be sure that we will be successful in these efforts, or that Subscriber retention levels will not
materially decline. There are a number of factors that could lead to a decline in Subscriber levels or that could prevent us from increasing our Subscriber
levels, including:

« our failure to introduce new features, products, or services that Members find engaging or our introduction of new products or services, or changes
to existing products and services that are not favorably received;

*  harm to our brand and reputation;
»  pricing and perceived value of our offerings;
« our inability to deliver quality products, content, and services;

» unsatisfactory experiences with the delivery, installation, or servicing of our Connected Fitness Products, including due to prolonged delivery
timelines and limitations on or the suspension of the in-home installation, return, and warranty servicing processes as a result of the current COVID-
19 pandemic;

» our Members engaging with competitive products and services;

+ technical or other problems preventing Members from accessing our content and services in a rapid and reliable manner or otherwise affecting the
Member experience;

+ adecline in the public’s interest in indoor cycling or running, or other fithess disciplines that we invest most heavily in;

» deteriorating general economic conditions or a change in consumer spending preferences or buying trends, whether as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic or otherwise; and

+ interruptions in our ability to sell or deliver our Connected Fitness Products or to create content and services for our Members as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Additionally, further expansion into international markets such as Canada, the United Kingdom, and Germany will create new challenges in attracting and
retaining Subscribers that we may not successfully address. As a result of these factors, we cannot be sure that our Subscriber levels will be adequate to
maintain or permit the expansion of our operations. A decline in Subscriber levels could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and
operating results.
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If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferences and successfully develop and introduce new, innovative, and updated products and services
in a timely manner or effectively manage the introduction of new or enhanced products and services, our business may be adversely affected.

Our success in maintaining and increasing our Subscriber base depends on our ability to identify and originate trends as well as to anticipate and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner. Our products and services are subject to changing consumer preferences that cannot be predicted with
certainty. If we are unable to introduce new or enhanced offerings in a timely manner, or our new or enhanced offerings are not accepted by our Subscribers,
our competitors may introduce similar offerings faster than us, which could negatively affect our rate of growth. Moreover, our new offerings may not receive
consumer acceptance as preferences could shift rapidly to different types of fitness and wellness offerings or away from these types of offerings altogether,
and our future success depends in part on our ability to anticipate and respond to these changes. Failure to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to
changing consumer preferences could lead to, among other things, lower subscription rates, lower sales, pricing pressure, lower gross margins, discounting
of our existing Connected Fitness Products, and excess inventory levels. Even if we are successful in anticipating consumer preferences, our ability to
adequately react to and address them will partially depend upon our continued ability to develop and introduce innovative, high-quality offerings.
Development of new or enhanced products and services may require significant time and financial investment, which could result in increased costs and a
reduction in our profit margins. For example, we have historically incurred higher levels of sales and marketing expenses accompanying each product and
service introduction. Moreover, while we have experienced a significant increase in our Subscriber base since the outbreak of COVID-19, it remains
uncertain how the COVID-19 pandemic will impact consumer demand for our products and services and consumer preferences generally. In addition, we
have experienced and may continue to experience delays in the development and introduction of new or enhanced products and services due to the effects
of the current COVID-19 pandemic.

Moreover, we must successfully manage introductions of new or enhanced products and services, which could adversely impact the sales of our existing
products and services. For instance, consumers may choose to forgo purchasing existing products or services in advance of new product and service
launches and we may experience higher returns from users of existing products. As we introduce new or enhanced products and services, we may face
additional challenges managing a more complex supply chain and manufacturing process, including the time and cost associated with onboarding and
overseeing additional suppliers, contract manufacturers, and logistics providers. We may also face challenges managing the inventory of new or existing
products, which could lead to excess inventory and discounting of such products. In addition, new or enhanced products or services may have varying
selling prices and costs compared to legacy products and services, which could negatively impact our gross margins and operating results.

The market for our products and services is still in the early stages of growth and if it does not continue to grow, grows more slowly than we
expect, or fails to grow as large as we expect, our business, financial condition, and operating results may be adversely affected.

The connected fitness and wellness market is relatively new, rapidly growing, largely unproven, and it is uncertain whether it will sustain high levels of
demand and achieve wide market acceptance. Our success depends substantially on the willingness of consumers to widely adopt our products and
services. To be successful, we will have to educate consumers about our products and services through significant investment, and provide quality content
that is superior to the content and experiences provided by our competitors. Additionally, the fithess and wellness market at large is heavily saturated, and
the demand for and market acceptance of new products and services in the market is uncertain. It is difficult to predict the future growth rates, if any, and
size of our market. We cannot assure you that our market will develop, that the public’s interest in connected fithess and wellness will continue, or that our
products and services will be widely adopted. If our market does not develop, develops more slowly than expected, or becomes saturated with competitors,
or if our products and services do not achieve market acceptance, our business, financial condition, and operating results could be adversely affected.

We have a limited operating history and our past financial results may not be indicative of our future performance. Further, our revenue growth
rate is likely to slow as our business matures.

We began operations in 2012, shipped our first Bike in 2014, and shipped our first Tread in 2018. We have a limited history of generating revenue. As a
result of our short operating history, we have limited financial data that can be used to evaluate our current business. Therefore, our historical revenue
growth should not be considered indicative of our future performance. In particular, we have experienced periods of high revenue growth since we began
selling our Bike that we do not expect to continue as our business matures. Estimates of future revenue growth are subject to many risks and uncertainties
and our future revenue may differ materially from our projections. We have encountered, and will continue to encounter, risks and difficulties frequently
experienced by growing companies in rapidly changing industries, including market acceptance of our products and services, attracting and retaining
Subscribers, and increasing competition and expenses as we expand our business. We cannot be sure that we will be successful in addressing these and
other challenges we may face in the future, and our business may be adversely affected if we do not manage these risks successfully. In addition, we may
not achieve sufficient revenue to attain or maintain positive cash flows from operations or profitability in any given period, or at all.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, or COVID-19, could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and
financial condition.

COVID-19 has caused significant volatility in financial markets and has caused what is likely to be an extended global recession. Public health problems
resulting from COVID-19 and precautionary measures instituted by governments and businesses to mitigate its spread, including travel restrictions and
quarantines, could contribute to a general slowdown in the global economy, adversely impact our Members, third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers,
logistics providers and other business partners, and disrupt our operations. Changes in our operations in response to COVID-19 or employee illnesses
resulting from the pandemic has resulted in inefficiencies or delays, including in sales, delivery, and product development efforts, and additional costs related
to business continuity initiatives, that cannot be fully mitigated through succession and business continuity planning, employees working remotely or
teleconferencing technologies.

COVID-19 and related governmental reactions have had and may continue to have a negative impact on our business, liquidity, results of operations, and
stock price due to the occurrence of some or all of the following events or circumstances, among others:
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» our inability to manage our business effectively due to key employees becoming ill, working from home inefficiently, and being unable to travel to
our facilities;

« our and our third-party suppliers', contract manufacturers', logistics providers', and other business partners' inability to operate worksites, including
manufacturing facilities, shipping and fulfillment centers, and our retail showrooms and production studios, due to employee illness or reluctance to
appear at work, or “stay-at-home” regulations;

+ our inability to provide our Members with high-quality Member support due to changes to the delivery experience and our inability to provide in-
home servicing of Connected Fitness Products due to safety risks and local government regulations related to COVID-19;

+ a temporary suspension in sales of our Tread due to the Tread installation process requiring our delivery teams to enter the residences of our
Members;

»  prolonged delivery timelines and the implementation of curbside and “threshold” delivery, which requires our Members to self-install and set up their
Bikes, due to work restrictions related to COVID-19;

* increased return rates due to a decrease in consumer discretionary spending;

« inventory shortages caused by a combination of increased demand for our Connected Fitness Products and longer lead-times in the manufacturing
of our Connected Fitness Products, due to work restrictions related to COVID-19, import/export conditions such as port congestion, and local
government orders;

* interruptions in our ability to offer live studio classes and produce new content;

* interruptions in manufacturing (including the sourcing of key components) and shipment of our products; for example, in certain instances, we have
temporarily closed certain of our field operations warehouses for short periods of time for deep cleanings following confirmed cases of COVID-19;

+ disruptions of the operations of our third-party suppliers, which could impact our ability to purchase components at efficient prices and in sufficient
amounts;

» reduced demand for our Connected Fitness Products and services, including due to any prolonged economic downturn that may occur;

+ our inability to raise additional capital or the dilution of our common stock if we raise capital by issuing equity securities;

»  volatility in the market price of our Class A common stock; and

* incurrence of significant increases to employee health care and benefits costs.

The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on our business and financial results will depend largely on future developments, including the duration of the spread
of the outbreak, the impact on capital and financial markets, and the related impact on the financial circumstances of our Members, all of which are highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted. This situation is changing rapidly, and additional impacts may arise that we are not aware of currently.

We operate in a highly competitive market and we may be unable to compete successfully against existing and future competitors.

Our products and services are offered in a highly competitive market. We face significant competition in every aspect of our business, including at-home
fitness equipment and content, fithess clubs, in-studio fitness classes, and health and wellness apps. Moreover, we expect the competition in our market to
intensify in the future as new and existing competitors introduce new or enhanced products and services that compete with ours.

Our competitors may develop, or have already developed, products, features, content, services, or technologies that are similar to ours or that achieve
greater acceptance, may undertake more successful product development efforts, create more compelling employment opportunities, or marketing
campaigns, or may adopt more aggressive pricing policies. Our competitors may develop or acquire, or have already developed or acquired, intellectual
property rights that significantly limit or prevent our ability to compete effectively in the public marketplace. In addition, our competitors may have significantly
greater resources than us, allowing them to identify and capitalize more efficiently upon opportunities in new markets and consumer preferences and trends,
quickly transition and adapt their products and services, devote greater resources to marketing and advertising, or be better positioned to withstand
substantial price competition. If we are not able to compete effectively against our competitors, they may acquire and engage customers or generate
revenue at the expense of our efforts, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We derive a significant majority of our revenue from sales of our Bike. A decline in sales of our Bike would negatively affect our future revenue
and operating results.

Our Connected Fitness Products are sold in highly competitive markets with limited barriers to entry. Introduction by competitors of comparable products at
lower price points, a maturing product lifecycle, a decline in consumer spending, or other factors could result in a decline in our revenue derived from our
Connected Fitness Products, which may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. Because we derive a significant
majority of our revenue from the sales of our Bike, any material decline in sales of our Bike would have a pronounced impact on our future revenue and
operating results.

We rely on a limited number of suppliers, contract manufacturers, and logistics partners for our Connected Fitness Products. A loss of any of
these partners could negatively affect our business.

We manufacture certain components of our Connected Fitness Products in-house, and we also rely on a limited number of contract manufacturers and
suppliers to manufacture and transport our Connected Fitness Products. If our internal manufacturing abilities are compromised in any way, we would be
reliant on a limited number of contract manufacturers for all of our manufacturing needs. Our reliance on a limited number of contract manufacturers for each
of our Connected Fitness Products increases our risks, since we do not currently have alternative or replacement contract manufacturers beyond these key
parties. In the event of interruption from any of our contract manufacturers, our own manufacturing capabilities, or suppliers, we may not be able to increase
capacity from other sources or develop alternate or secondary sources without incurring material additional costs and substantial delays. Furthermore, both
our own and our contract manufacturers’ primary facilities are located in Taiwan. Thus, our business could be adversely affected if one or more of our
suppliers is impacted by a natural disaster, an epidemic such as the current COVID-19 outbreak, or other interruption at a particular location. In particular,
the current COVID-19 outbreak has caused, and will likely continue to cause, interruptions in the development, manufacturing (including the sourcing of key
components), and
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shipment of our Connected Fitness Products, which could adversely impact our revenue, gross margins, and operating results. Such interruptions may be
due to, among other things, temporary closures of our facilities or those of our contract manufacturers, and other vendors in our supply chain; restrictions on
travel or the import/export of goods and services from certain ports that we use; and local quarantines.

If we experience a significant increase in demand for our Connected Fitness Products that cannot be satisfied adequately through our existing supply
channels, or if we need to replace an existing supplier or partner, we may be unable to supplement or replace them on terms that are acceptable to us, which
may undermine our ability to deliver our products to Members in a timely manner. For example, if we require additional manufacturing support, it may take a
significant amount of time to identify a manufacturer that has the capability and resources to build our products to our specifications in sufficient volume.
Identifying suitable suppliers, manufacturers, and logistics partners is an extensive process that requires us to become satisfied with their quality control,
technical capabilities, responsiveness and service, financial stability, regulatory compliance, and labor and other ethical practices. Accordingly, a loss of any
of our significant suppliers, contract manufacturers, or logistics partners could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results.

We have limited control over our suppliers, contract manufacturers, and logistics partners, which may subject us to significant risks, including
the potential inability to produce or obtain quality products and services on a timely basis or in sufficient quantity.

We have limited control over our suppliers, contract manufacturers, and logistics partners, which subjects us to the following risks, many of which have
materialized due to the COVID-19 pandemic:

+ inability to satisfy demand for our Connected Fitness Products;

» reduced control over delivery timing and product reliability;

» reduced ability to monitor the manufacturing process and components used in our Connected Fitness Products;

+ limited ability to develop comprehensive manufacturing specifications that take into account any materials shortages or substitutions;

« variance in the manufacturing capability of our third-party manufacturers;

*  price increases;

+ failure of a significant supplier, manufacturer, or logistics partner to perform its obligations to us for technical, market, or other reasons;
« variance in the quality of last mile services provided by our third-party logistics partners;

« difficulties in establishing additional supplier, manufacturer, or logistics partner relationships if we experience difficulties with our existing suppliers,
manufacturers, or logistics partners;

» shortages of materials or components;
*  misappropriation of our intellectual property;

» exposure to natural catastrophes, political unrest, terrorism, labor disputes, and economic instability resulting in the disruption of trade from foreign
countries in which our Connected Fitness Products are manufactured or the components thereof are sourced;

» changes in local economic conditions in the jurisdictions where our suppliers, manufacturers, and logistics partners are located;

+ the imposition of new laws and regulations, including those relating to labor conditions, quality and safety standards, imports, duties, tariffs, taxes,
and other charges on imports, as well as trade restrictions and restrictions on currency exchange or the transfer of funds; and

» insufficient warranties and indemnities on components supplied to our manufacturers or performance by our partners.

We also rely on our logistics partners, including last mile warehouse and delivery partners, to complete a substantial percentage of our deliveries to
customers, with the rest of the deliveries handled by our own last mile team. The current COVID-19 outbreak has required us to rely more heavily on our last
mile delivery partners in certain markets where we have had to temporarily quarantine our in-house delivery teams due to employee iliness or where our in-
house delivery teams' capacity is otherwise constrained. Our primary last mile partner relies on a network of independent contractors to perform last mile
services for us in many markets. If any of these independent contractors, or the last mile partner as a whole, do not perform their obligations or meet the
expectations of us or our Members, our reputation and business could suffer.

The occurrence of any of these risks, especially during seasons of peak demand, could cause us to experience a significant disruption in our ability to
produce and deliver our products to our customers.

We depend upon third-party licenses for the use of music in our content. An adverse change to, loss of, or claim that we do not hold necessary
licenses may have an adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Music is an important element of the overall content that we make available to our Members. To secure the rights to use music in our content, we enter into
agreements to obtain licenses from rights holders such as record labels, music publishers, performing rights organizations, collecting societies, artists, and
other copyright owners or their agents. We pay royalties to such parties or their agents around the world.

The process of obtaining licenses involves identifying and negotiating with many rights holders, some of whom are unknown or difficult to identify, and
implicates a myriad of complex and evolving legal issues across many jurisdictions, including open questions of law as to when and whether particular
licenses are needed. Rights holders also may attempt to take advantage of their market power to seek onerous financial terms from us. Our relationship with
certain rights holders may deteriorate. Artists and/or artist groups may object and may exert public or private pressure on rights holders to discontinue or to
modify license terms. Additionally, there is a risk that aspiring rights holders, their agents, or legislative or regulatory bodies will create or attempt to create
new rights that could require us to enter into new license agreements with, and pay royalties to, newly defined groups of rights holders, some of which may
be difficult or impossible to identify.

With respect to musical compositions, in addition to obtaining publishing rights, we generally need to obtain separate public performance rights. In the United
States, public performance rights are typically obtained through intermediaries known as performing rights organizations, or PROs,
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which (a) issue blanket licenses with copyright users for the public performance of compositions in their repertory, (b) collect royalties under those licenses,
and (c) distribute such royalties to copyright owners. We have agreements with each of the following PROs in the United States: the American Society of
Composers, Authors and Publishers, or ASCAP, and Broadcast Music, Inc., or BMI, Global Music Rights, and SESAC. The royalty rates available to us from
the PROs today may not be available to us in the future. Licenses provided by ASCAP and BMI currently are governed by consent decrees, which were
issued by the U.S. Department of Justice in an effort to curb anti-competitive conduct. Removal of or changes to the terms or interpretation of these
agreements could affect our ability to obtain licenses from these PROs on current and/or otherwise favorable terms, which could harm our business,
operating results, and financial condition.

In other parts of the world, including in Canada and Europe, we obtain licenses for musical compositions either through local collecting societies representing
publishers, or from publishers directly, or a combination thereof. We cannot guarantee that our licenses with collecting societies and our direct licenses with
publishers provide full coverage for all of the musical compositions we use in our service in the countries in which we operate, or that we may enter in the
future. Publishers, songwriters, and other rights holders who choose not to be represented by major or independent publishing companies or collecting
societies have, and could in the future, adversely impact our ability to secure licensing arrangements in connection with musical compositions that such
rights holders own or control, and could increase the risk of liability for copyright infringement.

Although we expend significant resources to seek to comply with the statutory, regulatory, and judicial frameworks, we cannot guarantee that we currently
hold, or will always hold, every necessary right to use all of the music that is used on our service, and we cannot assure you that we are not infringing or
violating any third-party intellectual property rights, or that we will not do so in the future.

These challenges, and others concerning the licensing of music on our platform, may subject us to significant liability for copyright infringement, breach of
contract, or other claims. For additional information, see Note 13 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements and the section titled “—Legal
Proceedings” in Part I, ltem 3 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain the value and reputation of the Peloton brand.

We believe that our brand is important to attracting and retaining Members. Maintaining, protecting, and enhancing our brand depends largely on the
success of our marketing efforts, ability to provide consistent, high-quality products, services, features, content, and support, and our ability to successfully
secure, maintain, and defend our rights to use the “Peloton” mark, our “P” logo, and other trademarks important to our brand. We believe that the importance
of our brand will increase as competition further intensifies and brand promotion activities may require substantial expenditures. Our brand could be harmed
if we fail to achieve these objectives or if our public image were to be tarnished by negative publicity. Unfavorable publicity about us, including our products,
services, technology, customer service, content, personnel, and suppliers could diminish confidence in, and the use of, our products and services. Such
negative publicity also could have an adverse effect on the size, engagement and loyalty of our Member base and result in decreased revenue, which could
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We have grown rapidly in recent years and have limited operating experience at our current scale of operations. If we are unable to manage our
growth effectively, our brand, company culture, and financial performance may suffer.

We have expanded our operations rapidly and have limited operating experience at our current size. For example, between June 30, 2017 and June 30,
2020, our employee headcount increased from 443 to 3,694, and we expect headcount growth to continue for the foreseeable future. Further, as we grow,
our business becomes increasingly complex. To effectively manage and capitalize on our growth, we must continue to expand our sales and marketing,
focus on innovative product and content development, upgrade our management information systems and other processes, and obtain more space for our
expanding staff. Our continued growth could strain our existing resources, and we could experience ongoing operating difficulties in managing our business
across numerous jurisdictions, including difficulties in hiring, training, and managing a diffuse and growing employee base. Failure to scale and preserve our
company culture with growth could harm our future success, including our ability to retain and recruit personnel and to effectively focus on and pursue our
corporate objectives. Moreover, the vertically integrated nature of our business, where we design our own Connected Fitness Products, develop our own
software, produce original fitness and wellness programming, sell our products exclusively through our own sales teams and e-commerce site, and
assemble, deliver, and service our Connected Fitness Products, exposes us to risk and disruption at many points that are critical to successfully operating
our business and may make it more difficult for us to scale our business. For example, as a result of the current COVID-19 pandemic we may not be able to
manage our business effectively and, in particular, we may experience difficulties in meeting consumer demand for our Connected Fitness Products and
services, due to our employees becoming ill, being unable to travel to our facilities, and constraints within our supply chain. If we do not adapt to meet these
evolving challenges, or if our management team does not effectively scale with our growth, we may experience erosion to our brand, the quality of our
products and services may suffer, and our company culture may be harmed.

Our growth strategy contemplates a significant increase in our advertising and other marketing spending and expanding our retail showroom presence. Many
of our existing retail showrooms are relatively new and we cannot assure you that these showrooms or that future showrooms will generate revenue and
cash flow comparable with those generated by our more mature locations, especially as we move to new geographic markets. Moreover, certain occurrences
outside of our control may result in the closure of our retail showrooms. For example, as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, we temporarily closed
all of our retail showrooms, and while we have reopened certain retail showrooms, we are unable to predict whether consumer shopping behaviors will
change as we reopen. Further, many of our retail showrooms are leased pursuant to multi-year short-term leases, and our ability to negotiate favorable terms
on an expiring lease or for a lease renewal option may depend on factors that are not within our control. We may also open additional production studios as
we expand internationally, which will require significant additional investment. Successful implementation of our growth strategy will require significant
expenditures before any substantial associated revenue is generated and we cannot guarantee that these increased investments will result in corresponding
and offsetting revenue growth.

Because we have a limited history operating our business at its current scale, it is difficult to evaluate our current business and future prospects, including
our ability to plan for and model future growth. Our limited operating experience at this scale, combined with the rapidly evolving nature
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of the market in which we sell our products and services, substantial uncertainty concerning how these markets may develop, and other economic factors
beyond our control, reduces our ability to accurately forecast quarterly or annual revenue. Failure to manage our future growth effectively could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We cannot compel third parties to license their music to us, and our business may be adversely affected if our access to music is limited. The
concentration of control of content by major music licensors means that the actions of one or a few licensors may adversely affect our ability to
provide our service.

We enter into license agreements to obtain rights to use music in our service, including with major record companies (Sony Music Entertainment, Universal
Music Group, and Warner Music Group), independent record labels, major music publishers (Sony/ATV Music Publishing, Universal Music Publishing Group,
and Warner/Chappell Music), and independent music publishers and administrators who collectively hold the rights to a significant number of sound
recordings and musical compositions.

Comprehensive and accurate ownership information for the musical compositions embodied in sound recordings is sometimes unavailable, or in some
cases, impossible to obtain if withheld by the owners or administrators of such rights. In some cases, we obtain ownership information directly from music
publishers, and in other cases we rely on the assistance of third parties to determine ownership information.

If the information provided to us or obtained by such third parties does not comprehensively or accurately identify the ownership of musical compositions, or
if we are unable to determine which musical compositions correspond to specific sound recordings, it becomes difficult or impossible to identify the
appropriate rights holders to whom to pay royalties. This may make it difficult to comply with the obligations of any agreements with those rights holders or to
secure the appropriate licenses with all necessary parties.

Given the high level of content concentration in the music industry, the market power of a few licensors, and the lack of transparent ownership information for
compositions, we may be unable to license a large amount of music or the music of certain popular artists, and our business, financial condition, and
operating results could be materially harmed.

We are a party to many music license agreements that are complex and impose numerous obligations upon us that may make it difficult to
operate our business, and a breach of such agreements could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Our license agreements are complex and impose numerous obligations on us, including obligations to, among other things:

+ calculate and make payments based on complex royalty structures, which requires tracking usage of content in our service that may have
inaccurate or incomplete metadata necessary for such calculation;

« provide periodic reports on the exploitation of the content in specified formats;

» represent that we will obtain all necessary publishing licenses and consents and pay all associated fees, royalties, and other amounts due for the
licensing of musical compositions;

« comply with certain marketing and advertising restrictions;
+ grant the licensor the right to audit our compliance with the terms of such agreements; and
« comply with certain security and technical specifications.

Certain of our license agreements also contain minimum guarantees or require that we make minimum guarantee or advance payments, which are not
always tied to our number of Subscribers or stream counts for music used in our service. Accordingly, our ability to achieve and sustain profitability and
operating leverage in part depends on our ability to increase our revenue through increased sales of Subscriptions on terms that maintain an adequate gross
margin. Our license agreements that contain minimum guarantees typically have terms of between one and three years, but our Subscribers may cancel
their subscriptions at any time. We rely on estimates to forecast whether such minimum guarantees and advances against royalties could be recouped
against our actual content costs incurred over the term of the license agreement. To the extent that our estimates underperform relative to our expectations,
and our content costs do not exceed such minimum guarantees and advance payments, our margins may be adversely affected.

Some of our license agreements also include so-called “most-favored nations” provisions, which require that certain terms (including material financial terms)
are no less favorable than those provided to any similarly situated licensor. If agreements are amended or new agreements are entered into on more
favorable terms, these most-favored nations provisions could cause our payment or other obligations to escalate substantially. Additionally, some of our
license agreements require consent to undertake new business initiatives utilizing the licensed content (e.g., alternative distribution models), and without
such consent, our ability to undertake new business initiatives may be limited and our competitive position could be impacted.

If we breach any obligations in any of our license agreements, or if we use content in ways that are found to exceed the scope of such agreements, we could
be subject to monetary penalties or claims of infringement, and our rights under such agreements could be terminated.

In the past, we have entered into agreements that required us to make substantial payments to licensors to resolve instances of past use at the same time
that we enter into go-forward licenses. These agreements may also include most-favored nations provisions. If triggered, these most favored nations
provisions could cause our payments or other obligations under those agreements to escalate substantially. If we need to enter into additional similar
agreements in the future, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our business could be adversely affected from an accident, safety incident, or workforce disruption.
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Our internal manufacturing processes and related activities, as well as our in-house warehousing and last-mile logistics activities, could expose us to
significant personal injury claims that could subject us to substantial liability. The COVID-19 pandemic increases our exposure to these risks; for example,
various local government orders have been implemented in areas where we operate that require us to secure personal protective equipment, such as face
masks and gloves, for our delivery teams, and to implement new methods of monitoring employee health, such as temperature checks. As these
government orders have come down, a global shortage of personal protective equipment has resulted, and we have experienced delays and increased costs
in obtaining these materials for our teams. Our inability to timely adapt to changing norms and requirements around maintaining a safe workplace during the
COVID-19 pandemic could cause employee illness, accidents, or team discontent if it is perceived that we are failing to protect the health and safety of our
employees. While we maintain liability insurance in amounts and of the type generally consistent with industry practice, the amount of such coverage may
not be adequate to cover fully all claims, and we may be forced to bear substantial losses from an accident or safety incident resulting from our
manufacturing, warehousing, or last-mile activities. Additionally, if our employees decide to join or form a labor union, we may become party to a collective
bargaining agreement, which could result in higher employee costs and increased risk of work stoppages. It is also possible that a union seeking to organize
one subset of our employee population, such as the employees in our manufacturing facility, could also mount a corporate campaign, resulting in negative
publicity or other actions that require attention by our management team and our employees. Negative publicity, work stoppages, or strikes by unions could
have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition, and operating results.

Our business is affected by seasonality.

Our business has historically been influenced by seasonal trends common to traditional retail selling periods, and we generate a disproportionate amount of
sales activity related to our Connected Fitness Products during the period from November through February due in large part to seasonal holiday demand,
New Year’s resolutions, and cold weather. For example, in fiscal 2018 and 2019, our second and third quarters combined each represented 63% of our total
revenue. In fiscal 2020, we saw a significant increase in demand in the fourth quarter related to COVID-19, and therefore only 54% of our total revenue was
generated in our second and third quarters. Over time, we expect the seasonality of our business to return, with pronounced increases in demand during our
second and third quarters. Moreover, as a result of higher sales during the period from November through February, our working capital needs are greater
during the second and third quarters of the fiscal year. As a result of quarterly fluctuations caused by these and other factors, comparisons of our operating
results across different fiscal quarters may not be accurate indicators of our future performance. Furthermore, our rapid growth in recent years may obscure
the extent to which seasonality trends have affected our business and may continue to affect our business. Accordingly, yearly or quarterly comparisons of
our operating results may not be useful and our results in any particular period will not necessarily be indicative of the results to be expected for any future
period. Seasonality in our business can also be affected by introductions of new or enhanced products and services, including the costs associated with
such introductions.

Our passion and focus on delivering a high-quality and engaging Peloton experience may not maximize short-term financial results, which may
yield results that conflict with the market’s expectations and could result in our stock price being negatively affected.

We are passionate about continually enhancing the Peloton experience with a focus on driving long-term Member engagement through innovation,
immersive content, technologically advanced Connected Fitness Products, and community support, which may not necessarily maximize short-term financial
results. We frequently make business decisions that may reduce our short-term financial results if we believe that the decisions are consistent with our goals
to improve the Peloton experience, which we believe will improve our financial results over the long term. These decisions may not be consistent with the
short-term expectations of our stockholders and may not produce the long-term benefits that we expect, in which case our membership growth and Member
engagement, and our business, financial condition, and operating results could be harmed.

Our products and services may be affected from time to time by design and manufacturing defects that could adversely affect our business and
result in harm to our reputation.

We offer complex hardware and software products and services that can be affected by design and manufacturing defects. Sophisticated operating system
software and applications, such as those offered by us, often have issues that can unexpectedly interfere with the intended operation of hardware or
software products. Defects may also exist in components and products that we source from third parties. Any such defects could make our products and
services unsafe, create a risk of environmental or property damage and personal injury, and subject us to the hazards and uncertainties of product liability
claims and related litigation. In addition, from time to time we may experience outages, service slowdowns, or errors that affect our fithess and wellness
programming. As a result, our services may not perform as anticipated and may not meet customer expectations. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to detect and fix all issues and defects in the hardware, software, and services we offer. Failure to do so could result in widespread technical and
performance issues affecting our products and services and could lead to claims against us. We maintain general liability insurance; however, design and
manufacturing defects, and claims related thereto, may subject us to judgments or settlements that result in damages materially in excess of the limits of our
insurance coverage. In addition, we may be exposed to recalls, product replacements or modifications, write-offs of inventory, property and equipment, or
intangible assets, and significant warranty and other expenses such as litigation costs and regulatory fines. If we cannot successfully defend any large claim,
maintain our general liability insurance on acceptable terms, or maintain adequate coverage against potential claims, our financial results could be adversely
impacted. Further, quality problems could adversely affect the experience for users of our products and services, and result in harm to our reputation, loss of
competitive advantage, poor market acceptance, reduced demand for our products and services, delay in new product and service introductions, and lost
revenue.

Our Members use their Connected Fitness Products, subscriptions, and fitness accessories to track and record their workouts. If our products
fail to provide accurate metrics and data to our Members, our brand and reputation could be harmed and we may be unable to retain our
Members.

Our Members use their Connected Fitness Products, subscriptions, and fithess accessories, such as our heart rate monitor, to track and record certain
metrics related to their workouts. Examples of metrics tracked on our platform includes heart rate, calories burned, distance traveled,
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and, in the case of the Bike, cadence, resistance, and output, and, in the case of the Tread, pace, speed, and elevation. Taken together, these metrics assist
our Members in tracking their fitness journey and understanding the effectiveness of their Peloton workouts. We anticipate introducing new metrics and
features in the future. If the software used in our Connected Fitness Products or on our platform malfunctions and fails to accurately track, display, or record
Member workouts and metrics, we could face claims alleging that our products and services do not operate as advertised. Such reports and claims could
result in negative publicity, product liability claims, and, in some cases, may require us to expend time and resources to refute such claims and defend
against potential litigation. If our products and services fail to provide accurate metrics and data to our Members, or if there are reports or claims of
inaccurate metrics and data or claims of inaccuracy regarding the overall health benefits of our products and services in the future, we may become the
subject of negative publicity, litigation, regulatory proceedings, and warranty claims, and our brand, operating results, and business could be harmed.

If we fail to offer high-quality Member support, our business and reputation will suffer.

Once our Connected Fitness Products are purchased, our Members rely on our high-touch delivery and set up service to deliver and install their equipment
in a professional and efficient manner. Our Members also rely on our support services to resolve any issues related to the use of our Connected Fitness
Products and content. Providing a high-quality Member experience is vital to our success in generating word-of-mouth referrals to drive sales and for
retaining existing Members. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, our ability to provide high-quality Member support has been significantly impacted. For
example, due to COVID-19, we have at times been unable to provide in-home servicing of our Connected Fitness Products, we have at times had to pause
and temporarily suspend the sale, delivery, and installation of the Tread, and delivery procedures for the Bike have been limited in many locations as we are
still unable to provide in-home delivery and set up services. In addition, the closure of our offices has forced our Member support staff to work from home,
which may result in work-productivity issues or a decrease in efficiencies, particularly during times of high call volume as we have seen when delivery lead
times get longer. The importance of high-quality support will increase as we expand our business and introduce new products and services. If we do not help
our Members quickly resolve issues and provide effective ongoing support, our reputation may suffer and our ability to retain and attract Members, or to sell
additional products and services to existing Members, could be harmed.

Our quarterly operating results and other operating metrics may fluctuate from quarter to quarter, which makes these metrics difficult to predict.

Our quarterly operating results and other operating metrics have fluctuated in the past and may continue to fluctuate from quarter to quarter. Additionally, our
limited operating history makes it difficult to forecast our future results. As a result, you should not rely on our past quarterly operating results as indicators of
future performance. You should take into account the risks and uncertainties frequently encountered by companies in rapidly evolving markets. Our financial
condition and operating results in any given quarter can be influenced by numerous factors, many of which we are unable to predict or are outside of our
control, including:

» the continued market acceptance of, and the growth of the connected fithess and wellness market;
*  our ability to maintain and attract new Subscribers;

» our development and improvement of the quality of the Peloton experience, including, enhancing existing and creating new Connected Fitness
Products, services, technology, features, and content;

» the continued development and upgrading of our proprietary technology platform;

+ the timing and success of new product, service, feature, and content introductions by us or our competitors or any other change in the competitive
landscape of our market;

*  pricing pressure as a result of competition or otherwise;

» delays or disruptions in our supply chain;

» errors in our forecasting of the demand for our products and services, which could lead to lower revenue or increased costs, or both;

* increases in marketing, sales, and other operating expenses that we may incur to grow and expand our operations and to remain competitive;
« the ability to maintain and open new showrooms;

+ the continued maintenance and expansion of last mile delivery and maintenance services for our Connected Fitness Products;

» successful expansion into international markets, including Canada, the United Kingdom, and Germany;

» seasonal fluctuations in subscriptions and usage of Connected Fitness Products by our Members, each of which may change as our products and
services evolve or as our business grows;

» the diversification and growth of our revenue sources;
+ our ability to maintain gross margins and operating margins;

* constraints on the availability of consumer financing or increased down payment requirements to finance purchases of our Connected Fitness
Products;

« system failures or breaches of security or privacy;
» adverse litigation judgments, settlements, or other litigation-related costs, including content costs for past use;

» changes in the legislative or regulatory environment, including with respect to privacy, consumer product safety, and advertising, or enforcement by
government regulators, including fines, orders, or consent decrees;

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates and changes in the proportion of our revenue and expenses denominated in foreign currencies;
» changes in our effective tax rate;
» changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations, or principles; and

* changes in business or macroeconomic conditions, including the impact of the current COVID-19 outbreak, lower consumer confidence,
recessionary conditions, increased unemployment rates, or stagnant or declining wages.
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Any one of the factors above or the cumulative effect of some of the factors above may result in significant fluctuations in our operating results.

The variability and unpredictability of our quarterly operating results or other operating metrics could result in our failure to meet our expectations or those of
analysts that cover us or investors with respect to revenue or other operating results for a particular period. If we fail to meet or exceed such expectations,
the market price of our Class A common stock could fall substantially, and we could face costly lawsuits, including securities class action suits.

We rely on access to our production studios and the creativity of our fitness instructors to generate our class content. If we are unable to access
or use our studios or if we are unable to attract and retain high-quality fitness instructors, we may not be able to generate interesting and
attractive content for our classes.

All of the fitness and wellness content offered on our platform is produced in one of our four production studios, three of which are located in New York City.
Due to our reliance on a limited number of studios in a concentrated location, any incident involving our studios, or affecting New York City at-large, could
render our studios inaccessible or unusable and could inhibit our ability to produce and deliver new fitness and wellness content for our Members. For
example, in April 2020, we decided to temporarily pause live production at both our New York and London studios to reduce the risk of exposure to our
employees and their families to COVID-19. While we have since reopened our studios for live production, and taken a number of precautions in doing so,
there is no guarantee that the COVID-19 pandemic will not result in future pauses to live production from our studios. Production of the fitness and wellness
content on our platform is further reliant on the creativity of our fitness instructors who, with the support of our production team, plan and lead our classes.
Our standard employment contract with our fitness instructors has a fixed, multi-year term, however, our instructors may leave Peloton prior to the end of
their contracts. If we are unable to attract or retain creative and experienced instructors, we may not be able to generate content on a scale or of a quality
sufficient to grow our business. If we fail to produce and provide our Members with interesting and attractive content led by instructors who they can relate to,
then our business, financial condition, and operating results may be adversely affected.

We plan to expand into international markets, which will expose us to significant risks.

We are currently expanding our operations to other countries, which requires significant resources and management attention and subjects us to regulatory,
economic, and political risks in addition to those we already face in the United States. There are significant risks and costs inherent in doing business in
international markets, including:

+ difficulty establishing and managing international operations and the increased operations, travel, infrastructure, including establishment of local
delivery service and customer service operations, and legal compliance costs associated with locations in different countries or regions;

+ the need to vary pricing and margins to effectively compete in international markets;

» the need to adapt and localize products for specific countries, including obtaining rights to third-party intellectual property, including music, used in
each country;

» increased competition from local providers of similar products and services;

» the ability to protect and enforce intellectual property rights abroad;

« the need to offer content and customer support in various languages;

» difficulties in understanding and complying with local laws, regulations, and customs in other jurisdictions;

+ compliance with anti-bribery laws, such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the U.K. Bribery Act 2010, or U.K. Bribery Act, by
us, our employees, and our business partners;

» complexity and other risks associated with current and future legal requirements in other countries, including legal requirements related to
consumer protection, consumer product safety, and data privacy frameworks, such as the E.U. General Data Protection Regulation;

+ varying levels of internet technology adoption and infrastructure, and increased or varying network and hosting service provider costs;
» tariffs and other non-tariff barriers, such as quotas and local content rules, as well as tax consequences;

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates and the requirements of currency control regulations, which might restrict or prohibit conversion of other
currencies into U.S. dollars; and

+ political or social unrest or economic instability in a specific country or region in which we operate, including, for example, the effects of “Brexit,”
which could have an adverse impact on our operations in that location.

In addition to expanding our operations into international markets through the sale of our Connected Fitness Products and the production of our platform
content, we have, and may in the future, expand our international operations through acquisitions of, or investments in, foreign entities, which may result in
additional operational costs and risks. For example, as a result of our recent acquisition of Tonic, one of our manufacturing partners and a Taiwanese entity,
we own and are responsible for managing a manufacturing plant in Taiwan. This acquisition requires us to, among other things, fulfill Tonic’s obligations
under existing service contracts that are unrelated to our current business, address the difficulties of managing a new workforce in a foreign country with
different labor laws, customs, and language barriers, and successfully maintain relationships with Tonic’s current suppliers and contract partners.

We have limited experience with international regulatory environments and market practices and may not be able to penetrate or successfully operate in the
markets we choose to enter. In addition, we may incur significant expenses as a result of our international expansion, and we may not be successful. We
may face limited brand recognition in certain parts of the world that could lead to non-acceptance or delayed acceptance of our products and services by
consumers in new markets. We may also face challenges to acceptance of our fitness and wellness content in new markets. Our failure to successfully
manage these risks could harm our international operations and have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.
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Increases in component costs, long lead times, supply shortages, and supply changes could disrupt our supply chain and have an adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Meeting customer demand partially depends on our ability to obtain timely and adequate delivery of components for our Connected Fitness Products. All of
the components that go into the manufacturing of our Connected Fitness Products are sourced from a limited number of third-party suppliers, and some of
these components are provided by a single supplier. Our contract manufacturers generally purchase these components on our behalf, subject to certain
approved supplier lists, and we do not have long-term arrangements with most of our component suppliers. We are therefore subject to the risk of shortages
and long lead times in the supply of these components and the risk that our suppliers discontinue or modify components used in our Connected Fitness
Products. In addition, the lead times associated with certain components are lengthy and preclude rapid changes in design, quantities, and delivery
schedules. Our ability to meet temporary unforeseen increases in demand has been, and may in the future be, impacted by our reliance on the availability of
components from these sub-suppliers. We may in the future experience component shortages, and the predictability of the availability of these components
may be limited. In the event of a component shortage or supply interruption from suppliers of these components, we may not be able to develop alternate
sources in a timely manner. Developing alternate sources of supply for these components may be time-consuming, difficult, and costly and we may not be
able to source these components on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all, which may undermine our ability to fill our orders in a timely manner. Any
interruption or delay in the supply of any of these parts or components, or the inability to obtain these parts or components from alternate sources at
acceptable prices and within a reasonable amount of time, would harm our ability to meet our scheduled Connected Fitness Product deliveries to our
customers.

Moreover, volatile economic conditions may make it more likely that our suppliers and logistics providers may be unable to timely deliver supplies, or at all,
and there is no guarantee that we will be able to timely locate alternative suppliers of comparable quality at an acceptable price. In addition, international
supply chains may be impacted by events outside of our control and limit our ability to procure timely delivery of supplies or finished goods and services.
Importing and exporting has involved more risk, since the beginning of 2018, as there has been increasing rhetoric, in some cases coupled with legislative or
executive action, from several U.S. and foreign leaders regarding tariffs against foreign imports of certain materials. Several of the components that go into
the manufacturing of our Connected Fitness Products are sourced internationally, including from China, where the United States has imposed tariffs on
specified products imported therefrom following the U.S. Trade Representative Section 301 Investigation. These issues could be further exacerbated by the
progression of the COVID-19 outbreak. We could see increased congestion and/or new import/export restrictions implemented at ports that we rely on for
our business. In many cases, we have had to secure alternative transportation, such as air freight, or use alternative routes, at increased costs to run our
supply chain. These tariffs have an impact on our component costs and have the potential to have an even greater impact depending on the outcome of the
current trade negotiations, which have been protracted and recently resulted in increases in U.S. tariff rates on specified products from China. Increases in
our component costs could have a material effect on our gross margins. The loss of a significant supplier, an increase in component costs, or delays or
disruptions in the delivery of components, could adversely impact our ability to generate future revenue and earnings and have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and operating results.

Any major disruption or failure of our information technology systems or websites, or our failure to successfully implement upgrades and new
technology effectively, could adversely affect our business and operations.

Certain of our information technology systems are designed and maintained by us and are critical for the efficient functioning of our business, including the
manufacture and distribution of our Connected Fitness Products, online sales of our Connected Fitness Products, and the ability of our Members to access
content on our platform. Our rapid growth has, in certain instances, strained these systems. As we grow, we continue to implement modifications and
upgrades to our systems, and these activities subject us to inherent costs and risks associated with replacing and upgrading these systems, including, but
not limited to, impairment of our ability to fulfill customer orders and other disruptions in our business operations. Further, our system implementations may
not result in productivity improvements at a level that outweighs the costs of implementation, or at all. If we fail to successfully implement modifications and
upgrades or expand the functionality of our information technology systems, we could experience increased costs associated with diminished productivity
and operating inefficiencies related to the flow of goods through our supply chain.

In addition, any unexpected technological interruptions to our systems or websites would disrupt our operations, including our ability to timely ship and track
product orders, project inventory requirements, manage our supply chain, sell our Connected Fitness Products online, provide services to our Members, and
otherwise adequately serve our Members.

Online sales of our Connected Fitness Products through www.onepeloton.com represented a significantly higher number of our units sold in the United
States for fiscal 2020 versus previous years, due to the temporary closing of our retail showrooms. The operation of our direct to consumer e-commerce
business through our website depends on our ability to maintain the efficient and uninterrupted operation of online order-taking and fulfillment operations.
Any system interruptions or delays could prevent potential customers from purchasing our Connected Fitness Products.

Moreover, the ability of our Members to access the content on our platform could be diminished by a number of factors, including Members’ inability to
access the internet, the failure of our network or software systems, security breaches, or variability in Member traffic for our platform. Platform failures would
be most impactful if they occurred during peak platform use periods, which generally occur before and after standard work hours. During these peak periods,
there are a significant number of Members concurrently accessing our platform and if we are unable to provide uninterrupted access, our Members’
perception of our platform’s reliability may be damaged, our revenue could be reduced, our reputation could be harmed, and we may be required to issue
credits or refunds, or risk losing Members.

In the event we experience significant disruptions, we may be unable to repair our systems in an efficient and timely manner which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our operating results could be adversely affected if we are unable to accurately forecast consumer demand for our products and services and
adequately manage our inventory.
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To ensure adequate inventory supply, we must forecast inventory needs and expenses and place orders sufficiently in advance with our suppliers and
contract manufacturers, based on our estimates of future demand for particular products and services. Failure to accurately forecast our needs may result in
manufacturing delays or increased costs. Our ability to accurately forecast demand could be affected by many factors, including changes in consumer
demand for our products and services, changes in demand for the products and services of our competitors, unanticipated changes in general market
conditions, and the weakening of economic conditions or consumer confidence in future economic conditions, such as those caused by the current COVID-
19 outbreak. This risk will be exacerbated by the fact that we may not carry a significant amount of inventory and may not be able to satisfy short-term
demand increases. For example, we have experienced an unexpected increase in demand for our Connected Fitness Products as a result of government
shelter-in-place orders in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, which has resulted in inventory shortages and delayed delivery timelines. If we fail to
accurately forecast consumer demand, we may experience excess inventory levels or a shortage of products available for sale.

Inventory levels in excess of consumer demand may result in inventory write-downs or write-offs and the sale of excess inventory at discounted prices, which
would cause our gross margins to suffer and could impair the strength and premium nature of our brand. Further, lower than forecasted demand could also
result in excess manufacturing capacity or reduced manufacturing efficiencies, which could result in lower margins. Conversely, if we underestimate
consumer demand, our suppliers and manufacturers may not be able to deliver products to meet our requirements or we may be subject to higher costs in
order to secure the necessary production capacity. An inability to meet consumer demand and delays in the delivery of our products to our customers could
result in reputational harm and damaged customer relationships and have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

If we are unable to sustain pricing levels for our Connected Fitness Products and subscriptions, our business could be adversely affected.

If we are unable to sustain pricing levels for our Bike, Tread, and subscription services, whether due to competitive pressure or otherwise, our gross margins
could be significantly reduced. Further, our decisions around the development of new products and services are grounded in assumptions about eventual
pricing levels. If there is price compression in the market after these decisions are made, it could have a negative effect on our business.

Our revenue could decline due to changes in credit markets and decisions made by credit providers.

Historically, a majority of our customers have financed their purchase of our Connected Fitness Products through third-party credit providers with whom we
have existing relationships. If we are unable to maintain our relationships with our financing partners, there is no guarantee that we will be able to find
replacement partners who will provide our customers with financing on similar terms, and our ability to sell our Connected Fitness Products may be
adversely affected. Further, reductions in consumer lending and the availability of consumer credit could limit the number of customers with the financial
means to purchase our products. Higher interest rates could increase our costs or the monthly payments for consumer products financed through other
sources of consumer financing. In the future, we cannot be assured that third-party financing providers will continue to provide consumers with access to
credit or that available credit limits will not be reduced. Such restrictions or reductions in the availability of consumer credit, or the loss of our relationship with
our current financing partners, could have an adverse effect on our business, financial conditions, and operating results.

Our future success depends on the continuing efforts of our key employees and our ability to attract and retain highly skilled personnel and
senior management.

Our future success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to identify, attract, develop, integrate, and retain qualified and highly skilled personnel,
including senior management, engineers, producers, designers, product managers, logistics and supply chain personnel, retail managers, and fitness
instructors. In particular, we are highly dependent on the services of John Foley, our Chief Executive Officer and co-founder, who is critical to the
development of our business, future vision, and strategic direction. We also heavily rely on the continued service and performance of our senior
management team, which provides leadership, contributes to the core areas of our business and helps us to efficiently execute our business. If members of
our senior management team become ill due to the current COVID-19 pandemic, we may not be able to manage our business effectively and, as a result,
our business and operating results could be harmed.

Also imperative to our success are our fitness instructors, who we rely on to bring new, exciting, and innovative fithess and wellness content to our platform,
and who act as brand ambassadors. If the senior management team, including any new hires that we make, fails to work together effectively and to execute
our plans and strategies on a timely basis then our business and future growth prospects could be harmed.

Additionally, the loss of any key personnel could make it more difficult to manage our operations and research and development activities, reduce our
employee retention and revenue, and impair our ability to compete. Although we have entered into employment offer letters with our key personnel, these
agreements have no specific duration and constitute at-will employment. We do not maintain key person life insurance policies on any of our employees.

Competition for highly skilled personnel is often intense, especially in New York City, where we have a substantial presence and need for highly skilled
personnel. We may not be successful in attracting, integrating, or retaining qualified personnel to fulfill our current or future needs. We have from time to time
experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. In addition,
job candidates and existing employees often consider the value of the equity awards they receive in connection with their employment. If the perceived value
of our Class A common stock declines, it may adversely affect our ability to hire or retain highly skilled employees. In addition, we may periodically change
our equity compensation practices, which may include reducing the number of employees eligible for equity awards or reducing the size of equity awards
granted per employee. If we are unable to attract, integrate, or retain the qualified and highly skilled personnel required to fulfill our current or future needs,
our business and future growth prospects could be harmed.
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If we cannot maintain our “One Peloton” culture as we grow, we could lose the innovation, teamwork, and passion that we believe contribute to
our success and our business may be harmed.

We believe that a critical component of our success has been our corporate culture. We have invested substantial time and resources in building our “One
Peloton” culture, which is based on the idea that if we work together, we will be more efficient and perform better because of one another. As we continue to
grow, including geographically expanding our presence outside of our headquarters in New York City, and developing the infrastructure associated with being
a public company, we will need to maintain our “One Peloton” culture among a larger number of employees, dispersed across various geographic regions.
The widespread stay-at-home orders resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic have required us to make substantial changes to the way that the vast majority
of our employee population does their work, and we have faced new and unforeseen challenges arising from the management of remote, geographically
dispersed teams. Our response to the changing work environment has included a number of employee-focused benefits initiatives, such as child care and
work from home technology reimbursements, which are aimed at increasing productivity and employee morale and which have increased our costs. Any
failure to preserve our culture could negatively affect our future success, including our ability to retain and recruit personnel and to effectively focus on and
pursue our corporate objectives.

We have a limited operating history with which to evaluate and predict the profitability of our subscription model. Additionally, we may introduce
new revenue models in the future.

The majority of our Subscribers are on month-to-month subscription terms and may cancel their subscriptions at any time. We have limited historical data
with respect to subscription renewals, so we may be unable to accurately predict customer renewal rates. Additionally, prior renewal rates may not
accurately predict future Subscriber renewal rates for a variety of reasons, such as Subscribers’ dissatisfaction with our offerings and the cost of our
subscriptions, macroeconomic conditions, or new offering introductions by us or our competitors. If our Subscribers do not renew their subscriptions, our
revenue may decline and our business will suffer. Moreover, while we have experienced a significant increase in our Subscriber base since the outbreak of
COVID-19, it remains uncertain how the COVID-19 pandemic will impact Subscriber renewal rates in long-term.

Furthermore, in the future, we may offer new subscription products, implement promotions, or replace or modify current subscription models, any of which
could result in additional costs. It is unknown how our Subscribers will react to new models and whether the costs or logistics of implementing these models
will adversely impact our business. If the adoption of new revenue models adversely impacts our Subscriber relationships, then Subscriber growth,
Subscriber engagement, and our business, financial condition, and operating results could be harmed.

Our intellectual property rights are valuable, and any inability to protect them could reduce the value of our products, services, and brand.

Our success depends in large part on our proprietary technology and our patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and other intellectual property rights. We rely
on, and expect to continue to rely on, a combination of trademark, trade dress, domain name, copyright, trade secret and patent laws, as well as
confidentiality and license agreements with our employees, contractors, consultants, and third parties with whom we have relationships, to establish and
protect our brand and other intellectual property rights. However, our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights may not be sufficient or effective, and
any of our intellectual property rights may be challenged, which could result in them being narrowed in scope or declared invalid or unenforceable. There can
be no assurance that our intellectual property rights will be sufficient to protect against others offering products, services, or technologies that are
substantially similar to ours and that compete with our business.

Effective protection of patents, trademarks, and domain names is expensive and difficult to maintain, both in terms of application and registration costs as
well as the costs of defending and enforcing those rights. As we have grown, we have sought to obtain and protect our intellectual property rights in an
increasing number of countries, a process that can be expensive and may not always be successful. For example, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and
various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of procedural requirements to complete the patent application process and
to maintain issued patents, and noncompliance or non-payment could result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or patent application, resulting in partial or
complete loss of patent rights in a relevant jurisdiction. Further, intellectual property protection may not be available to us in every country in which our
products and services are available. For example, some foreign countries have compulsory licensing laws under which a patent owner must grant licenses to
third parties. In addition, many countries limit the enforceability of patents against certain third parties, including government agencies or government
contractors. In these countries, patents may provide limited or no benefit.

In order to protect our brand and intellectual property rights, we may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and protect these rights. Litigation
brought to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could be costly, time-consuming, and distracting to management and could result in the
impairment or loss of portions of our intellectual property. Furthermore, our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights may be met with defenses,
counterclaims, and countersuits attacking the validity and enforceability of our intellectual property rights. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent third
parties from infringing upon or misappropriating our intellectual property. Our failure to secure, protect, and enforce our intellectual property rights could
seriously damage our brand and our business.

We have been, and in the future may be, sued by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights.

There is considerable patent and other intellectual property development activity in our market, and litigation, based on allegations of infringement or other
violations of intellectual property, is frequent in the fitness and technology industries. Furthermore, it is common for individuals and groups to purchase
patents and other intellectual property assets for the purpose of making claims of infringement to extract settlements from companies like ours. Our use of
third-party content, including music content, software, and other intellectual property rights may be subject to claims of infringement or misappropriation. We
cannot guarantee that our internally developed or acquired technologies and content do not or will not infringe the intellectual property rights of others. From
time to time, our competitors or other third parties may claim that we are infringing upon or misappropriating their intellectual property rights, and we may be
found to be infringing upon such rights. Any claims or litigation could cause us to incur significant expenses and, if successfully asserted against us, could
require that we pay substantial damages or ongoing royalty payments, prevent us from offering our platform or services or using certain technologies, force
us to implement
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expensive work-arounds, or impose other unfavorable terms. We expect that the occurrence of infringement claims is likely to grow as the market for fitness
products and services grows and as we introduce new and updated products and offerings. Accordingly, our exposure to damages resulting from
infringement claims could increase and this could further exhaust our financial and management resources. Further, during the course of any litigation, we
may make announcements regarding the results of hearings and motions, and other interim developments. If securities analysts and investors regard these
announcements as negative, the market price of our Class A common stock may decline. Even if intellectual property claims do not result in litigation or are
resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and require
significant expenditures. Any of the foregoing could prevent us from competing effectively and could have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and operating results.

We rely heavily on third parties for most of our computing, storage, processing, and similar services. Any disruption of or interference with our
use of these third-party services could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We have outsourced our cloud infrastructure to third-party providers, and we currently use these providers to host and stream our services and content. We
are therefore vulnerable to service interruptions experienced by these providers and we expect to experience interruptions, delays, or outages in service
availability in the future due to a variety of factors, including infrastructure changes, human, hardware or software errors, hosting disruptions, and capacity
constraints. Outages and capacity constraints could arise from a number of causes such as technical failures, natural disasters and global pandemics, fraud,
or security attacks. The level of service provided by these providers, or regular or prolonged interruptions in that service, could also affect the use of, and our
Members’ satisfaction with, our products and services and could harm our business and reputation. In addition, hosting costs will increase as membership
engagement grows, which could harm our business if we are unable to grow our revenue faster than the cost of using these services or the services of
similar providers.

Furthermore, our providers have broad discretion to change and interpret the terms of service and other policies with respect to us, and those actions may
be unfavorable to our business operations. Our providers may also take actions beyond our control that could seriously harm our business, including
discontinuing or limiting our access to one or more services, increasing pricing terms, terminating or seeking to terminate our contractual relationship
altogether, or altering how we are able to process data in a way that is unfavorable or costly to us. Although we expect that we could obtain similar services
from other third parties, if our arrangements with our current providers were terminated, we could experience interruptions on our platform and in our ability
to make our content available to Members, as well as delays and additional expenses in arranging for alternative cloud infrastructure services.

Any of these factors could further reduce our revenue, subject us to liability, and cause our Subscribers to decline to renew their subscriptions, any of which
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

In addition, customers of certain of our providers have been subject to litigation by third parties claiming that the service and basic HTTP functions infringe
their patents. If we become subject to such claims, although we expect our provider to indemnify us with respect to at least a portion of such claims, the
litigation may be time consuming, divert management’s attention, and, if our provider failed to indemnify us, adversely impact our operating results.

We face risks, such as unforeseen costs and potential liability in connection with content we produce, license, and distribute through our
platform.

As a producer and distributor of content, we face potential liability for negligence, copyright, and trademark infringement, or other claims based on the nature
and content of materials that we produce, license, and distribute. We also may face potential liability for content used in promoting our service, including
marketing materials. We may decide to remove content from our service, not to place certain content on our service, or to discontinue or alter our production
of certain types of content if we believe such content might not be well received by our Members or could be damaging to our brand and business.

To the extent we do not accurately anticipate costs or mitigate risks, including for content that we obtain but ultimately does not appear on or is removed from
our service, or if we become liable for content we produce, license or distribute, our business may suffer. Litigation to defend these claims could be costly
and the expenses and damages arising from any liability could harm our results of operations. We may not be indemnified against claims or costs of these
types and we may not have insurance coverage for these types of claims.

Some of our products and services contain open source software, which may pose particular risks to our proprietary software, technologies,
products, and services in a manner that could harm our business.

We use open source software in our products and services and anticipate using open source software in the future. Some open source software licenses
require those who distribute open source software as part of their own software product to publicly disclose all or part of the source code to such software
product or to make available any derivative works of the open source code on unfavorable terms or at no cost. The terms of many open source licenses to
which we are subject have not been interpreted by U.S or foreign courts, and there is a risk that open source software licenses could be construed in a
manner that imposes unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to provide or distribute our products or services. Additionally, we could face claims
from third parties claiming ownership of, or demanding release of, the open source software or derivative works that we developed using such software,
which could include our proprietary source code, or otherwise seeking to enforce the terms of the applicable open source license. These claims could result
in litigation and could require us to make our software source code freely available, purchase a costly license, or cease offering the implicated products or
services unless and until we can re-engineer them to avoid infringement. This re-engineering process could require us to expend significant additional
research and development resources, and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful.

Additionally, the use of certain open source software can lead to greater risks than use of third-party commercial software, as open source licensors
generally do not provide warranties or controls on the origin of software. There is typically no support available for open source software, and we cannot
ensure that the authors of such open source software will implement or push updates to address security risks or will not abandon further development and
maintenance. Many of the risks associated with the use of open source software, such as the lack of
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warranties or assurances of title or performance, cannot be eliminated, and could, if not properly addressed, negatively affect our business. We have
processes to help alleviate these risks, including a review process for screening requests from our developers for the use of open source software, but we
cannot be sure that all open source software is identified or submitted for approval prior to use in our products and services. Any of these risks could be
difficult to eliminate or manage, and, if not addressed, could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our Member engagement on mobile devices depends upon effective operation with mobile operating systems, networks, and standards that we
do not control.

A significant and growing portion of our Members access our platform through Peloton Digital and there is no guarantee that popular mobile devices will
continue to support Peloton Digital or that mobile device users will use Peloton Digital rather than competing products. We are dependent on the
interoperability of Peloton Digital with popular mobile operating systems that we do not control, such as Android and iOS, and any changes in such systems
that degrade the functionality of our digital offering or give preferential treatment to competitors could adversely affect our platform’s usage on mobile
devices. Additionally, in order to deliver high-quality mobile content, it is important that our digital offering is designed effectively and works well with a range
of mobile technologies, systems, networks, and standards that we do not control. We may not be successful in developing relationships with key participants
in the mobile industry or in developing products that operate effectively with these technologies, systems, networks, or standards. In the event that it is more
difficult for our Members to access and use our platform on their mobile devices or Members find our mobile offerings do not effectively meet their needs, our
competitors develop products and services that are perceived to operate more effectively on mobile devices, or if our Members choose not to access or use
our platform on their mobile devices or use mobile products that do not offer access to our platform, our Member growth and Member engagement could be
adversely impacted.

We track certain operational and business metrics with internal methods that are subject to inherent challenges in measurement, and real or
perceived inaccuracies in such metrics may harm our reputation and negatively affect our business.

We track certain operational and business metrics, including Total Workouts and Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription, with
internal methods, which are not independently verified by any third party and, in particular for Peloton Digital, are often reliant upon an interface with mobile
operating systems, networks and standards that we do not control. Our internal methods have limitations and our process for tracking these metrics may
change over time, which could result in unexpected changes to our metrics, including the metrics we report. If the internal methods we use under-count or
over-count metrics related to our Total Workouts, Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription or other metrics as a result of algorithm or
other technical errors, the operational and business metrics that we report may not be accurate. In addition, limitations or errors with respect to how we
measure certain operational and business metrics may affect our understanding of certain details of our business, which could affect our longer term
strategies. If our operational and business metrics are not accurate representations of our business, market penetration, retention or engagement; if we
discover material inaccuracies in our metrics; or if the metrics we rely on to track our performance do not provide an accurate measurement of our business,
our reputation may be harmed, and our operating and financial results could be adversely affected.

We collect, store, process, and use personal information and other Member data, which subjects us to legal obligations and laws and regulations
related to security and privacy, and any actual or perceived failure to meet those obligations could harm our business.

We collect, process, store, and use a wide variety of data from current and prospective Members, including personal information, such as home addresses
and geolocation. Federal, state, and international laws and regulations governing privacy, data protection, and e-commerce transactions require us to
safeguard our Members’ personal information. Although we have established security procedures to protect Member information, our or our third-party
service providers’ security and testing measures may not prevent security breaches. Further, advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field
of cryptography, inadequate facility security, or other developments may result in a compromise or breach of the technology we use to protect Member data.
Any compromise of our security or breach of our Members’ privacy could harm our reputation or financial condition and, therefore, our business.

In addition, a party who circumvents our security measures or exploits inadequacies in our security measures, could, among other effects, misappropriate
Member data or other proprietary information, cause interruptions in our operations, or expose Members to computer viruses or other disruptions. Actual or
perceived vulnerabilities may lead to claims against us. To the extent that the measures we or our third-party business partners have taken prove to be
insufficient or inadequate, we may become subject to litigation, breach notification obligations, or regulatory or administrative sanctions, which could result in
significant fines, penalties, or damages and harm to our reputation. Depending on the nature of the information compromised, in the event of a data breach
or other unauthorized access to our Member data, we may also have obligations to notify Members about the incident and we may need to provide some
form of remedy, such as a subscription to a credit monitoring service, for the individuals affected by the incident. A growing number of legislative and
regulatory bodies have adopted consumer notification requirements in the event of unauthorized access to or acquisition of certain types of personal data.
Such breach notification laws continue to evolve and may be inconsistent from one jurisdiction to another. Complying with these obligations could cause us
to incur substantial costs and could increase negative publicity surrounding any incident that compromises Member data.

Furthermore, we may be required to disclose personal data pursuant to demands from individuals, privacy advocates, regulators, government agencies, and
law enforcement agencies in various jurisdictions with conflicting privacy and security laws. This disclosure or refusal to disclose personal data may result in
a breach of privacy and data protection policies, notices, laws, rules, court orders, and regulations and could result in proceedings or actions against us in
the same or other jurisdictions, damage to our reputation and brand, and inability to provide our products and services to consumers in certain jurisdictions.
Additionally, changes in the laws and regulations that govern our collection, use, and disclosure of Member data could impose additional requirements with
respect to the retention and security of Member data, could limit our marketing activities, and have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
and operating results.

Cybersecurity risks could adversely affect our business and disrupt our operations.
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Threats to network and data security are increasingly diverse and sophisticated. Despite our efforts and processes to prevent breaches, our products and
services, as well as our servers, computer systems, and those of third parties that we use in our operations are vulnerable to cybersecurity risks, including
cyber-attacks such as viruses and worms, phishing attacks, denial-of-service attacks, physical or electronic break-ins, third-party or employee theft or
misuse, and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our servers and computer systems or those of third parties that we use in our operations,
which could lead to interruptions, delays, loss of critical data, unauthorized access to Member data, and loss of consumer confidence. In addition, we may be
the target of email scams that attempt to acquire personal information or company assets. Despite our efforts to create security barriers to such threats, we
may not be able to entirely mitigate these risks. Additionally, due to the current COVID-19 pandemic, there is an increased risk that we may experience
cybersecurity related incidents as a result of our employees, service providers, and third parties working remotely on less secure systems during government
mandated shelter-in-place orders. Any cyber-attack that attempts to obtain our or our Members’ data and assets, disrupt our service, or otherwise access our
systems, or those of third parties we use, if successful, could adversely affect our business, and financial condition and operating results, be expensive to
remedy, and damage our reputation. In addition, any such breaches may result in negative publicity, and adversely affect our brand, impacting demand for
our products and services, and could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We may be subject to warranty claims that could result in significant direct or indirect costs, or we could experience greater product returns than
expected, either of which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We generally provide a minimum 12-month limited warranty on all of our Connected Fitness Products. In addition, we permit returns of our Bike by first-time
purchasers for a full refund within 30 days of delivery. The occurrence of any material defects in our Connected Fitness Products could result in an increase
in returns or make us liable for damages and warranty claims in excess of our current reserves, which could result in an adverse effect on our business
prospects, liquidity, financial condition, and cash flows if returns or warranty claims were to materially exceed anticipated levels. Due to the current COVID-
19 pandemic, we may experience higher product returns as consumer discretionary spending decreases. Moreover, in light of changes we have made to our
delivery procedures in connection with the current COVID-19 outbreak, it is possible that warranty claims may increase above historical rates, and we may
be unable to satisfactorily validate and resolve warranty claims while the COVID-19 pandemic prevents us from performing in-home service appointments.
For example, because we are currently unable to resolve warranty claims through in-home service appointments, in some cases we have sent the Member a
replacement Bike frame and have requested that they hold the impaired Bike frame until a later date when we can safely retrieve it. In addition, we could
incur significant costs to correct any defects, warranty claims, or other problems, including costs related to product recalls. Any negative publicity related to
the perceived quality and safety of our products could affect our brand image, decrease consumer and Member confidence and demand, and adversely
affect our financial condition and operating results. Also, while our warranty is limited to repairs and returns, warranty claims may result in litigation, the
occurrence of which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

In addition to warranties supplied by us, we also offer the option for customers to purchase third-party extended warranty and services contracts in some
markets, which creates an ongoing performance obligation over the warranty period. Extended warranties are regulated in the United States on a state level
and are treated differently by state. Outside the United States, regulations for extended warranties vary from country to country. Changes in interpretation of
the insurance regulations or other laws and regulations concerning extended warranties on a federal, state, local, or international level may cause us to incur
costs or have additional regulatory requirements to meet in the future. Our failure to comply with past, present, and future similar laws could result in reduced
sales of our products, reputational damage, penalties, and other sanctions, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and
operating results.

We or our Subscribers may be subject to sales and other taxes, and we may be subject to liabilities on past sales for taxes, surcharges, and fees.

The application of indirect taxes, such as sales and use tax, subscription sales tax, value-added tax, provincial taxes, goods and services tax, business tax,
and gross receipt tax, to businesses like ours and to our Subscribers is a complex and evolving issue. Significant judgment is required to evaluate applicable
tax obligations. In many cases, the ultimate tax determination is uncertain because it is not clear how existing statutes apply to our business. One or more
states, the federal government, or other countries may seek to impose additional reporting, record-keeping, or indirect tax collection obligations on
businesses like ours that offer subscription services and other fitness offerings. New taxes could also require us to incur substantial costs to capture data
and collect and remit taxes. If such obligations were imposed, the additional costs associated with tax collection, remittance, and audit requirements could
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings, regulatory disputes, and governmental inquiries that could cause us to incur
significant expenses, divert our management’s attention, and materially harm our business, financial condition, and operating results.

From time to time, we may be subject to claims, lawsuits, government investigations, and other proceedings involving products liability, competition and
antitrust, intellectual property, privacy, consumer protection, securities, tax, labor and employment, commercial disputes, and other matters that could
adversely affect our business operations and financial condition. As we have grown, we have seen a rise in the number and significance of these disputes
and inquiries. Litigation and regulatory proceedings, and particularly the intellectual property infringement matters that we are currently facing or could face,
may be protracted and expensive, and the results are difficult to predict. Certain of these matters include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate
amounts of damages and include claims for injunctive relief. Additionally, our litigation costs could be significant. Adverse outcomes with respect to litigation
or any of these legal proceedings may result in significant settlement costs or judgments, penalties and fines, or require us to modify our products or
services, make content unavailable, or require us to stop offering certain features, all of which could negatively affect our membership and revenue growth.
See Note 13 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements and the section titled “—Legal Proceedings” in Part |, Item 3 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

The results of litigation, investigations, claims, and regulatory proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, and determining reserves for pending litigation
and other legal and regulatory matters requires significant judgment. There can be no assurance that our expectations will prove correct, and even if these
matters are resolved in our favor or without significant cash settlements, these matters, and the time and resources necessary to litigate or resolve them,
could harm our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Changes in how we market our products and services could adversely affect our marketing expenses and subscription levels.
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We use a broad mix of marketing and other brand-building measures to attract Members. We use traditional television and online advertising, as well as
third-party social media platforms such as Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram, as marketing tools. As television advertising, online, and social media platforms
continue to rapidly evolve or grow more competitive, we must continue to maintain a presence on these platforms and establish a presence on new or
emerging popular social media and advertising and marketing platforms. If we cannot cost effectively use these marketing tools, if we fail to promote our
products and services efficiently and effectively, or if our marketing campaigns attract negative media attention, our ability to acquire new Members and our
financial condition may suffer and the price of our Class A common stock could decline. In addition, an increase in the use of television, online, and social
media for product promotion and marketing may increase the burden on us to monitor compliance of such materials and increase the risk that such materials
could contain problematic product or marketing claims in violation of applicable regulations.

An economic downturn or economic uncertainty may adversely affect consumer discretionary spending and demand for our products and
services.

Our products and services may be considered discretionary items for consumers. Factors affecting the level of consumer spending for such discretionary
items include general economic conditions, and other factors, such as consumer confidence in future economic conditions, fears of recession, the availability
and cost of consumer credit, levels of unemployment, and tax rates. In particular, we believe that the current COVID-19 outbreak and its resulting global
macroeconomic impact may adversely affect consumer discretionary spending and, though demand for our Connected Fitness Products and services has
remained high due to government shelter-in-place orders, may result in decreased demand for our Connected Fitness Products in the long-term. In recent
years, the United States and other significant economic markets have experienced cyclical downturns and worldwide economic conditions remain uncertain.
As global economic conditions continue to be volatile or economic uncertainty remains, including due to the COVID-19 outbreak, trends in consumer
discretionary spending also remain unpredictable and subject to reductions. To date, our business has operated almost exclusively in a relatively strong
economic environment and, therefore, we cannot be sure the extent to which we may be affected by recessionary conditions. Unfavorable economic
conditions may lead consumers to delay or reduce purchases of our products and services and consumer demand for our products and services may not
grow as we expect. Our sensitivity to economic cycles and any related fluctuation in consumer demand for our products and services could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Covenants in the loan and security agreement governing our revolving credit facility may restrict our operations, and if we do not effectively
manage our business to comply with these covenants, our financial condition could be adversely impacted.

We entered into the Amended Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC, Goldman Sachs Lending
Partners LLC, and Silicon Valley Bank in June 2019, which amended and restated the loan and security agreement that we previously entered into in
November 2017, providing for a $250.0 million secured revolving line of credit. The term loan and revolving credit facility contains various restrictive
covenants, including, among other things, minimum liquidity and revenue requirements, restrictions on our ability to dispose of assets, make acquisitions or
investments, incur debt or liens, make distributions to our stockholders, or enter into certain types of related party transactions. These restrictions may
restrict our current and future operations, particularly our ability to respond to certain changes in our business or industry, or take future actions. Pursuant to
the agreement, we granted the parties thereto a security interest in substantially all of our assets. See Note 12 of the notes to our consolidated financial
statements and the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources
- Amended and Restated Credit Agreement” in Part Il, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our ability to meet these restrictive covenants can be impacted by events beyond our control and we may be unable to do so. Our loan and security
agreement provide that our breach or failure to satisfy certain covenants constitutes an event of default. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, our
lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under its debt agreements to be immediately due and payable. In addition, our lenders would have the
right to proceed against the assets we provided as collateral pursuant to the loan and security agreement. If the debt under our loan and security agreement
was to be accelerated, we may not have sufficient cash on hand or be able to sell sufficient collateral to repay it, which would have an immediate adverse
effect on our business and operating results. This could potentially cause us to cease operations and result in a complete loss of your investment in our
Class A common stock.

We may engage in merger and acquisition activities, which could require significant management attention, disrupt our business, dilute
stockholder value, and adversely affect our operating results.

As part of our business strategy, we have made or may in the future make investments in other companies, products, or technologies. For example, in June
2018, we acquired Neurotic Media to develop a proprietary music platform that our instructors use to curate class playlists, and in October 2019, we acquired
Tonic, one of our manufacturing partners. We may not be able to find suitable acquisition candidates and we may not be able to complete acquisitions on
favorable terms, if at all, in the future. If we do complete acquisitions, we may not ultimately strengthen our competitive position or achieve our goals, and
any acquisitions we complete could be viewed negatively by Members or investors. Moreover, an acquisition, investment, or business relationship may result
in unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures, including disrupting our ongoing operations, diverting management from their primary responsibilities,
subjecting us to additional liabilities, increasing our expenses, and adversely impacting our business, financial condition, and operating results. Moreover, we
may be exposed to unknown liabilities and the anticipated benefits of any acquisition, investment, or business relationship may not be realized, if, for
example, we fail to successfully integrate such acquisitions, or the technologies associated with such acquisitions, into our company.

To pay for any such acquisitions, we would have to use cash, incur debt, or issue equity securities, each of which may affect our financial condition or the
value of our capital stock and could result in dilution to our stockholders. If we incur more debt it would result in increased fixed obligations and could also
subject us to covenants or other restrictions that would impede our ability to manage our operations. Additionally, we may receive indications of interest from
other parties interested in acquiring some or all of our business. The time required to evaluate such indications of interest could require significant attention
from management, disrupt the ordinary functioning of our business, and could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating
results.
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We may require additional capital to support business growth and objectives, and this capital might not be available to us on reasonable terms, if
at all, and may result in stockholder dilution.

We expect that our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for the foreseeable future. However, we intend to
continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional capital to fund our business and to respond to competitive
challenges, including the need to promote our products and services, develop new products and services, enhance our existing products, services, and
operating infrastructure, and potentially to acquire complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or debt
financings to secure additional funds. There can be no assurance that such additional funding will be available on terms attractive to us, or at all. Our inability
to obtain additional funding when needed could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. If additional funds are
raised through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, holders of our Class A common stock could suffer significant dilution, and any new
shares we issue could have rights, preferences, and privileges superior to those of our Class A common stock. Any debt financing secured by us in the
future could involve restrictive covenants relating to our capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult
for us to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions.

We are subject to payment processing risk.

Our customers pay for our products and services using a variety of different payment methods, including credit and debit cards, gift cards, and online wallets.
We rely on internal systems as well as those of third parties to process payment. Acceptance and processing of these payment methods are subject to
certain rules and regulations and require payment of interchange and other fees. To the extent there are disruptions in our payment processing systems,
increases in payment processing fees, material changes in the payment ecosystem, such as large re-issuances of payment cards, delays in receiving
payments from payment processors, or changes to rules or regulations concerning payment processing, our revenue, operating expenses and results of
operation could be adversely impacted. We leverage our third-party payment processors to bill Subscribers on our behalf. If these third parties become
unwilling or unable to continue processing payments on our behalf, we would have to find alternative methods of collecting payments, which could adversely
impact Subscriber acquisition and retention. In addition, from time to time, we encounter fraudulent use of payment methods, which could impact our results
of operation and if not adequately controlled and managed could create negative consumer perceptions of our service.

Our ability to use our net operating loss to offset future taxable income may be subject to certain limitations.

As of June 30, 2020, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards, or NOLs, and state NOLs of approximately $191.1 million and $99.6 million,
respectively, due to prior period losses which if not utilized will begin to expire for federal and state tax purposes beginning in 2036 and 2021, respectively.
Realization of these NOLs depends on future income, and there is a risk that our existing NOLs could expire unused and be unavailable to offset future
income tax liabilities, which could adversely affect our operating results.

In general, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, a corporation that undergoes an “ownership change” is
subject to limitations on its ability to utilize its NOLs to offset future taxable income. We have undergone two ownership changes on November 30, 2015 and
April 18, 2017 and our NOLs arising before those dates are subject to one or more Section 382 limitations which may materially limit the use of such NOLs to
offset our future taxable income. In addition, our initial public offering, or IPO, as well as future changes in our stock ownership, the causes of which may be
outside of our control, could result in an additional ownership change under Section 382 of the Code. Our NOLs may also be impaired under state laws. In
addition, under the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, or Tax Act, tax losses generated in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 may be utilized to
offset no more than 80% of taxable income annually. This change may require us to pay federal income taxes in future years despite generating a loss for
federal income tax purposes. There is also a risk that due to regulatory changes, such as suspensions on the use of NOLs, or other unforeseen reasons, our
existing NOLs could expire or otherwise be unavailable to offset future income tax liabilities. On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security, or CARES Act, was signed into law. The CARES Act changes certain provisions of the Tax Act. Under the CARES Act, NOLs arising in taxable
years beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1, 2021 may be carried back to each of the five taxable years preceding the tax year of such
loss, but NOLs arising in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2020 may not be carried back. In addition, the CARES Act eliminates the limitation on
the deduction of NOLs to 80% of current year taxable income for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2021. It is uncertain if and to what extent various
states will conform to the Tax Act, as modified by the CARES Act. For these reasons, we may not be able to realize a tax benefit from the use of our NOLs,
whether or not we attain profitability.

We may face exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

While we have historically transacted in U.S. dollars with the majority of our Subscribers and suppliers, we have transacted in some foreign currencies, such
as the Euro, Canadian Dollar and U.K Pound Sterling, and may transact in more foreign currencies in the future. Further, certain of our manufacturing
agreements provide for fixed costs of our Connected Fitness Products and hardware in Taiwanese dollars but provide for payment in U.S. dollars based on
the then-current Taiwanese dollar to U.S. dollar spot rate. Accordingly, changes in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar can affect our
revenue and operating results. As a result of such foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, it could be more difficult to detect underlying trends in our
business and operating results. In addition, to the extent that fluctuations in currency exchange rates cause our operating results to differ from our
expectations or the expectations of our investors, the trading price of our Class A common stock could be lowered. We use derivative instruments, such as
foreign currency forward and option contracts, to hedge certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The use of such hedging
activities may not offset any or more than a portion of the adverse financial effects of unfavorable movements in foreign exchange rates over the limited time
the hedges are in place and may introduce additional risks if we are unable to structure effective hedges with such instruments.

We are subject to governmental export and import controls and economic sanction laws that could subject us to liability and impair our ability to
compete in international markets.
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The United States and various foreign governments have imposed controls, export license requirements, and restrictions on the import or export of certain
technologies. Our products may be subject to U.S. export controls, which may require submission of a product classification and annual or semi-annual
reports. Compliance with applicable regulatory requirements regarding the export of our products and services may create delays in the introduction of our
products and services in international markets, prevent our international Members from accessing our products and services, and, in some cases, prevent
the export of our products and services to some countries altogether.

Furthermore, U.S. export control laws and economic sanctions prohibit the provision of products and services to countries, governments, and persons
targeted by U.S. sanctions. Even though we take precautions to prevent our products from being provided to targets of U.S. sanctions, our products and
services, including our firmware updates, could be provided to those targets or provided by our Members. Any such provision could have negative
consequences, including government investigations, penalties, reputational harm. Our failure to obtain required import or export approval for our products
could harm our international and domestic sales and adversely affect our revenue.

We could be subject to future enforcement action with respect to compliance with governmental export and import controls and economic sanctions laws that
result in penalties, costs, and restrictions on export privileges that could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Failure to comply with anti-corruption and anti-money laundering laws, including the FCPA and similar laws associated with our activities outside
of the United States, could subject us to penalties and other adverse consequences.

We operate a global business and may have direct or indirect interactions with officials and employees of government agencies or state-owned or affiliated
entities. We are subject to the FCPA, the U.S. domestic bribery statute contained in 18 U.S.C. § 201, the U.S. Travel Act, the USA PATRIOT Act, the U.K.
Bribery Act, and possibly other anti-bribery and anti-money laundering laws in countries in which we conduct activities. These laws that prohibit companies
and their employees and third-party intermediaries from corruptly promising, authorizing, offering, or providing, directly or indirectly, improper payments or
anything of value to foreign government officials, political parties, and private-sector recipients for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business, directing
business to any person, or securing any advantage. In addition, U.S. public companies are required to maintain records that accurately and fairly represent
their transactions and have an adequate system of internal accounting controls. In many foreign countries, including countries in which we may conduct
business, it may be a local custom that businesses engage in practices that are prohibited by the FCPA or other applicable laws and regulations. We face
significant risks if we or any of our directors, officers, employees, agents or other partners or representatives fail to comply with these laws and governmental
authorities in the United States and elsewhere could seek to impose substantial civil and/or criminal fines and penalties which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, reputation, operating results and financial condition.

We have implemented an anti-corruption compliance program and policies, procedures and training designed to foster compliance with these laws, however,
our employees, contractors, and agents, and companies to which we outsource certain of our business operations, may take actions in violation of our
policies or applicable law. Any such violation could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, operating results and prospects.

Any violation of the FCPA, other applicable anti-corruption laws, or anti-money laundering laws could result in whistleblower complaints, adverse media
coverage, investigations, loss of export privileges, severe criminal or civil sanctions and, in the case of the FCPA, suspension or debarment from U.S.
government contracts, any of which could have a materially adverse effect on our reputation, business, operating results, and prospects. In addition,
responding to any enforcement action may result in a significant diversion of management’s attention and resources and significant defense costs and other
professional fees.

Changes in legislation in U.S. and foreign taxation of international business activities or the adoption of other tax reform policies, as well as the
application of such laws, could adversely impact our financial position and operating results.

Recent or future changes to U.S., U.K. and other foreign tax laws could impact the tax treatment of our foreign earnings. We generally conduct our
international operations through wholly owned subsidiaries, branches, or representative offices and report our taxable income in various jurisdictions
worldwide based upon our business operations in those jurisdictions. Further, we are in the process of implementing an international structure that aligns
with our financial and operational objectives as evaluated based on our international markets, expansion plans, and operational needs for headcount and
physical infrastructure outside the United States. The intercompany relationships between our legal entities are subject to complex transfer pricing
regulations administered by taxing authorities in various jurisdictions. Although we believe we are compliant with applicable transfer pricing and other tax
laws in the United States, the United Kingdom, and other relevant countries, due to changes in such laws and rules, we may have to modify our international
structure in the future, which will incur costs, may increase our worldwide effective tax rate, and may adversely affect our financial position and operating
results. In addition, significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes.

During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. For example, our
effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have lower statutory rates and higher than
anticipated in countries where we have higher statutory rates, by changes in foreign currency exchange rates, or by changes in the relevant tax, accounting,
and other laws, regulations, principles, and interpretations. As we operate in numerous taxing jurisdictions, the application of tax laws can be subject to
diverging and sometimes conflicting interpretations by tax authorities of these jurisdictions. It is not uncommon for taxing authorities in different countries to
have conflicting views with respect to, among other things, the manner in which the arm’s-length standard is applied for transfer pricing purposes, or with
respect to the valuation of intellectual property.

If U.S., U.K., or other foreign tax laws further change, if our current or future structures and arrangements are challenged by a taxing authority, or if we are
unable to appropriately adapt the manner in which we operate our business, we may have to undertake further costly modifications to our international
structure and our tax liabilities and operating results may be adversely affected.
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The requirements of being a public company, including maintaining adequate internal control over our financial and management systems, may
strain our resources, divert management’s attention, and affect our ability to attract and retain executive management and qualified board
members.

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the rules subsequently
implemented by the SEC, the rules and regulations of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC and other applicable securities rules and
regulations. Compliance with these rules and regulations has increased our legal and financial compliance costs and strains our financial and management
systems, internal controls, and employees.

The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly, and current reports with respect to our business and operating results.
Moreover, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures, and internal control, over
financial reporting. We will be required to make a formal assessment and provide an annual management report on the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting beginning with our annual report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. In order to maintain and, if required, improve our disclosure
controls and procedures, and internal control over, financial reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight may be
required. In the course of preparing our financial statements for fiscal 2018, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.
If, in the future, we have material weaknesses or deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting, we may not detect errors on a timely basis and
our consolidated financial statements may be materially misstated. Effective internal control is necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports and is
important to prevent fraud.

In addition, we ceased to be an "emerging growth company" on June 30, 2020, and therefore, pursuant to Sections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
we will be required to evaluate and determine the effectiveness, provide a management report and that we will be subject to attestation by our independent
registered public accounting firm of our internal control over financial reporting beginning with our annual report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. We
expect to incur significant expenses and devote substantial management effort toward ensuring compliance with the auditor attestation requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. As a result of the complexity involved in complying with the rules and regulations applicable to public companies, our
management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could harm our business, operating results, and financial condition. Although
we have already hired additional employees to assist us in complying with these requirements, our finance team is small and we may need to hire more
employees in the future, or engage outside consultants, which will increase our operating expenses.

The new rules and regulations applicable to public companies, and stockholder litigation brought against recently public companies, have made it more
expensive for us to obtain and maintain director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to incur substantially higher costs to obtain and
maintain the same or similar coverage. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members on our board of directors,
or our Board of Directors, and qualified executive officers.

In connection with our preparation of our annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, we and our independent registered public
accounting firm identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. Any failure to maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting could harm us.

In the course of preparing our financial statements for fiscal 2018, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weaknesses identified
related to information technology general controls, controls to address segregation of certain accounting duties, timely reconciliation and analysis of certain
key accounts and the review of journal entries. We have concluded that these material weaknesses arose because, as a private company, we did not have
the necessary business processes, systems, personnel and related internal controls necessary to satisfy the accounting and financial reporting requirements
of a public company.

During fiscal 2020, we completed the remediation measures related to these material weaknesses and concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of June 30, 2020. Completion of remediation does not provide assurance that our remediation or other controls will continue to
operate properly. If we are unable to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting or disclosure controls and procedures, our ability to record,
process and report financial information accurately, and to prepare financial statements within required time periods could be adversely affected, which could
subject us to litigation or investigations requiring management resources and payment of legal and other expenses, negatively affect investor confidence in
our financial statements and adversely impact our stock price. If we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or when
required in the future, if our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to express an unqualified opinion as to the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, the market price of our Class A
common stock could be adversely affected and we could become subject to litigation or investigations by the stock exchange on which our securities are
listed, the SEC or other regulatory authorities, which could require additional financial and management resources.

Furthermore, we cannot assure you that the measures we have taken to date, and actions we may take in the future, will be sufficient to remediate the
control deficiencies that led to our material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting or that they will prevent or avoid potential future
material weaknesses. Our current controls and any new controls that we develop may become inadequate because of changes in conditions in our business.
Further, weaknesses in our disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting may be discovered in the future. Any failure to develop or
maintain effective controls or any difficulties encountered in their implementation or improvement could harm our operating results or cause us to fail to meet
our reporting obligations and may result in a restatement of our financial statements for prior periods.

Because we ceased to be an "emerging growth company" on June 30, 2020, our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to formally
attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting beginning with our first annual report as an accelerated or large accelerated filer,
which we currently anticipate to be for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. At such time, our independent registered public accounting firm may issue a
report that is adverse in the event it is not satisfied with the level at which our internal control over financial
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reporting is documented, designed, or operating. Any failure to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting also could adversely
affect the results of periodic management evaluations and annual independent registered public accounting firm attestation reports regarding the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting that we will eventually be required to include in our periodic reports that are filed with the SEC.
Ineffective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported
financial and other information, which would likely have a negative effect on the trading price of our Class A common stock. In addition, if we are unable to
continue to meet these requirements, we may not be able to remain listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market.

If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies prove to be incorrect, our operating results could be adversely affected.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as provided in the section titled “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in Part 2, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The results of these estimates form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets, liabilities, and stockholders’ equity/deficit, and the amount of revenue and expenses that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Significant assumptions and estimates used in preparing our consolidated financial statements include those
related to revenue related reserves, the realizability of inventory, content costs for past use reserve, fair value measurements including common stock
valuations, the incremental borrowing rate associated with lease liabilities, useful lives of property and equipment, product warranty, goodwill and finite-lived
intangible assets, accounting for income taxes, stock-based compensation expense and commitments and contingencies. Our operating results may be
adversely affected if our assumptions change or if actual circumstances differ from those in our assumptions, which could cause our operating results to fall
below the expectations of securities analysts and investors, resulting in a decline in the price of our Class A common stock.

Our reported financial results may be negatively impacted by changes in GAAP.

GAAP is a combination of accepted ways of recording and reporting accounting information and authoritative standards set by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board, or FASB, the SEC and various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate accounting principles. A change in these principles
or interpretations could have a significant effect on our reported financial results, and may even affect the reporting of transactions completed before the
announcement or effectiveness of a change.

The forecasts of market growth may prove to be inaccurate, and even if the market in which we compete achieves the forecasted growth, we
cannot assure you that our business will grow at a similar rate, if at all.

Growth forecasts are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not prove to be accurate. The forecasts
relating to the expected growth in the connected fitness and wellness market, including estimates based on our own internal survey data, may prove to be
inaccurate. Even if the market experiences the growth we forecast, we may not grow our business at a similar rate, or at all. Our growth is subject to many
factors, including our success in implementing our business strategy, which is subject to many risks and uncertainties.

Our management team has limited experience managing a public company.

Most members of our management team have limited experience managing a publicly traded company, interacting with public company investors, and
complying with the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies. We are subject to significant regulatory oversight and reporting obligations
under the federal securities laws and the continuous scrutiny of securities analysts and investors. These obligations and constituents require significant
attention from our senior management and could divert their attention away from the day-to-day management of our business, which could adversely affect
our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Our business is subject to the risk of earthquakes, fire, power outages, floods, public health crises, including the current COVID-19 pandemic,
and other catastrophic events, and to interruption by man-made problems such as terrorism.

Our business is vulnerable to damage or interruption from earthquakes, fires, floods, power losses, telecommunications failures, terrorist attacks, acts of war,
human errors, break-ins, public health crises, including the COVID-19 pandemic, and similar events. The third-party systems and operations and contract
manufacturers we rely on are subject to similar risks. Our insurance policies may not cover losses from these events or may provide insufficient
compensation that does not cover our total losses. For example, a significant natural disaster, such as an earthquake, fire, or flood, could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results, and our insurance coverage may be insufficient to compensate us for losses that may occur.
Another example is the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on major construction projects, including our New York headquarters and London studio projects,
both of which have been delayed due to local government orders. Acts of terrorism, which may be targeted at metropolitan areas that have higher population
density than rural areas, could also cause disruptions in our or our suppliers’ and contract manufacturers’ businesses or the economy as a whole. We may
not have sufficient protection or recovery plans in some circumstances, such as natural disasters affecting locations that store significant inventory of our
products, that house our servers, or from which we generate content. As we rely heavily on our computer and communications systems, and the internet to
conduct our business and provide high-quality customer service, these disruptions could negatively impact our ability to run our business and either directly
or indirectly disrupt suppliers’ and our contract manufacturers’ businesses, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and
operating results.

Regulations related to conflict minerals may cause us to incur additional expenses and could limit the supply and increase the costs of certain
metals used in the manufacturing of our products.

We are subject to requirements under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, which will require us to conduct due
diligence on and disclose whether or not our products contain conflict minerals. The implementation of these requirements could adversely
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affect the sourcing, availability, and pricing of the materials used in the manufacture of components used in our products. In addition, we will incur additional
costs to comply with the disclosure requirements, including costs related to conducting diligence procedures to determine the sources of minerals that may
be used or necessary to the production of our products and, if applicable, potential changes to products, processes, or sources of supply as a consequence
of such due diligence activities. It is also possible that we may face reputational harm if we determine that certain of our products contain minerals not
determined to be conflict free or if we are unable to alter our products, processes, or sources of supply to avoid such materials.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Class A Common Stock

The stock price of our Class A common stock has been, and will likely continue to be, volatile and you could lose all or part of your investment.

The market price of our Class A common stock has been, and will likely continue to be, volatile. Since shares of our Class A common stock were sold in our
IPO in September 2019 at a price of $29.00 per share, our stock price has ranged from 17.70 to $77.80 through August 31, 2020. In addition, the trading
prices of securities of technology companies in general have been highly volatile. Moreover, while the market price of the common stock of many technology
companies have fallen significantly since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the trading price of our Class A common has increased. There are no
assurances that the trading price of our Class A common stock will continue at this level for any period of time and the extent to which, and for how long, the
COVID-19 pandemic may impact the market price of our Class A common stock is unclear. Moreover, the trading price of our Class A common stock could
experience a significant decrease once the longer-term scope and impact of COVID-19 is better understood.

In addition to the factors discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the market price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate significantly in
response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:

+ the COVID-19 outbreak and any associated economic downturn;
» overall performance of the equity markets and the performance of technology companies in particular;

» variations in our operating results, cash flows, and other financial metrics and non-financial metrics, and how those results compare to analyst
expectations;

» changes in the financial projections we may provide to the public or our failure to meet these projections;

» failure of securities analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of us, changes in financial estimates by any securities analysts who follow our
company, or our failure to meet these estimates or the expectations of investors;

» recruitment or departure of key personnel;
+ the economy as a whole and market conditions in our industry;

* negative publicity related to problems in our manufacturing or the real or perceived quality of our products, as well as the failure to timely launch
new products or services that gain market acceptance;

« rumors and market speculation involving us or other companies in our industry;

* announcements by us or our competitors of new products, services, features and content, significant technical innovations, acquisitions, strategic
partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments;

* new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws or regulations applicable to our business;

+ lawsuits threatened or filed against us, litigation involving our industry, or both;

« developments or disputes concerning our or other parties’ products, services, or intellectual property rights;

» other events or factors, including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism, or responses to these events;

» the expiration of contractual lock-up or market standoff agreements; and

» sales of shares of our Class A common stock by us or our stockholders.

In addition, the stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity
securities of many companies. Stock prices of many companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of
those companies. In the past, stockholders have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market volatility. If we were to become
involved in securities litigation, it could subject us to substantial costs, divert resources and the attention of management from our business, and adversely
affect our business.

Sales of a substantial amount of our Class A common stock in the public markets, or the perception that such sales might occur, could cause the
price of our Class A common stock to decline.

The market price of our Class A common stock could decline as a result of sales of a substantial number of shares of our Class A common stock in the
public market in the near future, or the perception that these sales might occur. Many of our existing security holders have substantial unrecognized gains on
the value of the equity they hold, and may take, or attempt to take, steps to sell, directly or indirectly, their shares or otherwise secure, or limit the risk to, the
value of their unrecognized gains on those shares.

There were a total of 288,057,112 shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2020. All shares of our Class
A common stock and Class B common stock are freely tradable, except for any shares purchased by our “affiliates” as defined in Rule 144 under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act.

Further, certain holders of our common stock have rights, subject to some conditions, to require us to file registration statements for the public resale of the
Class A common stock issuable upon conversion of such shares or to include such shares in registration statements that we may file for us or other
stockholders. Sales of our shares pursuant to registration rights may make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in
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the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate. These sales also could cause the trading price of our Class A common stock to fall and make it
more difficult for you to sell shares of our Class A common stock.

In addition, as of June 30, 2020, we had options outstanding that, if fully exercised, would result in the issuance of 55,745,237 shares of Class B common
stock and 11,073,623 shares of Class A common stock. Subject to the satisfaction of applicable vesting requirements, the shares issued upon exercise of
outstanding stock options will be available for immediate resale in the open market.

The dual class structure of our common stock has the effect of concentrating voting control with our directors, executive officers, and certain
other holders of our Class B common stock; this will limit or preclude your ability to influence corporate matters, including the election of
directors and the approval of any change of control transaction.

Our Class B common stock has 20 votes per share and our Class A common stock has one vote per share. As of June 30, 2020, our directors, executive
officers, and holders of more than 5% of our common stock, and their respective affiliates, held a majority of the voting power of our capital stock. Because of
the twenty-to-one voting ratio between our Class B and Class A common stock, the holders of our Class B common stock collectively control a substantial
majority of the combined voting power of our common stock and therefore are able to control all matters submitted to our stockholders for approval until the
earlier of (i) the date specified by a vote of the holders of 66 2/3% of the then outstanding shares of Class B common stock, (ii) ten years from the closing of
the IPO, and (iii) the date the shares of Class B common stock cease to represent at least 1% of all outstanding shares of our common stock. This
concentrated control limits or precludes your ability to influence corporate matters for the foreseeable future, including the election of directors, amendments
of our organizational documents, and any merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of our assets, or other major corporate transaction requiring
stockholder approval. In addition, this may prevent or discourage unsolicited acquisition proposals or offers for our capital stock that you may feel are in your
best interest as one of our stockholders.

Future transfers by holders of Class B common stock will generally result in those shares converting to Class A common stock, subject to limited exceptions,
such as certain permitted transfers effected for estate planning purposes. The conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stock will have the
effect, over time, of increasing the relative voting power of those holders of Class B common stock who retain their shares in the long term.

The dual class structure of our common stock may adversely affect the trading market for our Class A common stock.

Certain stock index providers, such as S&P Dow Jones, exclude companies with multiple classes of shares of common stock from being added to certain
stock indices, including the S&P 500. In addition, several stockholder advisory firms and large institutional investors oppose the use of multiple class
structures. As a result, the dual class structure of our common stock may prevent the inclusion of our Class A common stock in such indices, may cause
stockholder advisory firms to publish negative commentary about our corporate governance practices or otherwise seek to cause us to change our capital
structure, and may result in large institutional investors not purchasing shares of our Class A common stock. Any exclusion from stock indices could result in
a less active trading market for our Class A common stock. Any actions or publications by stockholder advisory firms or institutional investors critical of our
corporate governance practices or capital structure could also adversely affect the value of our Class A common stock.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, about our business, the price of our
Class A common stock and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock depends in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our
business, our market, and our competitors. We do not have control over these securities analysts. If industry analysts cease coverage of us, the trading price
for our Class A common stock would be negatively affected. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our Class A common stock or publish
inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our Class A common stock price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease
coverage of us or fail to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our Class A common stock could decrease, which might cause our Class A common
stock price and trading volume to decline.

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Additionally, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is limited by the restrictions under the terms of our loan and security agreement. We anticipate
that for the foreseeable future we will retain all of our future earnings for use in the development of our business and for general corporate purposes. Any
determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors. Accordingly, investors must rely on sales of their Class A
common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any future gains on their investments.

Provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us, which may be beneficial to our stockholders, more
difficult and may limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management.

Provisions in our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may have the effect of delaying or preventing a merger, acquisition
or other change of control of our company that the stockholders may consider favorable. In addition, because our Board of Directors is responsible for
appointing the members of our management team, these provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our
current management by making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our Board of Directors. Among other things, our restated certificate of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws include provisions that:

+ provide that our Board of Directors is classified into three classes of directors with staggered three-year terms;
+  permit the Board of Directors to establish the number of directors and fill any vacancies and newly-created directorships;
*  require super-majority voting to amend some provisions in our restated certificate of incorporation and restated bylaws;
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» authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that our Board of Directors could use to implement a stockholder rights plan;

«  provide that only the chairman of our Board of Directors, our chief executive officer, or a majority of our Board of Directors will be authorized to call
a special meeting of stockholders;

+ eliminate the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;

«  prohibit cumulative voting;

+ provide that directors may only be removed “for cause” and only with the approval of two-thirds of our stockholders;

» provide for a dual class common stock structure in which holders of our Class B common stock may have the ability to control the outcome of
matters requiring stockholder approval, even if they own significantly less than a majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock, including
the election of directors and significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets;

+  prohibit stockholder action by written consent, which requires all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders;

+ provide that the Board of Directors is expressly authorized to make, alter, or repeal our bylaws; and

» establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our Board of Directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by
stockholders at annual stockholder meetings.

Moreover, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL, may discourage, delay, or prevent a change in control of our company. Section
203 imposes certain restrictions on mergers, business combinations, and other transactions between us and holders of 15% or more of our common stock.

Our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain exclusive forum provisions for certain claims, which may limit
our stockholders' ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers, or employees.

Our restated certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, to the fullest extent permitted by law, will be the
exclusive forum for any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, any action asserting a breach of fiduciary duty, any action asserting a claim
against us arising pursuant to the DGCL, our restated certificate of incorporation, or our amended and restated bylaws, or any action asserting a claim
against us that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine.

Moreover, Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability
created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. In April 2020, we amended and restated our restated bylaws to provide that the federal
district courts of the United States of America will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint asserting a cause
of action arising under the Securities Act (a Federal Forum Provision). Our decision to adopt a Federal Forum Provision followed a decision by the Supreme
Court of the State of Delaware holding that such provisions are facially valid under Delaware law. While there can be no assurance that federal or state
courts will follow the holding of the Delaware Supreme Court or determine that the Federal Forum Provision should be enforced in a particular case,
application of the Federal Forum Provision means that suits brought by our stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act must be
brought in federal court and cannot be brought in state court.

Section 27 of the Exchange Act creates exclusive federal jurisdiction over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or
the rules and regulations thereunder. In addition, neither the exclusive forum provision nor the Federal Forum Provision applies to suits brought to enforce
any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act. Accordingly, actions by our stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the
rules and regulations thereunder must be brought in federal court.

Our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the federal securities laws and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in any of our securities shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to
our exclusive forum provisions, including the Federal Forum Provision. These provisions may limit a stockholders’ ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum of
their choosing for disputes with us or our directors, officers, or employees, which may discourage lawsuits against us and our directors, officers, and
employees. Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum provision contained in our restated certificate of incorporation and/or amended and
restated bylaws to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions,
which could harm our business, financial condition, and operating results.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in New York City, where we occupy facilities totaling approximately 65,000 rentable square feet under a lease that
expires in 2027. We use these facilities primarily for technology, product design, research and development, sales and marketing, supply chain and logistics,
finance, legal, human resources, and information technology. In November 2018, we entered into a lease agreement for our planned new corporate
headquarters in New York City, which we intend to begin to occupy during Fall of 2020 and which consists of approximately 312,000 square feet under a 16-
year lease. We also have Member support and sales teams located in Plano, Texas, where we occupy approximately 28,000 rentable square feet under a
lease that expires in 2023.

In addition to our corporate headquarters and regional campus, in December 2017, we entered into a twenty-year lease for approximately 36,000 rentable
square feet in New York City, which includes four production studios and adjacent office space where we produce our content and offer fitness classes. In
September 2018, we entered into a lease for 11 Floral Street in London, which will serve as our content production hub for Europe and has 31,150 rentable
square feet. We expect to begin production from this London location in the Summer of 2021. We currently operate a temporary production studio in London
where we produce local indoor cycling content. In October 2019, we acquired a manufacturing plant in Taiwan, as part of the acquisition of Tonic Fitness
Technology. We are currently constructing a second manufacturing plant in Shin Ji, Taiwan, and expect construction to be complete by the end of the second
quarter of fiscal 2021. We also lease office space, warehouses and showrooms for our products in various locations in the United States, the United
Kingdom, Germany, and Canada as of June 30, 2020.

We intend to procure additional space as we add employees and expand geographically. We believe that our facilities are adequate to meet our needs for
the immediate future and that suitable additional space will be available to accommodate any expansion of our operations as needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of legal proceedings, see Note 13 in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included in Part Il, ltem 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Further, we are and, from time to time, we ma?/ become, involved in legal proceedings or be subject to claims arising in the ordinary course of our business.
We are not presently a party to any other legal proceedings that in the opinion of our management, if determined adversely to us, would individually or taken
together have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial condition, or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information for Common Stock

Our Class A common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "PTON" on September 26, 2019. Prior to that date, there
was no public trading market for our Class A common stock.

Our Class B common stock is not listed or traded on any stock exchange.

Holders of Record

As of August 31, 2020, there were 27 registered holders of our Class A common stock and 191 registered holders of our Class B common stock. Because
many of our shares of Class A common stock are held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total
number of stockholders represented by these record holders.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We do not expect to pay dividends on our capital stock for the foreseeable future.
Instead, we anticipate that all of our earnings for the foreseeable future will be used for the operation and growth of our business. Any future determination to
declare cash dividends would be subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors and would depend upon various factors, including our operating results,
financial condition, and capital requirements, restrictions that may be imposed by applicable law, and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120
days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Performance Graph

The following performance graph shall not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, nor shall
such information be incorporated by reference into any of our other filings under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act.

The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our Class A common stock with the cumulative total return on the Standard & Poor’s
500 Index and the Nasdaq Composite Index. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 in our common stock at the market close on September 26,
2019, which was our initial trading day. Data for the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and the Nasdag Composite Index assume reinvestment of dividends.

The comparisons in the graph below are based upon historical data and are not indicative of, nor intended to forecast, future performance of our common
stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

250.00
200.00
150.00
A
100.00 ———-"/N/__/
50.00

9/30/19 10/31/19 11/30/19 12/31/19 1/31/20 2/29/20 3/31/20 4/30/20 5/31/20 6/30/20

—— Nasdaqg Composite — S&P 500 Peloton Interactive, Inc. Class A - Price

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
In April, 2020, we issued a restricted stock award for 402,714 shares of our Class A common stock to an accredited investor in connection with a strategic
business partnership. The shares were issued in exchange for services to be rendered.
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Use of Proceeds
On September 25, 2019, our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (Reg. No. 333-233482), was declared effective in connection with the IPO of
our Class A common stock.

There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our IPO as described in the Prospectus relating to that offering dated
September 25, 2019.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The table below provides information with respect to recent repurchases of unvested shares of our common stock:

Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of
Purchased as part of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Shares Average Price Paid Publicly Announced Plans ~ Purchased Under the
Period Purchased(" per Share or Programs Plans or Programs
April 1 - April 30, 2020 13,154 $ 3.28 — —
May 1 - May 31, 2020 0% — — —
June 1 - June 30, 2020 208 $ 14.59 — —

(1) Certain of our shares of common stock held by employees and service providers are subject to vesting. Unvested shares are subject to a right of repurchase by us in the event the holder of such
shares is no longer employed by or providing services for us. All shares in the above table were shares repurchased as a result of our exercising this right and not pursuant to a publicly announced plan
or program.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data

The following tables provide our historical selected consolidated financial and other data for the periods indicated. We have derived the selected
consolidated statement of operations data for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019 from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have derived the
selected consolidated statement of operations data for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 and the selected consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30,
2018 and 2017 from our audited consolidated financial statements, which are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following selected
consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected consolidated financial
data in this section are not intended to replace our audited financial statements. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of our results in any
future period.

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2020 2019 2018 2017
(in millions, except share and per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue
Connected Fitness Products $ 1,462.2 $ 733.9 $ 354.7 $ 186.2
Subscription 363.7 181.1 80.3 32.5
Total revenue 1,825.9 915.0 435.0 218.6
Cost of revenue
Connected Fitness Products 833.5 427.8 199.9 115.4
Subscription 155.7 103.7 45.5 29.3
Total cost of revenue 989.1 531.4 2454 144.7
Gross profit 836.7 383.6 189.6 73.9
Total operating expenses 917.6 585.8 237.1 144.7
Loss from Operations (80.8) (202.3) (47.5) (70.7)
Net loss $ (71.6) $ (195.6) $ 479 $ (71.1)
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and
diluted $ (032) $ (10.72) $ (2.18) $ (5.97)
Other Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(™ $ 117.7 $ (713) % (304) % (51.8)
Adjusted EBITDA Margin(" 6.4 % (7.8)% (7.0)% (23.7)%
Subscription Contribution® $ 2321 $ 91.9 $ 38.0 $ 4.4
Subscription Contribution Margin®® 63.8 % 50.8 % 47.5 % 13.5 %

(1) Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are non-GAAP financial measures that our management uses to assess our operating performance and the operating leverage in our business. See

the section titled “—Non-GAAP Financial Measures—Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin” for information regarding our use of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin and a
reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA.

(2) Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin are non-GAAP financial measures that our management uses to measure our ability to scale and leverage the costs of our Connected
Fitness Subscriptions. See the section titled “—Non-GAAP Financial Measures—Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin” for information regarding our use of Subscription
Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin and a reconciliation of Subscription Contribution to subscription gross profit.

June 30,
2020 2019 2018 2017
(in millions)
Balance Sheet
Total assets $ 2,981.8 $ 8645 $ 2712 $ 198.7
Long term lease liability $ 508.2 $ — 3 — 3 —
Redeemable convertible preferred stock $ — % 9411  $ 4063 $ 406.3

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
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In addition to our results determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP, we believe the following
non-GAAP financial measures are useful in evaluating our operating performance.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin

We calculate Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) adjusted to exclude: other (income) expense, net; provision for income taxes; depreciation and
amortization expense; stock-based compensation expense; transaction costs; certain litigation expenses, consisting of legal settlements and related fees for
specific proceedings that arise outside of the ordinary course of our business; the ground lease expense related to build-to-suit lease obligations under ASC
840, and specific non-recurring costs associated with COVID-19. Adjusted EBITDA Margin is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by total revenue.

We use Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin as measures of operating performance and the operating leverage in our business. We believe that
these non-GAAP financial measures are useful to investors for period-to-period comparisons of our business and in understanding and evaluating our
operating results for the following reasons:

* Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are widely used by investors and securities analysts to measure a company’s operating
performance without regard to items such as stock-based compensation expense, depreciation and amortization expense, other (income) expense,
net, and provision for income taxes that can vary substantially from company to company depending upon their financing, capital structures, and the
method by which assets were acquired;

*  Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin in conjunction with financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP
for planning purposes, including the preparation of our annual operating budget, as a measure of our core operating results and the effectiveness of
our business strategy, and in evaluating our financial performance; and

* Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin provide consistency and comparability with our past financial performance, facilitate period-to-
period comparisons of our core operating results, and also facilitate comparisons with other peer companies, many of which use similar non-GAAP
financial measures to supplement their GAAP results.

Our use of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin have limitations as analytical tools, and you should not consider these measures in isolation or
as substitutes for analysis of our financial results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are, or may in the future be, as follows:

»  Although depreciation and amortization expense are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be replaced in the
future, and Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin do not reflect cash capital expenditure requirements for such replacements or for new
capital expenditure requirements;

+  Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin exclude stock-based compensation expense, which has recently been, and will continue to be for
the foreseeable future, a significant recurring expense for our business and an important part of our compensation strategy;

* Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin do not reflect: (1) changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs; (2) interest
expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments on our debt, which reduces cash available to us; or (3) tax
payments that may represent a reduction in cash available to us;

* Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin do not reflect certain litigation expenses, consisting of legal settlements and related fees for
specific proceedings, that arise outside of the ordinary course of our business;

* Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin do not reflect the non-cash ground lease expense related to our new corporate headquarters lease
whereby we are considered, for accounting purposes only, the owner of the construction project under ASC 840;

+ Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin do not reflect transaction costs related to acquisitions;

* Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin do not reflect incremental costs associated with COVID-19, which consist of hazard pay for field
operations employees; and

* The expenses and other items that we exclude in our calculation of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin may differ from the expenses
and other items, if any, that other companies may exclude from Adjusted EBITDA when they report their operating results and we may, in the future,
exclude other significant, unusual or non-recurring expenses or other items from these financial measures.

Because of these limitations, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin should be considered along with other operating and financial performance
measures presented in accordance with GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net loss, the most directly comparable financial measure prepared in accordance with
GAAP, for each of the periods indicated:

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)

Net loss $ (71.6) $ (1956) $ (47.9)
Adjusted to exclude the following:
Other (income) expense, net (12.4) (6.7) 0.3
Income tax expense 3.3 0.1 0.1
Depreciation and amortization expense 40.2 21.7 6.6
Stock-based compensation expense 88.8 89.5 8.5
Litigation and settlement expenses 60.1 121 1.5
Other adjustment items @ 9.4 7.6 0.5
Adjusted EBITDA $ 177  $ (71.3) § (30:4)
Adjusted EBITDA Margin 6.4 % (7.8)% (7.0)%

(1) Included in net loss are content costs for past use as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Content costs for past use (") $ 16 $ 164 $ 14.5

(1) From time-to-time, we execute music royalty agreements with various music rights holders. As part of these go-forward license agreements, we may also enter into agreements whereby we are
released from all potential licensor claims regarding our alleged past use of copyrighted material in our content in exchange for a mutually-agreed payment. We refer to these payments as content costs
for past use. Included in Adjusted EBITDA are content costs for past use. These costs had a negative basis point impact on Adjusted EBITDA Margin of 9 bps for the year ended June 30, 2020, and 180
bps and 333 bps for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(2) Includes incremental costs associated with COVID-19 of $8.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the ground lease expense related to build-to-suit lease obligations under ASC 840 of $7.2
million for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin

We define Subscription Contribution as subscription revenue less cost of subscription revenue, adjusted to exclude from cost of subscription revenue,
depreciation and amortization expense, and stock-based compensation expense. Subscription Contribution Margin is calculated by dividing Subscription
Contribution by subscription revenue.

We use Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin to measure our ability to scale and leverage the costs of our Connected Fitness
Subscriptions. We believe that these non-GAAP financial measures are useful to investors for period-to-period comparisons of our business and in
understanding and evaluating our operating results because our management uses Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin in
conjunction with financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP for planning purposes, including the preparation of our annual operating budget, as
a measure of our core operating results and the effectiveness of our business strategy, and in evaluating our financial performance.

Our use of Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin have limitations as analytical tools, and you should not consider these in isolation
or as substitutes for analysis of our financial results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are as follows:

»  Although depreciation and amortization expense are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be replaced in the
future, and Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin do not reflect cash capital expenditure requirements for such
replacements or for new capital expenditure requirements; and

»  Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin exclude stock-based compensation expense, which has recently been, and will
continue to be for the foreseeable future, a significant recurring expense for our business and an important part of our compensation strategy.

Because of these limitations, Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin should be considered along with other operating and financial
performance measures presented in accordance with GAAP.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Subscription Contribution to subscription gross profit, the most directly comparable financial measure
prepared in accordance with GAAP, for each of the periods indicated:
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)

Subscription Revenue $ 363.7 $ 181.1 $ 80.3
Less: Cost of Subscription ™ 155.7 103.7 455
Subscription Gross Profit $ 208.0 $ 774 $ 34.7
Subscription Gross Margin 57.2 % 42.7 % 43.3 %
Add back:

Depreciation and amortization expense $ 16.6 $ 11.3 $ 2.8

Stock-based compensation expense 7.5 3.2 0.5
Subscription Contribution $ 232.1 $ 919 $ 38.0
Subscription Contribution Margin 63.8 % 50.8 % 47.5 %

(1) Included in cost of subscription are content costs for past use as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Content costs for past use () $ 16 $ 164 $ 14.5

(1) From time-to-time, we execute music royalty agreements with various music rights holders. As part of these go-forward license agreements, we may also enter into agreements whereby we are
released from all potential licensor claims regarding our alleged past use of copyrighted material in our content in exchange for a mutually-agreed payment. We refer to these payments as content costs
for past use. Included in Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin are content costs for past use. These costs had a negative basis point impact on Subscription Contribution
Margin of 44 bps for the year ended June 30, 2020 and 908 bps and 1,805 bps for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. As discussed in the section titled "Special Note Regarding Forward
Looking Statements," the following discussion and analysis contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions
that, if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward looking
statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include, but are not limited to, those identified below and those discussed in the
section titled "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

A discussion regarding our financial condition and results of operation for the year ended June 30, 2020 compared to the year ended June 30, 2019 is
presented below. A discussion regarding our financial condition and results of operations for the year ended June 30, 2019 compared to the year ended
June 30, 2018 is included under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our prospectus for our IPO,
which was filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) on September 26, 2019.

Overview

Peloton is the largest interactive fitness platform in the world with a loyal community of over 3.1 million Members as of June 30, 2020. We pioneered
connected, technology-enabled fitness, and the streaming of immersive, instructor-led boutique classes to our Members anytime, anywhere. We make
fitness entertaining, approachable, effective, and convenient while fostering social connections that encourage our Members to be the best versions of
themselves. We define a Member as any individual who has a Peloton account through a paid Connected Fitness Subscription, or a paid Peloton Digital
subscription.

Our Connected Fitness Product offerings currently include the Peloton Bike, launched in 2014, and the Peloton Tread, launched in 2018. Our revenue is
generated primarily from the sale of our Connected Fitness Products and associated recurring subscription revenue. We have experienced significant growth
in sales of our Connected Fitness Products, which, when combined with our low Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn has led to significant growth
in Connected Fitness Subscriptions. From fiscal 2019 to fiscal 2020, total revenue grew 100%, and our Connected Fitness Subscription base grew 113%.

Our compelling financial profile is characterized by high growth, strong retention, recurring revenue, margin expansion, and efficient customer acquisition.
Our low Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn, together with our high Subscription Contribution Margin allows us to generate attractive value from
our Connected Fitness Subscriptions. When we acquire new Connected Fitness Subscriptions, we are able to offset our subscription acquisition costs with
the gross profit earned on our Connected Fitness Products. This allows for rapid payback of our sales and marketing investments and results in a robust unit
economic model.

For fiscal 2020, 2019, and 2018:

+  We generated total revenue of $1,825.9 million, $915.0 million and $435.0 million, respectively, representing 100% and 110% year-over-year
growth;

*  Asof June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, we had 1,091,100, 511,200 and 245,600 Connected Fitness Subscriptions, respectively, representing 113%
and 108% year-over-year growth;

*  Our Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn was 0.62%, 0.65%, and 0.64%, respectively;

*  We incurred net losses of $(71.6) million, $(195.6) million, and $(47.9) million, respectively; and

*  Our Adjusted EBITDA was $117.7 million, $(71.3) million, and $(30.4) million, respectively.

For a definition of Connected Fitness Subscriptions, Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn, Subscription Contribution Margin, and Adjusted
EBITDA, see the section titled “—Key Operational and Business Metrics”.

See the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for information regarding our use of Adjusted
EBITDA and a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA.

Fiscal 2020

Fiscal 2020 was a transformative year for Peloton. Since our September IPO, we have been working to scale our business: from manufacturing and logistics
to member support and operations. In fiscal 2020, we delivered over 626,000 Bikes and Treads and added over 579,000 Connected Fitness Subscriptions,
while growing our Peloton membership base to 3.1 million as of June 30, 2020. Fueled in part by the challenges associated with COVID-19, Member
engagement has reached new highs with 164 million Connected Fitness Subscription workouts completed in fiscal 2020 across 12,000 classes.

We also expanded our fitness and wellness content offerings in strength, yoga, meditation, and new floor-based categories such as Fit Family and Dance
Cardio. Our Member engagement levels continued to increase in fiscal 2020 in part due to our Members' use of floor-based content, led by strength classes
which posted the most significant year-over-year gains.

In addition to broadening our content, we also improved the accessibility of our platform through our Peloton Digital offering. Paid Peloton Digital
subscriptions grew 210% year-over-year as we reduced the price of Peloton Digital to $12.99 and extended our Peloton Digital free trial period to 90 days
during March and April to give access to high-quality fithess content to those sheltering in place. With the goal of being on every screen in your hand and in
your home, we launched integrations with the four leading over-the-top TV platforms including Amazon Fire TV, Android, Apple TV, and Roku.
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Operations

We entered the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 with a backlog of Bike deliveries in all geographies and sales continue to surpass expectations in the first two
months of fiscal 2021 due to COVID-19. While we had expected demand to moderate, the unexpected sharp increase in COVID-19 cases in many states
has perpetuated the imbalance of supply and demand in many geographies, causing continued elongated order-to-delivery windows for our customers.
While we have significantly increased our production capacity in recent months and continue to grow our manufacturing capabilities, we do not expect to
return to normalized order-to-delivery windows prior to the end of calendar year 2020.

Showrooms. On June 15, 2020, we began re-opening select showrooms in the United States, United Kingdom, and Canada, following the re-opening of our
German stores in late May. Our re-opening schedule has been guided by state, local, and municipal guidelines and is accompanied by extensive safety
training for our retail team members and stringent cleaning practices. To date, nearly all showroom locations have resumed normal operations or are taking
customer appointments.

Significant Construction Projects. Following COVID-19 related delays, we have resumed construction of our new headquarters in New York City and our
11 Floral Street Studio in London. Both are expected to be completed in Spring 2021. Our Floral Street Studio will have three production studios, allowing us
to significantly increase production of floor content as well as foreign language classes for our growing community of Members in Europe. Lastly, we expect
our new manufacturing plant located in Shin Ji, Taiwan to be completed by the end of this calendar year. The additional factory at Tonic will provide us with
significant additional production capacity, helping us scale over the next few years.

Connected Fitness Product portfolio expansion

We announced an exciting new addition to our category-leading bike offering: Bike+. Offered at $2,495, Bike+ builds on our groundbreaking connected
fitness bike experience by offering an all new 24” touchscreen with a powerful built-in and integrated soundbar and subwoofer system. The 360-degree
rotating display allows Members to easily pivot and tilt the screen and add strength, yoga, or stretching to their routine or take our all new Bike Bootcamp
class series. Resistance on Bike+ is controlled digitally so Members can “Auto Follow” instructors’ class programs and control resistance from the
touchscreen. In conjunction with the new Bike+ introduction, we reduced the price of our existing Bike to $1,895, broadening accessibility to the Peloton
platform. Bike+ is currently available for purchase in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, and Germany.

We're also thrilled to announce an important addition to our Tread line, “Peloton Tread” (our current Tread is “Peloton Tread+"). Offered at $2,495, Peloton
Tread has all the essential elements of the Tread+ experience but in a more affordable and compact form factor. Despite the smaller size, the Peloton Tread
has ample running surface area and provides running comfort on a sleek belt drive. It features a 24” touchscreen with a powerful built-in and integrated
soundbar and subwoofer system and ergonomic pace and incline control knobs with jump buttons. With an immersive audio and video experience and heart
rate monitor integration, Peloton Tread is designed for both on-Tread as well as floor-based bootcamp content. Peloton Tread will be available in the United
Kingdom starting December 26, 2020, in the United States and Canada starting early 2021, and in Germany in late 2021.

The Peloton Pledge

Recent events have raised our collective consciousness of the systemic inequities existing across our society today. Peloton is committed to being an anti-
racist organization and to help achieve that goal, we have made an important commitment to our Members, employees, and the communities we serve by
pledging $100 million over the next four years across internal and external initiatives to fight racism. The Peloton Pledge is focused on investing across three
areas: a $60 million commitment for a substantial increase in wages for our hourly employees, a $20 million investment in learning and development
programs designed to expand opportunities for upward mobility among our hourly wage employees, and a $20 million commitment to third party
organizations fighting systemic inequities prevalent across the United States. While we have always believed Peloton and our community has embraced
inclusiveness and diversity, we know we can, and will, be doing more.
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Key Operational and Business Metrics

In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, we use the following key operational and business metrics to evaluate our
business, measure our performance, develop financial forecasts, and make strategic decisions.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
Ending Connected Fitness Subscriptions 1,091,100 511,200 245,600
Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn 0.62 % 0.65 % 0.64 %
Total Workouts (in millions) 164.5 52.2 17.9
Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription 17.9 11.5 8.4
Subscription Gross Profit (in millions) $ 208.0 $ 77.4 $ 34.7
Subscription Contribution (in millions) $ 232.1 $ 91.9 $ 38.0
Subscription Gross Margin 57.2 % 42.7 % 43.3 %
Subscription Contribution Margin™ 63.8 % 50.8 % 475 %
Net Loss (in millions) $ (71.6) $ (195.6) $ (47.9)
Adjusted EBITDA (in millions)® $ 17.7 $ (71.3) $ (30.4)
Adjusted EBITDA Margin® 6.4 % (7.8)% (7.0)%

(1) Please see the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measures—Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin” for a reconciliation
of Subscription Gross Profit to Subscription Contribution.

(2) Please see the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measures—Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin” for a reconciliation of Net Loss to
Adjusted EBITDA.

Connected Fitness Subscriptions

Our ability to expand the number of Connected Fitness Subscriptions is an indicator of our market penetration and growth. We define a Connected Fitness
Subscription as a person, household, or commercial property, such as a hotel or residential building, who has either paid for a subscription to a Connected
Fitness Product (a Connected Fitness Subscription with a successful credit card billing or with prepaid subscription credits or waivers) or requested a
"pause" to their subscription for up to 3 months. We do not include canceled or unpaid Connected Fitness Subscriptions in the Connected Fitness
Subscription count.

Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn

We use Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn to measure the retention of our Connected Fitness Subscriptions. We define Average Net Monthly
Connected Fitness Churn as Connected Fitness Subscription cancellations, net of reactivations, in the quarter, divided by the average number of beginning
Connected Fitness Subscriptions in each month, divided by three months. This metric does not include data related to our Peloton Digital subscriptions for
Members who pay a monthly fee for access to our content library on their own devices.

Total Workouts and Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription

We review Total Workouts and Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription to measure engagement, which is the leading indicator of
retention for our Connected Fitness Subscriptions. We define Total Workouts as all workouts completed during a given period. We define a Workout as a
Connected Fitness Subscription for Members either completing at least 50% of an instructor-led or scenic ride or run, or ten or more minutes of “Just Ride”
or “Just Run” mode. We define Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription as the Total Workouts completed in the quarter divided by
the average number of Connected Fitness Subscriptions in each month, divided by three months.

Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin

We use Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin to measure our ability to scale and leverage the costs of our Connected Fitness
Subscriptions. The continued growth of our Connected Fitness Subscription base will allow us to improve our Subscription Contribution Margin. While there
are variable costs, including music royalties, associated with our Connected Fitness Subscriptions, a significant portion of our content creation costs are
fixed given that we operate with a limited number of production studios and instructors. The fixed nature of those expenses should scale over time as we
grow our Connected Fitness Subscription base.

We define Subscription Contribution as subscription revenue less cost of subscription revenue, adjusted to exclude depreciation and amortization expense,
and stock-based compensation expense. Subscription Contribution Margin is calculated by dividing Subscription Contribution by subscription revenue. See
the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measures—Subscription Contribution and Subscription
Contribution Margin” for information regarding our use of Subscription Contribution and Subscription Contribution Margin and a reconciliation of Subscription
Contribution to subscription gross profit.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are key performance measures that our management uses to assess our operating performance and the
operating leverage in our business. Because Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin facilitate internal comparisons of our
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historical operating performance on a more consistent basis, we use these measures for business planning purposes. We also believe this information will
be useful for investors to facilitate comparisons of our operating performance and better identify trends in our business. We expect Adjusted EBITDA Margin
to increase over the long-term as we continue to scale our business and achieve greater leverage in our operating expenses.

We calculate Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) adjusted to exclude: other (income), net; provision for income taxes; depreciation and amortization
expense; stock-based compensation expense; transaction costs; certain litigation expenses, consisting of legal settlements and related fees for specific
proceedings that arise outside of the ordinary course of our business; the ground lease expense related to build-to-suit lease obligations under ASC 840,
and incremental costs associated with COVID-19. Adjusted EBITDA Margin is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by total revenue. See the section
titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Non-GAAP Financial Measures—Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin” for information
regarding our use of Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net loss.

Components of our Results of Operations

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, following our annual strategy setting and budgeting process, our chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) changed
how we assess performance and allocate resources. Based on this change, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, we determined we have two operating and
reportable segments: Connected Fitness Products and Subscription. We revised prior comparative periods to conform to the current period segment
presentation. See Note 19 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in Part Il, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
information regarding our reportable segments.

Revenue

Connected Fitness Products

Connected Fitness Product revenue consists of sales of our Bike and Tread and related accessories, delivery and installation services, branded apparel and
extended warranty agreements. Connected Fitness Product revenue is recognized at the time of delivery, except for extended warranty revenue which is
recognized over the warranty period, and is recorded net of returns and discounts and third-party financing program fees, when applicable.

Subscription
Subscription revenue consists of revenue generated from our monthly $39.00 Connected Fitness Subscription and $12.99 Peloton Digital subscription.

As of June 30, 2020, 95% of our Connected Fitness Subscription base was paying month-to-month.

If a Connected Fitness Subscription owns both a Bike and a Tread in the same household, the price of the Subscription remains $39.00 monthly. As of
June 30, 2020, approximately 2% of our Connected Fitness Subscriptions owned both a Bike and a Tread.

Cost of revenue

Connected Fitness Products

Connected Fitness Product cost of revenue consists of Bike and Tread product costs, including manufacturing costs, duties and other applicable importing
costs, shipping and handling costs, packaging, warranty replacement and service costs, apparel costs, fulfillment costs, warehousing costs, and certain
allocated costs related to management, facilities, and personnel-related expenses associated with supply chain logistics. As we launch new Connected
Fitness Products and continue to grow our presence in new regions where we have not yet achieved economies of scale, we expect to incur higher cost of
revenue (as a percentage of sales) for our Connected Fitness Products.

Subscription

Subscription cost of revenue includes costs associated with content creation and costs to stream content to our Members. These costs consist of both fixed
costs, including studio rent and occupancy, other studio overhead, instructor and production personnel-related expenses, as well as variable costs, including
music royalty fees, content costs for past use, third-party platform streaming costs, and payment processing fees for our monthly subscription billings. While
our fixed costs currently represent the majority of these costs, music royalty fees are our largest subscription variable cost. As we have grown the number of
licensing agreements with music rights holders, music royalty fees as a percent of our subscription revenue has increased. However, unlike music streaming
services where having an exhaustive music catalog is vital to be able to compete for customers, we have control over what music we select for our classes.
As a result, we expect to be able to manage music expense such that, over time, these fees as a percentage of subscription revenue will flatten, or even
decrease.

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing

Sales and marketing expense consists of performance marketing media spend, asset creation, and other brand creative, all showroom expenses and related
lease payments, payment processing fees incurred in connection with the sale of our Connected Fitness Products, sales and marketing personnel-related
expenses, and expenses related to Peloton Digital. We intend to continue to invest in our sales and marketing capabilities in the future and expect this
expense to increase in absolute dollars in future periods as we release new products and expand internationally. Sales and marketing expense as a
percentage of total revenue may fluctuate from period to period based on total revenue and the timing of our investments in our sales and marketing
functions as these investments may vary in scope and scale over future periods.

General and administrative
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General and administrative expense includes personnel-related expenses and facilities-related costs primarily for our executive, finance, accounting, legal,
human resources, and IT functions. General and administrative expense also includes fees for professional services principally comprised of legal, audit, tax
and accounting services, and insurance, as well as litigation settlement costs.

We expect to continue to incur additional general and administrative expenses as a result of operating as a public company, including expenses related to
compliance and reporting obligations of public companies, and increased costs for insurance, investor relations expenses, and professional services. As a
result, we expect that our general and administrative expenses will increase in absolute dollars in future periods and vary from period to period as a
percentage of revenue, but we expect to leverage these expenses over time as we grow our revenue and Connected Fitness Subscription base.

Research and development

Research and development expense primarily consists of personnel and facilities-related expenses, consulting and contractor expenses, tooling and
prototype materials, and software platform expenses. We capitalize certain qualified costs incurred in connection with the development of internal-use
software which may also cause research and development expenses to vary from period to period. We expect our research and development expenses to
increase in absolute dollars in future periods and vary from period to period as a percentage of total revenue as we continue to hire personnel to develop
new and enhance existing Connected Fitness Products and interactive software.

Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net consists of interest (expense) income, realized gains (losses) on investments, amortization of debt issuance costs, and impacts
from foreign exchange transactions.

Provision for income taxes

The provision for income taxes consists primarily of income taxes related to foreign and state jurisdictions in which we conduct business. We maintain a full
valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets as we have concluded that it is more likely than not that the deferred assets will not be utilized.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our consolidated results of operations in dollars and as a percentage of total revenue for the periods presented. The period-to-
period comparisons of our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in the future.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue

Connected Fitness Products $ 1,4622 $ 7339 $ 354.7

Subscription 363.7 181.1 80.3

Total revenue 1,825.9 915.0 435.0

Cost of revenue@

Connected Fitness Products 833.5 427.8 199.9

Subscription® 155.7 103.7 455

Total cost of revenue 989.1 531.4 2454

Gross profit 836.7 383.6 189.6
Operating expenses

Sales and marketing("® 477.0 324.0 151.4

General and administrative("@ 351.6 207.0 62.4

Research and development("®? 89.0 54.8 23.4

Total operating expenses 917.6 585.8 237.1
Loss from operations (80.8) (202.3) (47.5)
Other income (expense), net 12.4 6.7 (0.3)
Loss before provision for income tax (68.4) (195.6) (47.8)
Income tax expense 3.3 0.1 0.1
Net loss $ (71.6) $ (195.6) $ (47.9)

(1) Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)

Cost of revenue
Connected Fitness Products $ 32 % 03 $ —
Subscription 7.5 3.2 0.5
Total cost of revenue 10.7 3.5 0.5
Sales and marketing 15.3 8.4 0.7
General and administrative 524 70.5 6.5
Research and development $ 104 $ 71 3 0.8
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 888 $ 895 §$ 8.5

(2) Includes depreciation and amortization expense as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)

Cost of revenue
Connected Fitness Products $ 32 $ 12§ 0.3
Subscription 16.6 11.3 2.8
Total cost of revenue 19.9 12.6 3.1
Sales and marketing 9.3 4.0 1.7
General and administrative 10.6 5.2 1.8
Research and development 0.3 — —
Total depreciation and amortization expense $ 402 % 217 $ 6.6

(3) Included in subscription cost of revenue are content costs for past use as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Content costs for past use $ 16 $ 164 $ 14.5

From time-to-time, we execute music royalty agreements with various music rights holders. As part of these go-forward license agreements, we may also
enter into agreements whereby we are released from all potential licensor claims regarding our alleged past use of copyrighted material in our content in
exchange for a mutually-agreed payment. We refer to these payments as content costs for past use.

Comparison of the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Revenue
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 to 2020
2020 2019 % Change
(dollars in millions)
Revenue:
Connected Fitness Products $ 1,462.2 $ 733.9 99.2 %
Subscription 363.7 181.1 100.8
Total revenue $ 18259 § 915.0 99.5 %
Percentage of revenue
Connected Fitness Products 80.1 % 80.2 %
Subscription 19.9 19.8
Total 100.0 % 100.0 %

Connected Fitness Products revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $728.3 million, or 99.2%, compared to the fiscal year ended June
30, 2019. This increase was primarily attributable to the significant growth in the number of Connected Fitness Products delivered during the period, which
was the result of investments made in brand and product awareness, compounded by a strong increase in demand during our fourth quarter driven by the
stay at home orders issued by governments around the world in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Subscription revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $182.6 million, or 100.8%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This
increase was primarily attributable to the year-over-year growth in our Connected Fitness Subscriptions from 511,200 to 1,091,100. The growth of our
Connected Fitness Subscriptions was primarily driven by the increased number of Connected Fitness Products delivered during the period and our low
Average Net Monthly Connected Fitness Churn of 0.62% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We believe engagement is a leading indicator of retention.
Our Member engagement continued to grow with 17.9 Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020 versus 11.5 Average Monthly Workouts per Connected Fitness Subscription for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Our Connected Fitness
Subscriptions worked out with us 164.5 million times in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, up from 52.2 million workouts in fiscal 2019, representing 215%
year-over-year growth.
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Cost of Revenue, Gross Profit, and Gross Margin

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 % Change
(dollars in millions)

Cost of Revenue:

Connected Fitness Products $ 833.5 $ 427.8 94.8 %
Subscription 155.7 103.7 50.1
Total cost of revenue $ 989.1 $ 531.4 86.1 %
Gross Profit:
Connected Fitness Products $ 628.8 $ 306.2 105.4 %
Subscription 208.0 774 168.7
Total gross profit $ 836.7 $ 383.6 118.2 %
Gross Margin:
Connected Fitness Products 43.0 % 41.7 %
Subscription 57.2 42.7

Connected Fitness Products cost of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $405.7 million, or 94.8%, compared to the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. This increase was primarily driven by costs associated with the growth in the number of Connected Fitness Products delivered during the
period.

Our Connected Fitness Product gross margin increased by 128 basis points for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 compared to the fiscal year ended June
30, 2019 primarily driven by a mix shift to Bike deliveries, which carries a higher margin than our Tread, as well as product cost efficiencies, partially offset by
expense growth in supply chain and logistics, including expedited shipping and COVID-19-related costs.

Subscription cost of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $52.0 million, or 50.1%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
This increase was primarily driven by an increase of $37.6 million in music royalty and streaming delivery fees driven by increased usage of our platform as
Member engagement continued to increase, an increase of $9.9 million in personnel-related expenses excluding stock-based compensation expense, an
increase of $4.6 million in payment processing fees for our monthly subscription billing, an increase of $5.3 million in depreciation and amortization expense,
and an increase of $4.3 million in stock-based compensation expense. The increase was partially offset by a decrease of $14.8 million in content costs for
past use.

Subscription gross margin increased by 1,445 basis points for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019
primarily driven by fixed cost leverage with more Connected Fitness Subscriptions and a $14.8 million benefit from lower content costs for past use year-
over-year.

Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 % Change
(dollars in millions)
Sales and marketing $ 477.0 $ 324.0 47.2%
As a percentage of total revenue 26.1 % 35.4 %

Sales and marketing expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $153.0 million, or 47.2%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
The increase was due primarily to increased spending on advertising and marketing programs of $86.1 million, an increase in personnel-related expenses of
$31.7 million, excluding stock-based compensation expense, due to increased headcount, an increase in payment processing fees of $12.7 million, an
increase in stock-based compensation expense of $6.9 million, and an increase in expenses related to our showrooms of $7.2 million. Total sales and
marketing spend as a percentage of revenue decreased, driven by elevated demand due to stay-at-home orders from COVID-19, partially offset by costs of
extending Peloton Digital free trial to 90 days.

General and Administrative
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 % Change
(dollars in millions)
General and administrative $ 351.6 $ 207.0 69.8%
As a percentage of total revenue 19.3 % 22.6 %

General and administrative expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $144.6 million, or 69.8%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019. The increase was primarily due to an increase in professional fees, comprised of legal, accounting, and consulting fees of $69.2 million driven by fees
and one-time settlement amounts related to the settlement of litigation matters which increased $48.0 million, an increase in personnel-related expenses of
$44.5 million, excluding stock-based compensation expense, due to increased headcount, an increase in facilities costs from additional leased spaces of
$27.2 million, an increase associated with business operations and public company costs of $9.0 million, additional costs due to system implementations of
$5.6 million, and an increase in depreciation and amortization expense of $5.4 million. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in stock-based
compensation expense of $18.1 million driven by a $50.6 million charge in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 related to a tender offer completed in October
2018 to purchase outstanding shares of our common stock held by employees.

Research and Development
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 % Change
(dollars in millions)
Research and development $ 89.0 $ 54.8 62.3%
As a percentage of total revenue 4.9 % 6.0 %

Research and development expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 increased $34.1 million, or 62.3%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019. This increase was due primarily to an increase in personnel-related expenses, which, excluding stock-based compensation expense, increased $20.0
million, due to increased headcount, an increase of $4.3 million in software expense, an increase of $3.8 million in product development and research costs
associated with development of new software features and products, an increase of $3.4 million in stock-based compensation expense, and an increase in
facilities costs from additional leased space of $1.6 million.

Other Income (Expense), Net and Income Tax (Benefit) Expense
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 % Change
(dollars in millions)
Other income (expense), net $ 124 % 6.7 85.6%
Income tax (benefit) expense $ 33 § 0.1 NM

*NM - not meaningful

Other income, net, was $12.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 compared to $6.7 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The increase
in other income, net, was primarily due to an increase of $9.5 million in interest earned on cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments, partially offset
by unrealized losses of $4.0 million from impacts of changes in foreign exchange rates. Income tax expense increased primarily due to international taxes
and state tax expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our operations have been funded primarily through cash flow from operating activities and net proceeds from the sales of our equity securities. As of
June 30, 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1.0 billion and marketable securities of $719.5 million. In September 2019, we
completed our IPO and a concurrent private placement, in which we issued and sold an aggregate of 43,448,275 shares of our Class A common stock. The
price per share to the public in the IPO and in the concurrent private placement was $29.00. We received aggregate net proceeds of $1.2 billion from the
IPO and the concurrent private placement, net of the underwriting discounts and before deducting offering costs of approximately $6.3 million.

As of June 30, 2020, our marketable securities portfolio primarily consists of U.S. government notes and investment grade corporate securities. Given
market volatility since March 2020 we have taken actions to protect against principal risk such as moving cash to government money market funds, closely
monitoring credit default spreads as well as downgraded and other securities that may bear increased risk, and selling certain securities that may no longer
align with our investment strategy.
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We believe our existing cash and cash equivalent balances, cash flow from operations, marketable securities portfolio, and amounts available for borrowing
under our Amended Credit Agreement (described below) will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12
months. Our future capital requirements may vary materially from those currently planned and will depend on many factors, including our rate of revenue
growth, the timing and amount of spending on research and development, growth in sales and marketing activities, the timing of new Connected Fitness
Product introductions, market acceptance of our Connected Fitness Products, timing and investments needed for international expansion, and overall
economic conditions. Further, we may use cash to satisfy exercise payments and/or tax withholdings in connection with the settlement of equity awards, or
other stock buyback programs. To the extent that current and anticipated future sources of liquidity are insufficient to fund our future business activities and
requirements, we may be required to seek additional equity or debt financing. The sale of additional equity would result in additional dilution to our
stockholders. The incurrence of debt financing would result in debt service obligations and the instruments governing such debt could provide for operating
and financing covenants that would restrict our operations. There can be no assurances that we will be able to raise additional capital. The inability to raise
capital would adversely affect our ability to achieve our business objectives.

Amended Credit Agreement

In June 2019, we entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement, or the Amended Credit Agreement, with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
as administrative agent, lead arranger and bookrunner and Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC, Goldman Sachs Lending Partners LLC and Silicon
Valley Bank, as joint syndication agents, which amended and restated our prior secured revolving credit facility.

The Amended Credit Agreement provides for a $250.0 million secured revolving credit facility, including up to the lesser of $150.0 million and the aggregate
unused amount of the facility for the issuance of letters of credit. Interest on the Amended Credit Agreement is paid based on LIBOR plus 2.75% or an
Alternative Base Rate plus 1.75%. We are required to pay an annual commitment fee of 0.375% on a quarterly basis based on the unused portion of the
revolving credit facility. The principal amount, if any, is payable in full in June 2024. As of June 30, 2020, we had not drawn on the credit facility and did not
have outstanding borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement. As of June 30, 2020, we had outstanding letters of credit totaling $4.8 million issued
primarily to cover security deposits for an operating lease obligation.

We have the option to repay our borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement without premium or penalty prior to maturity. The Amended Credit
Agreement contains customary affirmative covenants, such as financial statement reporting requirements and delivery of borrowing base certificates, as well
as customary covenants that restrict our ability to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness, sell certain assets, guarantee obligations of third
parties, declare dividends or make certain distributions, and undergo a merger or consolidation or certain other transactions. The Amended Credit
Agreement also contains certain financial condition covenants, including maintaining a total level of liquidity of not less than $125.0 million and maintaining
certain minimum total revenue ranging from $725.0 million to $1,985.0 million depending on the applicable date of determination.

Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities $ 3764 $ (108.6) $ 49.7
Net cash flows used in investing activities (741.3) (297.5) (56.7)
Net cash flow provided by financing activities 1,240.2 417.2 3.1
Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities of $376.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was primarily due to an increase in net change in
operating assets and liabilities of $264.9 million, and non-cash adjustments of $183.1 million, partially offset by net loss of $71.6 million. The increase in net
operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to a $272.3 million increase in customer deposits and deferred revenue driven by elevated sales volumes
towards the end of the year and longer delivery windows, and a $133.4 million increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses related to increased
expenditures to support general business growth, as well as the timing of payments, partially offset by a $96.8 million increase in inventory levels as we
ramped up supply to meet the current increased demand. Non-cash adjustments primarily consisted of stock-based compensation expense, right-of use-
asset operating lease expense, and depreciation and amortization expense.

Net cash used in operating activities of $108.6 million for fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was primarily due to a net loss of $195.6 million and a decrease in
net change in operating assets and liabilities of $22.9 million, partially offset by non-cash adjustments of $109.8 million. The decrease in net operating assets
and liabilities was primarily due to an $111.3 million increase in inventory levels as a result of our introduction of the Peloton Tread+, as well as our
expansion into the United Kingdom and Canada, and a $30.3 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets driven by general growth;
partially offset by an $117.3 million increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses related to increased expenditures to support general business
growth. Non-cash adjustments primarily consisted of stock-based compensation expense of $89.5 million of which $61.7 million related to a tender offer
completed in October 2018.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 of $741.3 million was primarily related to purchases of marketable securities of
$1,199.6 million, $156.4 million used for capital expenditures primarily related to the continued build out of our New York City headquarters, our new Peloton
studios in New York and London, our new manufacturing facility in Taiwan, and new showrooms, and $45.0 million relating to the acquisition of Tonic, net of
cash acquired, partially offset by maturities of marketable securities of $435.4 million and sales of marketable securities of $224.3 million.
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Cash used in investing activities for fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 of $297.5 million was primarily related to the purchase of marketable securities of
$249.8 million and capital expenditures of $83.0 million, partially offset by maturities of marketable securities of $36.0 million.

Financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities of $1.2 billion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was primarily related to proceeds from our IPO and
concurrent private placement, net of the underwriting discount and before deducting offering costs of $6.3 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities of $417.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was primarily related to net proceeds from issuance of
Series F redeemable convertible preferred stock of $408.8 million, net of issuance costs and repurchases of common stock and preferred stock, as well as
$9.3 million in proceeds from exercises of stock options.

Contractual Obligations
As of June 30, 2020, our contractual obligations were as follows:

Payments due by period

Less than More than
L Total 1-3 years 3-5 years
Contractual obligations: 1 year 5 years
(in millions)
Operating lease obligations (" $ 8173 $ 481 % 1232 $ 1236 $ 522.3
Minimum guarantees ? 44.3 26.9 16.7 0.7 —
Unused credit facility fee payments 3.7 0.9 1.8 0.9 —
Other purchase obligations *) 11.7 5.0 6.7 — —
Total $ 8769 $ 809 $ 1484 $ 12562 § 522.3

(1) Operating lease obligations relate to our office space, warehouses, production studios, and retail showrooms and microstores. The lease terms are between one and twenty-one years, and the
majority of the lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period.

(2) We are subject to minimum royalty payments associated with our license agreements for the use of licensed content. See "Risk Factors --Risks Related to Our Business — We are a party to many
music license agreements that are complex and impose numerous obligations upon us that may make it difficult to operate our business, and a breach of such agreements could adversely affect our
business, operating results, and financial condition."

(3) We are required to pay a commitment fee of 0.375% based on the unused portion of the revolving credit facility. As of June 30, 2020, we were contingently liable for approximately $4.8 million in
standby letters of credit for our operating lease obligations.

(4) Other purchase obligations include all other non-cancelable contractual obligations. These contracts are primarily related to cloud computing costs.

The commitment amounts in the table above are associated with contracts that are enforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms,
including fixed or minimum services to be used, fixed, minimum or variable price provisions, and the approximate timing of the actions under the contracts.

Purchase orders or contracts for the purchase of certain goods and services are not included in the table. We cannot determine the aggregate amount of
such purchase orders that represent contractual obligations because purchase orders may represent authorizations to purchase rather than binding
agreements. Our purchase orders are based on our current needs and are fulfilled by our suppliers and manufacturers within short periods of time. We
subcontract with other companies to manufacture our products. During the normal course of business, we and our manufacturers procure components
based upon a forecasted production plan. If we cancel all or part of the orders, we may be liable to our suppliers and manufacturers for the cost of the
unutilized component orders or components purchased by our manufacturers.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2020.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, we make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity/deficit, revenue, expenses, and related disclosures. We re-evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis. Our
estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the
uncertainty inherent in these matters, actual results may differ from these estimates and could differ based upon other assumptions or conditions. The critical
accounting policies that reflect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements include those
noted below.

Revenue Recognition
Our primary source of revenue is from sales of its Connected Fitness Products and associated recurring Subscription revenue.

We determine revenue recognition through the following steps in accordance with ASC 606:
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» identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

» identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

» determination of the transaction price;

+ allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
*  recognition of revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration that we
expect to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Our revenue is reported net of sales returns and discounts, as a reduction of the transaction
price. We estimates our liability for product returns based on historical return trends by product category, impact of seasonality, and an evaluation of current
economic and market conditions and records the expected customer refund liability as a reduction to revenue, and the expected inventory right of recovery
as a reduction of cost of revenue. If actual return costs differ from previous estimates, the amount of the liability and corresponding revenue are adjusted in
the period in which such costs occur.

Some of our contracts with customers contain multiple performance obligations. For customer contracts that include multiple performance obligations, we
account for individual performance obligations if they are distinct. The transaction price is then allocated to each performance obligation based on its
standalone selling price. We generally determine standalone selling price based on prices charged to customers.

Deferred revenue is recorded for nonrefundable cash payments received for our performance obligation to transfer, or stand ready to transfer, goods or
services in the future. Deferred revenue consists of subscription fees billed that have not been recognized. Customer deposits represent payments received
in advance before we transfer a good or service to the customer and are refundable.

Product Warranty

We offer a standard product warranty that its Connected Fitness Products will operate under normal, non-commercial use for a period of one year from the
date of original delivery. We have the obligation, at our option, to either repair or replace the defective product. At the time revenue is recognized, an
estimate of future warranty costs, including costs associated with service of Connected Fitness Products outside of the warranty period, is recorded as a
component of cost of revenue. Factors that affect the warranty obligation include historical as well as current product failure rates, service delivery costs
incurred in correcting product failures, and warranty policies and business practices. Our products are manufactured both in-house and by contract
manufacturers, and in certain cases, the we may have recourse to such contract manufacturers.

We also offer the option for customers in some markets to purchase a third-party extended warranty and service contract that extends or enhances the
technical support, parts, and labor coverage offered as part of the base warranty included with the Connected Fitness Product for an additional period of
12 to 27 months.

Revenue and related fees paid to the third-party provider are recognized on a gross basis as we have a continuing obligation to perform over the service
period. Extended warranty revenue is recognized ratably over the extended warranty coverage period and is included in Connected Fitness Product
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest, if any, over the
fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination.

Intangible assets other than goodwill are comprised of acquired developed technology. At initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognized at their fair value as of the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any, and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.

We review goodwill for impairment annually on April 1 of each fiscal year or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an impairment
may exist. In conducting our annual impairment test, we first review qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of
the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If factors indicate that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, we perform a
quantitative assessment and the fair value of the reporting unit is determined by analyzing the expected present value of future cash flows. If the carrying
value of the reporting unit continues to exceed its fair value, the fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is calculated and an impairment loss equal to the
excess is recorded. We assess the impairment of intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

Music Royalty Fees

We recognize music royalty fees on all music it streams to Members as these fees are incurred in accordance with the terms of the relevant license
agreement with the music rights holder. The incurrence of the royalties is primarily driven by content usage by our Members through the use of a paid
subscription, or as part of a free-trial offer and it is classified as subscription cost of revenue or sales and marketing expense, respectively, within our
statement of operations and comprehensive loss. Our license agreements with music rights holders generally include provisions for advance royalties as
well as minimum guarantees. When a minimum guarantee is paid in advance, the guarantee is recorded as a cost to fulfill or prepaid asset and amortized
over the shorter of the period consumed or the term of the agreement.

As we execute music license agreements with various music rights holders for go-forward usage, we may also simultaneously enter into a settlement
agreement whereby we are released from all potential licensor claims regarding our alleged past use of copyrighted material in exchange for a negotiated
payment. These are referred to as “content costs for past use” and are recorded within subscription cost of
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revenue. We have entered into agreements with music rights holders who represent all the music catalogs that we need to operate our service, however,
given the uncertain and opaque nature of music rights ownership, our archived library may continue to include music for which certain rights or fractional
interests have not been accurately determined or fully licensed. Prior to the execution of a music license agreement, we estimate and records a charge
based upon license agreements previously entered into and the respective music rights holdings..

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based awards are measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense, net of actual forfeitures, on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of the respective award. For performance-based stock awards
issued, the value of the instrument is measured at the grant date as the fair value of the award and expensed over the vesting term when the performance
targets are considered probable of being achieved.

We calculate the fair value of stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The determination of the grant date fair value
of stock option awards issued is affected by a number of variables, including the fair value of our underlying common stock, our expected common stock
price volatility over the term of the option award, the expected term of the award, risk-free interest rates, and the expected dividend yield of our common
stock.

Generally, our stock option awards permit early exercise. The unvested portion of shares exercised is recorded as a liability on our balance sheet and
reclassified to equity as vesting occurs.

The estimated grant-date fair value of our equity-based awards issued to service providers was calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model,
based on the following assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 1.1% 2.5% 2.4%
Weighted average expected term (in years) 6.23 6.25 6.3
Weighted average expected volatility 44.9% 45.0% 55.2%

Expected dividend yield — — —

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for zero-coupon U.S. Treasury
notes with maturities approximately equal to the stock option’s expected term.

Expected Term. The expected term represents the period that our stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. We do not have sufficient historical
exercise data to provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term due to the limited period of time stock-based awards have been
exercisable. As a result, for stock options, we used the simplified method to calculate the expected term estimate based on the vesting and contractual terms
of the option. Under the simplified method, the expected term is equal to the average of the stock-based award’s weighted-average vesting period and its
contractual term. For awards granted which contain performance conditions, we estimate the expected term based on the estimated dates that the
performance conditions will be satisfied.

Expected Volatility. Since we do not have a trading history of our common stock, the expected volatility was derived from the average historical stock
volatilities of several unrelated public companies within our industry that we consider to be comparable to our business over a period equivalent to the
expected term of the awards. We intend to continue to consistently apply this process using the same or similar companies to estimate the expected volatility
until sufficient historical information regarding the volatility of the share price of our Class A common stock becomes available.

Dividend Yield. The expected dividend yield is zero as we have never declared or paid cash dividends and have no current plans to do so in the
foreseeable future.

We also grant stock-based awards to non-employees. We believe that for stock options issued to non-employees, the fair value of the stock option is more
reliably measurable than the fair value of the services rendered. Therefore, we estimate the fair value of non-employee stock options using a Black-Scholes
valuation model with appropriate assumptions.

Income Taxes

We utilize the asset and liability method for computing our income tax provision. Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the expected future consequences
of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities as well as operating loss, capital loss, and tax credit
carryforwards, using enacted tax rates. Management makes estimates, assumptions, and judgments to determine our provision for income taxes, deferred
tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be
recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we establish a valuation allowance.

We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, which to date have not
been material, are recognized within provision for income taxes.
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Loss Contingencies

We are involved in legal proceedings, claims, and regulatory, tax, and government inquiries and investigations that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Certain of these matters include claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages. We record a liability when we believe that it is both probable
that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If we determine that a loss is reasonably possible and the loss or range of loss
can be reasonably estimated, we disclose the possible loss in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. If we determine that a loss
is reasonably possible but the loss or range of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, we state that such an estimate cannot be made.

We review the developments in our contingencies that could affect the amount of the provisions that have been previously recorded, and the matters and
related reasonably possible losses disclosed. We make adjustments to our provisions and changes to our disclosures accordingly to reflect the impact of
negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information. Significant judgment is required to determine both the probability and the
estimated amount of loss. These estimates have been based on our assessment of the facts and circumstances at each balance sheet date and are subject
to change based on new information and future events.

The outcome of litigation is inherently uncertain. Therefore, if one or more of these matters were resolved against us for amounts in excess of management’s
expectations, our results of operations and financial condition, including in a particular reporting period in which any such outcome becomes probable and
estimable, could be materially adversely affected.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements in the section titled “—Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements” in Part Il, ltem 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion about new accounting pronouncements adopted and not yet adopted as of the date of this report.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

We had cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities of approximately $1.8 billion as of June 30, 2020. The primary objective of our investment
activities is the preservation of capital, and we do not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes. We have not been exposed, nor do we
anticipate being exposed, to material risks due to changes in interest rates. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates during any of the periods presented
would not have had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

We are primarily exposed to changes in short-term interest rates with respect to our cost of borrowing under our Amended Credit Agreement. We monitor
our cost of borrowing under our facility, taking into account our funding requirements, and our expectations for short-term rates in the future. A hypothetical
10% change in the interest rate on our Amended Credit Agreement for all periods presented would not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

Foreign Currency Risk

To date, all of our inventory purchases have been denominated in U.S. dollars. Our international sales are primarily denominated in foreign currencies and
any unfavorable movement in the exchange rate between U.S. dollars and the currencies in which we conduct sales in foreign countries could have an
adverse impact on our revenue. A portion of our operating expenses are incurred outside the United States and are denominated in foreign currencies,
which are also subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. For example, we recently purchased Tonic, a contract
manufacturer, and our operating expenses incurred in manufacturing our products in Tonic's facilities in Taiwan are denominated in foreign currencies and
not in U.S. dollars. In addition, our suppliers incur many costs, including labor and supply costs, in other currencies. While we are not currently contractually
obligated to pay increased costs due to changes in exchange rates, to the extent that exchange rates move unfavorably for our suppliers, they may seek to
pass these additional costs on to us, which could have a material impact on our gross margins. Our operating results and cash flows are, therefore, subject
to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. However, we believe that the exposure to foreign currency fluctuation from operating
expenses is relatively small at this time as the related costs do not constitute a significant portion of our total expenses. We use derivative instruments, such
as foreign currency forwards, and have the ability to use option contracts, to hedge certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Our
exposure to foreign currency exchange rates has historically been partially hedged as our foreign currency denominated inflows create a natural hedge
against our foreign currency denominated expenses.

Inflation Risk

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. If our costs become subject to
significant inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset such higher costs through price increases. Our inability or failure to do so could harm our
business, financial condition, and operating results.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Peloton Interactive, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Peloton Interactive, Inc. (the Company) as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders' equity
(deficit) for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial
statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at June 30,
2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2020, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Adoption of ASU No. 2016-02

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for its leases in 2020 due to the modified
retrospective adoption of ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842).

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB)
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.
New York, New York

September 10, 2020



PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)

June 30,
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,0355 §$ 162.1
Marketable securities 719.5 216.0
Accounts receivable, net 34.6 18.5
Inventories, net 2445 136.6
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 124.5 48.4
Total current assets 2,158.6 581.7
Property and equipment, net 242.3 249.7
Intangible assets, net 16.0 19.5
Goodwill 39.1 4.3
Restricted cash 1.5 0.8
Right-of-use assets, net 492.5 —
Other assets 31.8 8.5
Total assets $ 29818 $ 864.5
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1358 $ 92.2
Accrued expenses 225.9 104.5
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 363.6 90.8
Current portion of lease liabilities and other current liabilities 46.9 3.3
Total current liabilities 772.2 290.8
Deferred rent = 23.7
Build-to-suit liability — 1471
Long term lease liabilities, net 508.2 —
Other non-current liabilities 234 0.4
Total liabilities 1,303.8 462.0
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.000025 par value, zero and 215,443,468 shares authorized;
zero and 210,640,629 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019,
respectively. — 941.1
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Common stock, $0.000025 par value; 2,500,000,000 and zero Class A shares authorized,
237,518,574 and zero shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019,
respectively; 2,500,000,000 and 400,000,000 Class B shares authorized, 50,538,538 and
25,301,604 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively. = =
Additional paid-in capital 2,361.8 90.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income 10.1 0.2
Accumulated deficit (693.9) (629.5)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 1,678.0 (538.6)
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock, and stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 2,981.8 § 864.5

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(in millions, except share and per share amounts)

Revenue:
Connected Fitness Products
Subscription

Total revenue
Cost of revenue:

Connected Fitness Products
Subscription
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Research and development
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income, net:
Interest income, net
Other expense, net
Total other income (expense), net
Loss before provision for income taxes
Income tax expense
Net loss
Net loss attributable to Class A and Class B common stockholders

Net loss per share attributable to Class A and Class B common stockholders,
basic and diluted

Weighted-average Class A and Class B common shares outstanding, basic
and diluted

Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized gains on marketable securities
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment
Total other comprehensive income

Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
14622 $ 7339 $ 354.7
363.7 181.1 80.3
1,825.9 915.0 435.0
833.5 427.8 199.9
155.7 103.7 455
989.1 531.4 2454
836.7 383.6 189.6
477.0 324.0 151.4
351.6 207.0 62.4

89.0 54.8 23.4
917.6 585.8 237.1
(80.8) (202.3) (47.5)
16.2 7.0 (0.3)
(3.8) (0.3) —
12.4 6.7 (0.3)
(68.4) (195.6) (47.8)
3.3 0.1 0.1
(71.6) $ (195.6) $ (47.9)
(71.6) $ (245.7) $ (47.9)
(0.32) $ (10.72) $ (2.18)
220,952,237 22,911,764 21,934,228
39 $ 02 $ —
6.0 — —
9.9 0.2 —
61.7) $ (195.4) $ (47.9)




PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net loss $ (71.6) $ (195.6) $ (47.9)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 40.2 21.7 6.6
Stock-based compensation expense 88.8 89.5 8.5
Non-cash operating lease expense 47.7 — —
Other non-cash items 6.4 (1.4) 1.0

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 11.3 (9.1) (4.1)
Inventories (96.8) (111.3) (9.6)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (33.1) (30.3) (12.1)
Other assets (22.1) (5.5) 14
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 133.4 117.3 41.0
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 272.3 2.2 63.0
Operating lease liabilities, net (23.6) — —
Other liabilities 23.5 13.8 1.9
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 376.4 (108.6) 49.7

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Purchases of marketable securities (1,199.6) (249.8) —
Maturities of marketable securities 435.4 36.0 —
Sales of marketable securities 2243 — —
Cash paid for cost method investment (0.1) (0.6) —
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (45.0) (0.1) (28.7)
Purchases of property and equipment (156.4) (83.0) (28.0)
Net cash used in investing activities (741.3) (297.5) (56.7)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon initial public offering, net of

offering costs 1,195.7 — —

Repurchase of common and convertible preferred stock, including

issuance costs — (130.3) —

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, net of

issuance costs — 539.1 —

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan withholdings 7.0 — —

Repayments of debt — — (3.1)

Debt issuance costs — (0.9) (1.2)

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 37.4 9.3 7.4

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,240.2 417.2 3.1

Effect of exchange rate changes (1.2) 0.2 —
Net change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 874.0 11.3 (3.9)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash — Beginning of period 163.0 151.6 155.5
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash — End of period $ 1,037.0 $ 163.0 $ 151.6
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid for interest $ 19 § 11§ 0.3

Cash paid for income taxes $ 41§ — $ —

Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Information:
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PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)
Conversion of convertible preferred stock to common stock $ (941.1) § — % —
Property and equipment accrued but unpaid $ 182 § 126 §$ 4.3
Building - build-to-suit asset $ — $ 1471 $ —
Stock-based compensation capitalized for software development costs $ 22§ 08 $ 0.3

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance — June 30, 2017

Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Net loss

Balance — June 30, 2018

Issuance of Series F redeemable
convertible preferred stock, net

Repurchase of common and
preferred stock

Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense
Other comprehensive income

Net loss

Balance — June 30, 2019

Initial public offering, net of issuance
costs of $6.3 million

Conversion of redeemable
convertible preferred stock to
common stock

Activity related to stock-based
compensation

Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan
Other comprehensive income
Net loss

Cumulative effect adjustment in
connection with adoption of ASU
2016-02

Balance — June 30, 2020

PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’

Redeemable

EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(in millions)

© Total
Convertible Class Aand Class B pggitional Other Stockholders’

Preferred Stock Common Stock Paidin  Comprehensive Accumulated Equity

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit (Deficit)
1763 $ 406.3 202 $ — 3 61 $ — 5 (2877) $ (281.6)
— — 57 — 53 — — 5.3
— — — — 8.6 — — 8.6
— — — — 05 — (0.5) —
— — — — — — (47.9) (47.9)
1763 $ 4063 259 $ —$ 205 § —$  (336.1) $ (315.6)
381 $ 539.1 — 3 — $ — $ — — —
(3.8) (4.3) (4.8) — — — (97.8) (97.8)
— — 4.2 — 8.2 — — 8.2
— — — — 62.1 — — 62.1
— — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
— — — — — — (195.6) (195.6)
2106 $ 941.1 253 $ — %5 907 $ 02 $§ (6295 $ (538.6)
— — 434 $ — $ 11957 $ — 3 — % 1,195.7
(2106)  (941.1) 2106 — 941.1 — — 941.1
— — 8.5 — 130.7 — — 130.7
— — 0.2 — 3.7 — — 3.7
— — — — — 9.9 — 9.9
— — — — — — (71.6) (71.6)
— — — — — — 7.2 7.2
— s — 7 2881 § — 5 23618 $ 101 $  (6939) $§ 16780

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Description and Organization

Peloton Interactive, Inc. ("Peloton” or the “Company”) is the largest interactive fitness platform in the world with a loyal community of Members, which we
define as any individual who has a Peloton account through a paid Connected Fitness Subscription or a paid Peloton Digital Subscription. The Company
pioneered connected, technology-enabled fitness with the creation of its interactive fithess equipment ("Connected Fitness Products") and the streaming of
immersive, instructor-led boutique classes to its Members anytime, anywhere. The Company makes fitness entertaining, approachable, effective and
convenient while fostering social connections that encourage its Members to be the best versions of themselves.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, following its annual strategy setting and budgeting process, the Company's chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
changed how they assess performance and allocate resources. Based on this change, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, the Company determined it has
two operating and reportable segments: Connected Fitness Products and Subscription. The Company revised prior comparative periods to conform to the
current period segment presentation. See Note 19 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the Company's segment
reporting structure.

In September 2019, the Company closed its initial public offering ("IPO") and a concurrent private placement, in which it issued and sold 43,448,275 shares
of its Class A common stock. The price per share to the public in the IPO and in the concurrent private placement was $29.00 per share. The Company
received aggregate proceeds of $1.2 billion, net of the underwriting discount and offering costs. Prior to the closing of the IPO, all shares of the Company's
common stock then outstanding were redesignated into 25,301,604 shares of Class B common stock, and upon the closing of the IPO, all shares of the
Company's then outstanding preferred stock automatically converted into 210,640,629 shares of Class B common stock on a one-to-one basis.

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
("GAAP") and applicable rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Peloton Interactive, Inc. and its subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling financial interest. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Certain monetary amounts, percentages, and other figures included elsewhere in these financial statements have been subject to rounding adjustments.
Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be the arithmetic aggregation of the figures that precede them, and figures expressed as
percentages in the text may not total 100% or, as applicable, when aggregated may not be the arithmetic aggregation of the percentages that precede them.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all cash and short-term investments purchased with maturities of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents. As of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were primarily held in money market and operating accounts. At various times during
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the balances of cash at financial institutions exceeded the federally insured limit. The Company has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes its cash and cash equivalents are not subject to any significant credit risk.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash primarily consists of cash held in reserve accounts related to operating lease obligations.

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowances

The Company's accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from third-party sales processors. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates
accounts receivable estimated to be uncollectible, which to date have not been material, and provides allowances, as necessary, for doubtful accounts.

Revenue Recognition

On July 1, 2018, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09 and all subsequent amendments. The Company elected to apply the
standard and all related ASUs retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented. The adoption of the new standard had no material impact on the
measurement or recognition of revenue, resulting in no adjustments to the prior periods. Additional disclosures, however, have been added in accordance
with ASU 2014-09. Refer to Note 3, Revenue.

Inventories

Inventories consist of finished goods, work-in-process and raw materials. Finished goods are manufactured by us and purchased from contract
manufacturers. Connected Fitness Product, accessories, and apparel inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value on a weighted-
average cost basis. The Company assesses the valuation of inventory and periodically adjusts the value for estimated excess and obsolete inventory based
upon estimates of future demand and market conditions, as well as damaged or otherwise impaired goods. Spare parts are recorded as inventory and
recognized in cost of goods sold as consumed.

Marketable Securities

The Company classifies its marketable debt securities as available-for-sale and, accordingly, records them at fair value. Marketable securities with original
maturities of greater than three months and remaining maturities of less than one year are classified as current investments. Investments with maturities
beyond one year may be classified as current based on their highly liquid nature. Unrealized holding gains and losses, are excluded from earnings and are
reported net of tax in other comprehensive income until realized. Dividend and interest income is recognized when earned. Realized gains and losses, are
included in earnings and are derived using the specific identification method for determining the cost of securities sold.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. For leasehold improvements, the useful life is the lesser of the applicable lease term or the expected
asset life. Charges for repairs and maintenance that do not improve or extend the lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred. The Company
capitalizes the cost of pre-production tooling which it owns during a supply arrangement. Pre-production tooling, including the related engineering costs the
Company will not own or will not be used in producing products under long-term supply arrangements are expensed as incurred.

Internal-Use Software

The Company capitalizes certain qualified costs incurred in connection with the development of internal-use software. The Company evaluates the costs
incurred during the application development stage of internal use software and website development to determine whether the costs meet the criteria for
capitalization. Costs related to preliminary project activities and post implementation activities including maintenance are expensed as incurred. Capitalized
costs related to internal-use software are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, not to exceed three years.
Capitalized costs less accumulated amortization are included within property and equipment, net on the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest, if any, over the fair
value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. The Company has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Intangible assets other than goodwill are comprised of acquired developed technology. At initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognized at their fair value as of the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any, and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.
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The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually on April 1 of each fiscal year or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an
impairment may exist. In conducting its annual impairment test, the Company first reviews qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not
that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If factors indicate that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, the Company performs a quantitative assessment and the fair value of the reporting unit is determined by analyzing the expected present value of
future cash flows. If the carrying value of the reporting unit continues to exceed its fair value, the fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is calculated and
an impairment loss equal to the excess is recorded.

The Company assesses the impairment of intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted net future cash flows, an impairment
charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds fair value.

Cost of Revenue

Connected Fitness Products

Cost of revenue consists of product costs, including manufacturing costs, duties and other applicable importing costs, shipping and handling costs,
packaging, warranty replacement costs, fulfilment costs, warehousing costs, and certain allocated costs related to management, facilities, and personnel-
related expenses associated with supply chain logistics.

Subscription

Subscription cost of revenue includes costs associated with content creation and cost to stream content to Members across the Company’s platform. These
costs consist of both fixed costs, including studio rent and overhead costs and instructor and production personnel costs, as well as variable costs, including
music royalty fees, content costs for past use, third-party platform streaming costs, and payment processing fees for monthly subscription billings.

Music Royalty Fees

The Company recognizes music royalty fees on all music it streams to Members as these fees are incurred in accordance with the terms of the relevant
license agreement with the music rights holder. The incurrence of the royalties is primarily driven by content usage by the Company’s Members through the
use of a paid subscription, or as part of a free-trial offer and it is classified as subscription cost of revenue or sales and marketing expense, respectively,
within the Company’s statement of operations and comprehensive loss. The Company’s license agreements with music rights holders generally include
provisions for advance royalties as well as minimum guarantees. When a minimum guarantee is paid in advance, the guarantee is recorded as a cost to fulfill
or prepaid asset and amortized over the shorter of the period consumed or the term of the agreement.

As the Company executes music license agreements with various music rights holders for go-forward usage, the Company may also simultaneously enter
into a settlement agreement whereby the Company is released from all potential licensor claims regarding the Company’s alleged past use of copyrighted
material in exchange for a negotiated payment. These are referred to as “content costs for past use” and are recorded within subscription cost of revenue.
The Company has entered into agreements with music rights holders who represent all the music catalogs that the Company needs to operate its service,
however, given the uncertain and opaque nature of music rights ownership, the Company’s archived library may continue to include music for which certain
rights or fractional interests have not been accurately determined or fully licensed. Prior to the execution of a music license agreement, the Company
estimates and records a charge based upon license agreements previously entered into and the respective music rights holdings.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method for computing its income tax provision. Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the expected future
consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities as well as operating loss, capital loss, and tax
credit carryforwards, using enacted tax rates. Management makes estimates, assumptions, and judgments to determine the Company’s provision for income
taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. The Company assesses the likelihood that its
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent the Company believes recovery is not likely, establishes a valuation
allowance.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not the tax position will be sustained on examination by
the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized from such positions are then measured based on the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, which to date
have not been material, are recognized within income tax expense.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and other promotional costs to market the Company's products are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $302.8 million, $218.8
million and $101.4 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included within sales and marketing expenses in
the consolidated statement of operations.
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Research and Development Costs

Research and development expenses consist primarily of personnel- and facilities-related expenses, consulting and contractor expenses, tooling and
prototype materials and software platform expenses. Substantially all of the Company’s research and development expenses are related to developing new
products and services and improving existing products and services. Research and development expenses are expensed as incurred. We capitalize certain
qualified costs incurred in connection with the development of internal-use software.

Stock-Based Compensation

In August 2019, the Company's Board of Directors ("Board of Directors") adopted the 2019 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"), which was
subsequently approved by the Company’s stockholders in September 2019. The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense related to shares
issued pursuant to its ESPP on a straight-line basis over the offering period, which is twenty-four months. The ESPP allows employees to purchase shares
of the Company's Class A common stock at a 15 percent discount. The ESPP also includes a look-back provision for the purchase price if the stock price on
the purchase date is less than the stock price on the offering date.

In August 2019, the Board of Directors adopted the 2019 Equity Incentive Plan ("the 2019 Plan"), which was subsequently approved by the Company’s
stockholders in September 2019. Stock-based awards are measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and are recognized as expense,
net of actual forfeitures, on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of the respective award. For
performance-based awards issued, the value of the instrument is measured at the grant date as the fair value of the award and expensed over the vesting
term under an accelerated attribution method when the performance targets are considered probable of being achieved. The Company estimates the fair
value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The determination of the grant date fair value of stock awards issued is affected by a
number of variables, including the fair value of the Company’s common stock, the expected common stock price volatility over the expected life of the
awards, the expected term of the stock option, risk-free interest rates, and the expected dividend yield of the Company’s common stock. The Company
derives its volatility from the average historical stock volatilities of several peer public companies over a period equivalent to the expected term of the
awards. The Company estimates the expected term based on the simplified method for employee stock options considered to be “plain vanilla” options, as
the Company’s historical share option exercise experience does not provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the expected term. The risk-free
interest rate is based on the United States Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected dividend yield is 0.0% as the Company has not paid
and does not currently anticipate paying dividends on its common stock.

Generally, the 2019 Plan permits the early exercise of stock options granted prior to the IPO. The unvested portion of shares exercised is recorded as a
liability on the Company’s balance sheet and reclassified to equity as vesting occurs.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) savings plan covering all employees. Participating employees may contribute a portion of their salary into the savings plan,
subject to certain limitations. The Company matches 100% of each employee's contributions, up to a maximum of 4% of the employee's eligible earnings.
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, the Company's matching contributions totaled $8.4 million, $4.3 million, and $1.6 million,
respectively, and were expensed as contributed.

Common Stock Valuations

The Company has historically granted stock options at exercise prices equal to the fair value as determined by the Board of Directors on the date of grant.
Prior to the Company's IPO, in the absence of a public trading market, the Board of Directors, with input from management, exercised significant judgment
and considered numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the fair value of the Company’s common stock as of the date of each stock option
grant, including:

» relevant precedent transactions involving the Company’s capital stock;

+ the liquidation preferences, rights, preferences, and privileges of the Company’s redeemable convertible preferred stock relative to the common
stock;

+ the Company’s actual operating and financial performance;

« current business conditions and projections;

« the Company’s stage of development;

+ the likelihood and timing of achieving a liquidity event for the shares of common stock underlying the stock options, such as an initial public offering,
given prevailing market conditions;

* any adjustment necessary to recognize a lack of marketability of the common stock underlying the granted options;

* recent secondary stock sales and tender offers;

» the market performance of comparable publicly traded companies; and

+ U.S. and global capital market conditions.

In addition, prior to the Company's IPO, the Board of Directors considered the independent valuations completed by a third-party valuation consultant. The
valuations of the Company’s common stock were determined in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Practice Aid, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation.

Subsequent to the IPO, the fair value of the common stock is the closing stock price of the Company's Class A common stock as reported on the Nasdaq
Global Select Market.

Commitments and Contingencies
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Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties, and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment can be reasonably estimated. If a loss is reasonably possible and the loss or range of loss can
be reasonably estimated, the Company discloses the possible loss or states that such an estimate cannot be made.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Subsequent changes in fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities are recognized in earnings or other comprehensive income when they occur. When determining the fair value measurements for assets
and liabilities which are required to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which the Company
would transact and the market-based risk measurement or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities, such as
inherent risk, transfer restrictions, and credit risk.

The Company applies the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into three levels and bases the categorization
within the hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is available and significant to the fair value measurement:

* Level 1 inputs are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

+ Level 2 inputs are based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets), or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are
observable or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

+ Level 3 inputs are based on unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of fair value of assets or
liabilities, and typically reflect management’s estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

The Company’s material financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
and accrued expenses. The carrying values of the Company’s accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximated their fair values
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, due to the short period of time to maturity or repayment.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company computes earnings (loss) per share using the two-class method required for participating securities. The two-class method requires income
available to common stockholders for the period to be allocated between common stock and participating securities based upon their respective rights to
receive dividends as if all income for the period had been distributed. The Company’s redeemable convertible preferred stock, restricted stock awards, and
common stock issued upon early exercise of stock options are participating securities. The Company considers any shares issued upon early exercise of
stock options, subject to repurchase, to be participating securities because holders of such shares have non-forfeitable dividend rights in the event a cash
dividend is declared on common stock. These participating securities do not contractually require the holders of such shares to participate in the Company’s
losses. As such, net losses for the periods presented were not allocated to the Company’s participating securities.

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed using the weighted-average number of outstanding shares of common stock during the period. Diluted earnings
(loss) per share is computed using the weighted-average number of outstanding shares of common stock and, when dilutive, potential shares of common
stock outstanding during the period. Potential shares of common stock consist of incremental shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of stock options,
ESPP shares to be issued, and vesting of restricted stock awards. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the excess of the repurchase price of
preferred stock over its carrying value (see Note 18) has been recorded as an increase to net loss to determine net loss attributable to common
stockholders.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue, and expenses and related disclosures. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including, among others, those related to
revenue related reserves, the realizability of inventory, content costs for past use reserve, fair value measurements including common stock valuations, the
incremental borrowing rate associated with lease liabilities, useful lives of property and equipment, product warranty, goodwill and finite-lived intangible
assets, accounting for income taxes, stock-based compensation expense, transaction price estimates, the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in business combinations, contingent consideration, and commitments and contingencies. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted

ASU 2016-02

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which introduced and codified new lease accounting
guidance under Accounting Standards Codification No. 842, Leases ("ASC 842"). ASC 842 requires a lessee to separate the lease components from the
non-lease components in a contract and recognize in the statement of financial position a lease payment liability and a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. The Company adopted this ASU and related amendments as of July 1, 2019 under the modified
retrospective approach, whereby all prior periods continue to be reported under previous lease accounting guidance. The Company elected the package of
practical expedients and, as permitted, the Company did not assess whether existing contracts are or contain leases, the lease classification for any existing
leases, and identification of initial direct costs for any existing leases. In addition, the Company elected to apply the practical expedient that allows for the
combination of lease and non-lease components. Adoption of the new
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standard resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. In addition, the
Company de-recognized a build-to-suit arrangement in accordance with the transition requirements, which resulted in an adjustment to retained earnings.
The standard did not materially impact the Company's consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. See Note 11 for further discussion of
the Company's accounting for leases under ASC 842.

ASU 2017-04

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, to simplify the subsequent
measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. The standard is effective for public entities for annual or any interim
goodwill impairment tests in annual reporting years beginning after December 15, 2019. For all other entities, including emerging growth companies, the
standard is effective for annual or any interim goodwill impairment tests in annual reporting years beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption of this
standard is permitted. The Company adopted this ASU on July 1, 2019. The standard did not materially impact the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

ASU 2018-07

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07 to expand the scope of ASC Topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation, to include share-based payment
transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal
years, beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this ASU on July 1, 2019. The standard did not materially
impact the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

ASU 2016-13

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. This standard
changes the impairment model for most financial assets. The new model uses a forward-looking expected loss method, which may result in earlier
recognition of allowances for losses, and require expected credit losses to be reflected as allowances rather than reductions in the amortized cost of
available-for-sale debt securities. The Company has completed its assessment and adopted this standard on July 1, 2020. The standard did not materially
impact the Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2019-12

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, which amends ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes. This ASU
simplifies the accounting for income taxes by modifying the treatment of intraperiod tax allocation in certain circumstances, eliminating an exception to
recognizing deferred tax liabilities for outside basis differences for foreign equity method investments and foreign subsidiaries when ownership or control
changes, and modifying interim period tax calculations when a loss is forecast. In addition, this ASU also requires that enacted changes in tax laws or rates
be included in the annual effective rate determination in the period that includes the enactment date and clarifies the tax accounting of a step up in tax basis
of goodwill. The Company has completed its assessment and adopted this standard on July 1, 2020. The standard did not materially impact the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2020-04

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial
Reporting. This guidance provides temporary optional expedients and exceptions to accounting guidance on contract modifications and hedge accounting to
ease entities' financial reporting burdens as the market transitions from the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and other interbank offered rates to
alternative reference rates. The guidance was effective upon issuance and generally can be applied through December 31, 2022. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact of adopting this new accounting guidance, but does not expect the adoption of the standard to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

3. Revenue
The Company’s primary source of revenue is from sales of its Connected Fitness Products and associated recurring Subscription revenue.
The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

« Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

+ Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

»  Determination of the transaction price;

* Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to the Company’s customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The Company's revenue is reported net of sales returns and
discounts, as a reduction of the transaction price. The Company estimates its liability for product returns based on historical return trends by product
category, impact of seasonality, and an evaluation of current economic and market conditions and records the expected customer refund liability as a
reduction to revenue, and the expected inventory right of recovery as a reduction of cost of revenue. If actual return costs differ from previous estimates, the
amount of the liability and corresponding revenue are adjusted in the period in which such costs occur.

Some of the Company’s contracts with customers contain multiple performance obligations. For customer contracts that include multiple performance
obligations, the Company accounts for individual performance obligations if they are distinct. The transaction price is then allocated to each performance
obligation based on its standalone selling price. The Company generally determines standalone selling price based on prices charged to customers.
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Connected Fitness Products

Connected Fitness Products include the Company’s Bike and Tread, related accessories, branded apparel, and extended warranty agreements. The
Company recognizes Connected Fitness Product revenue net of sales returns and discounts when the product has been delivered to the customer, except
for extended warranty revenue which is recognized over the warranty period. The Company allows customers to return products within thirty days of
purchase, as stated in its return policy.

The Company records fees paid to third-party financing partners in connection with its consumer financing program as a reduction of revenue, as it considers
such costs to be a customer sales incentive. The Company records payment processing fees for its credit card sales for Connected Fitness Products within
Sales and marketing in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Subscription

The Company’s subscriptions provide unlimited access to content in its library of live and on-demand fitness classes. The Company’s subscriptions are
offered on a month-to-month basis.

Amounts paid for subscription fees are included within customer deposits and deferred revenue and recognized ratably on a month-to-month basis. The
Company records payment processing fees for its monthly subscription charges within cost of subscription revenue in the Company's consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Sales tax collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities is not included in revenue and is reflected as a liability on the balance sheet.

Product Warranty

The Company offers a standard product warranty that its Connected Fitness Products will operate under normal, non-commercial use for a period of one
year from the date of original delivery. The Company has the obligation, at its option, to either repair or replace the defective product. At the time revenue is
recognized, an estimate of future warranty costs, including costs associated with service of Connected Fitness Products outside of the warranty period, is
recorded as a component of cost of revenue. Factors that affect the warranty obligation include historical as well as current product failure rates, service
delivery costs incurred in correcting product failures, and warranty policies and business practices. The Company’s products are manufactured both in-house
and by contract manufacturers, and in certain cases, the Company may have recourse to such contract manufacturers.

The Company also offers the option for customers in some markets to purchase a third-party extended warranty and service contract that extends or
enhances the technical support, parts, and labor coverage offered as part of the base warranty included with the Connected Fitness Product for an additional
period of 12 to 27 months.

Revenue and related fees paid to the third-party provider are recognized on a gross basis as the Company has a continuing obligation to perform over the
service period. Extended warranty revenue is recognized ratably over the extended warranty coverage period and is included in Connected Fitness Product
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company's revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by major product lines, excluding sales-based taxes, are included in Note 19 under
the heading "Segment Information"”.

The Company's revenue disaggregated by geographic region, were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
North America (") $ 17436 $ 8979 $ 435.0
Rest of world @ 82.3 17.1 —
Total revenue $ 1,8259 § 915.0 $ 435.0

(1) Consists of United States and Canada.
(2) Consists of United Kingdom and Germany.

The Company's revenue attributable to the United States represented 93%, 97%, and 100% of total revenue for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019,
and 2018, respectively.

Customer Deposits and Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is recorded for nonrefundable cash payments received for the Company’s performance obligation to transfer, or stand ready to transfer,
goods or services in the future. Deferred revenue consists of subscription fees billed that have not been recognized. Customer deposits represent payments
received in advance before the Company transfers a good or service to the customer and are refundable.
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As of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, customer deposits of $341.5 million and $81.3 million, respectively, and deferred revenue of $22.1 million and $9.5
million, respectively, were included in customer deposits and deferred revenue on the Company's consolidated balance sheet.

In the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized $9.5 million and $2.9 million, respectively, of revenue that was included in the
deferred revenue balance as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Exemptions and Elections
The Company applies the practical expedient as per ASC 606-10-50-14 and does not disclose information related to remaining performance obligations due
to their original expected terms being one year or less.

The Company expenses sales commissions on its Connected Fitness Products when incurred because the amortization period would have been less than
one year. These costs are recorded in selling and marketing expense.

4. Investments in Marketable Securities

The following table summarizes the Company's investments in marketable securities:
June 30, 2020

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized

Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(in millions)
Corporate bonds $ 3977 $ 21§ 02) $ 399.6
U.S. treasury securities 300.5 1.9 — 302.4
Commercial paper 17.4 — — 17.4
Certificate of deposits 38.6 0.1 — 38.7
$ 7542 $ 41 % 0.2) $ 758.1
Less: Restricted marketable securities (" $ 38.5
Total marketable securities $ 719.5

(1) The Company is required to pledge or otherwise restrict a portion of cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities as collateral for standby letters of credit. The Company classifies cash, cash
equivalents, and marketable securities with use restrictions of less than twelve months as "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" and of twelve months or longer as non-current "Other assets" on
its consolidated balance sheets.

June 30, 2019
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized

Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(in millions)
Commercial paper $ 976 $ — 3 — 97.6
Corporate bonds 61.9 0.1 — 62.0
Certificate of deposits 34.8 — — 34.8
U.S. treasury securities 29.7 0.1 — 29.8
Total marketable securities $ 2241 § 02 $ — $ 224.3

(1) Includes $8.3 million included within cash and cash equivalents
5. Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, by level, within the fair value
hierarchy:
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As of June 30, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
Assets
Marketable securities: $ 7581 % — % — 3 758.1
Cost-method investments — — 0.7 0.7
Total $ 7581 $ — 3 07 $ 758.8
Liabilities
Other current liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ — 3 — 25 §$ 2.5
Other non-current liabilities:
Contingent consideration — — 4.6 4.6
Total $ — $ — $ 71 $ 7.1
As of June 30, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
Assets
Marketable securities (" $ 2243 $ — % — $ 224.3
Cost-method investments — — 0.6 0.6
Total $ 2243 $ — § 06 $ 2249

(1) Includes $8.3 million included in cash and cash equivalents.

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased. These investments are carried at cost, which
approximates fair value. All investments classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value within marketable securities in the consolidated balance
sheets. The Company’s investments classified as Level 1 are based on quoted prices that are available in active markets.

The contingent consideration represents the estimated fair value of cash consideration payable in connection with a recent acquisition that is contingent
upon the achievement of certain performance milestones. The Company estimated the fair value using expected future cash flows over the period in which
the obligation is expected to be settled, and applied a discount rate that appropriately captures a market participant's view of risk associated with the
obligation, which are considered to be Level 3 inputs. The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement is sensitive to change in the expected
achievement of the applicable milestones and changes in discount rate. The Company remeasures the fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement each reporting period, including the accretion of the discount, if applicable, and changes are recognized in general and administrative expense
in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. See Note 7 for further discussion of the Company's accounting for the contingent
consideration.

6. Inventory

Inventories were as follows:

As of June 30,

2020 2019
(in millions)
Raw materials $ 178 $ —
Work-in-process 4.6 —
Finished products 232.5 152.0
Total inventories 254.9 152.0
Less: Reserves (10.5) (15.4)
Total inventories, net $ 2445 % 136.6
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7. Acquisition of Tonic Fitness Technology

In October 2019, the Company completed its previously announced acquisition of Tonic Fitness Technology ("Tonic"), a manufacturing company located in
Taiwan, for a purchase price of approximately $45.0 million, net of cash acquired, which was paid in cash. On the acquisition date, Tonic became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company acquired Tonic in order to have more control over its supply chain and to help the Company scale its
production. The Company agreed to pay consideration if certain future production milestones are met over the next four years. This contingent consideration
was recorded as an earn-out liability on the consolidated balance sheets at its fair value of $6.8 million and is included within the purchase price. The
maximum payout of this contingent consideration is $7.5 million.

The operating results of Tonic have been included in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss since the acquisition
date. Actual and pro forma revenue and results of operations for the acquisition have not been presented because they do not have a material impact to the
consolidated revenue and results of operations, either individually or in the aggregate.

The Company recognized $0.3 million of acquisition-related costs that were expensed as incurred during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. These costs
are included in general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Purchase Price Allocation

The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method. The following table summarizes the final determination of the fair values of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the closing date:

As of October 16, 2019

(in millions)

Inventory $ 11.8
Other current assets 29.1
Property and equipment 20.4
Goodwill 323
Other assets 2.2

Total assets $ 95.7
Current liabilities (49.9)
Other liabilities (0.8)

Total liabilities $ (50.7)

Net assets acquired $ 45.0

The purchase price allocation resulted in the recognition of $32.3 million of goodwill, net of any foreign exchange rate impact. Goodwill represents the future
economic benefits expected to arise from other intangible assets acquired that do not qualify for separate recognition, including an experienced workforce
and expected future synergies. The Company allocated the goodwill to its Connected Fitness Products reporting segment. None of the goodwill is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

8. Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment consisted of the following:
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As of June 30,

2020 2019
(in millions)

Land $ 71 $ —
Buildings(" 9.2 149.3
Leasehold Improvements 115.4 47.6
Equipment 35.1 14.9
Furniture and Fixtures 9.8 7.5
Software 32.7 16.0
Construction in Progress 971 40.1

Total property and equipment 306.2 275.4
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (64.0) (25.6)

Total property and equipment, net $ 2423 $ 249.7

(1) Includes zero and $147.1 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, for the Company's build-to-suit asset.
As of June 30, 2020, 79% and 11% the Company's total property and equipment, net was attributable to the United States and the United Kingdom,

respectively. As of June 30, 2019, 97% of the Company's total property and equipment, net was attributable to the United States. No other country
represented more than 10% of the total property and equipment, net as of those periods.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold Improvements Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
Equipment Three to five years

Furniture and Fixtures Two to ten years

Software Two to three years

In November 2018, the Company entered into a lease agreement for office space for its new corporate headquarters where the Company was considered,
for accounting purposes only, the owner of the construction project under build-to-suit lease accounting. As a result of the adoption of ASC 842 on July 1,
2019, the Company de-recognized all build-to-suit lease assets. Refer to Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further information.

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $35.1 million, $16.7 million, and $6.3 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018,
respectively, of which $6.8 million, $3.3 million, and $1.2 million related to amortization of capitalized software costs for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020,
2019, and 2018, respectively.

9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill are as follows:

Amount
(in millions)
June 30, 2018 $ 4.2
Acquisition 0.1
June 30, 2019 4.3
Acquisition 32.3
Foreign currency translation 2.6
June 30, 2020 $ 39.1

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the Company's intangible assets, net, as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

73



Weighted Average

Accumulated Remaining Useful Life
Gross Carrying Value Amortization Net Carrying Value (Years)
Acquired developed technology $ 248 $ 103 $ 14.5 3.0
Definite-lived intangibles 1.6 0.1 1.5 4.7
Total intangible assets $ 264 $ 104 $ 16.0

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the Company's intangible assets, net, as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Weighted Average
Accumulated Remaining Useful
Gross Carrying Value Amortization Net Carrying Value Life (Years)

Acquired developed technology $ 248 $ 53 $ 19.5 4.0

The Company recognized intangible asset amortization in the consolidated statements of operations in the amount of $5.1 million, $5.0 million, and $0.3
million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.

As of June 30, 2020, estimated amortization related to the Company's identifiable acquisition-related intangible assets in future periods were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount
(in millions)

2021 $ 5.3
2022 5.3
2023 4.9
2024 0.3
2025 0.2
Total $ 16.0

10. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019
(in millions)
Inventory received but not billed $ 886 $ 12.8
Accrued music licensing royalties 37.9 25.8
Employee-related liabilities 35.1 9.7
Accrued marketing 5.8 19.3
Other 58.5 36.8
Total accrued expenses $ 2259 $ 104.5

11. Leases

The Company leases facilities under operating leases with various expiration dates through 2039. The Company leases space for its corporate headquarters
and the operation of its production studio facilities, showrooms, distribution facilities, warehouses, factories, and other office spaces.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are established on the consolidated balance sheets for leases with an expected term greater than one year. As the
rate implicit in the lease is not determinable, the Company uses its secured incremental borrowing rate to determine the present value of the lease
payments.
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Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company recognizes lease expense for these
leases on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The Company has elected to not separate lease and non-lease components.

The Company's lease terms include options to extend or terminate the underlying lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that

option. The operating lease arrangements included in the measurement of lease liabilities do not reflect options to extend or terminate, as management does
not consider the exercise of these options to be reasonably certain.

Variable lease payments include, but are not limited to, percentage of sales, common area charges, taxes paid by the landlord that are charged to the
Company, and changes to the consumer price index. Variable lease payments are expensed as incurred.

As of June 30, 2020, the total remaining lease payments included in the measurement of lease liabilities for operating leases were as follows:

Future Minimum

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Payments
(in millions)

2021 $ 48.1
20222 55.2
2023 68.0
2024 64.4
2025 59.2
Thereafter 522.3

Total $ 817.3

(1) Includes $22.8 million in tenant improvement receivable.
(2) Includes $13.3 million in tenant improvement receivable.

Supplemental information related to leases was as follows:

Reconciliation of Lease Liabilities As of June 30, 2020
(dollars in millions)
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years) 12.7
Weighted-average discount rate 5.84 %
Total Undiscounted Lease Liability $ 817.3
Less: Imputed interest (272.1)
Total Discounted Lease Liability $ 5451
Current portion of lease liability $ 36.9
Non-current portion of lease liability $ 508.2

Supplemental cash flow and other information related to leases was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

Cash Paid For Amounts Included In Measurement of Liabilities June 30, 2020

(in millions)
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 45.2
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilities (non-cash) $ 356.2

Total operating lease expense was $89.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, of which $11.8 million was attributable to variable lease expense
and $1.7 million was attributable to short-term lease expense. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, rent expense was $35.8 million and $15.1
million, respectively.

12. Debt and Financing Arrangements
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

In 2019 the Company entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement (“Amended Credit Agreement”) the Amended Credit Agreement
provides for a $250.0 million secured revolving credit facility, including up to the lesser of $150.0 million and the aggregate unused
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amount of the facility for the issuance of letters of credit. Interest on the Amended Credit Agreement is paid based on LIBOR plus 2.75% or an Alternative
Base Rate plus 1.75%. The Company is required to pay an annual commitment fee of 0.375% on a quarterly basis based on the unused portion of the
revolving credit facility.

The Company incurred total commitment fees of $0.9 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, which are included in interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The outstanding balance, if any, is payable in full in June 2024. As of June 30, 2020, the Company has not drawn on the credit facility and did not have
outstanding borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement.

In connection with the execution of the Amended Credit Agreement, the Company incurred debt issuance costs of $0.9 million, which are capitalized and
presented as other assets on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. These costs are being amortized to interest expense using the effective interest
method over the term of the Amended Credit Agreement.

The Company has the option to repay its borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement without premium or penalty prior to maturity. The Amended
Credit Agreement contains customary affirmative covenants, such as financial statement reporting requirements and delivery of borrowing base certificates,
as well as customary covenants that restrict its ability to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness, sell certain assets, guarantee obligations of third
parties, declare cash dividends in the entirety or make certain other distributions, and undergo a merger or consolidation or certain other transactions. The
Amended Credit Agreement also contains certain financial condition covenants, including maintaining a total level of liquidity of not less than $125.0 million
and maintaining certain minimum total revenue ranging from $725.0 million to $1,985.0 million depending on the applicable date of determination. As of
June 30, 2020, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under the Amended Credit Agreement. At June 30, 2020, the Company was contingently
liable for approximately $4.8 million in standby letters of credit as security for an operating lease obligation.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments
The Company is subject to minimum guarantee royalty payments associated under certain music license agreements.

The following represents the Company's minimum annual guarantee payments under music license agreements for the next three years:

Future Minimum

Payments
(in millions)
2021 $ 26.9
2022 13.5
2023 3.2
2024 0.7
Total $ 443

Content Costs for Past Use Reserve

To secure the rights to stream music on the Peloton platform, the Company must obtain licenses from, and pay royalties to, copyright owners of both sound
recordings and musical compositions. The Company has entered into negotiations with various music rights holders, to pay for any and all uses of musical
compositions and sound recordings to date and, at the same time, enter into go-forward license agreements for the use of music in the future.

Prior to the execution of go-forward music license agreements, the Company estimates and records expenses inclusive of estimated content costs for past
use as well as normal and recurring music royalty expenses. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded content
costs for past use and estimates for normal and recurring royalty expense of $18.7 million, $19.3 million and $15.5 million, respectively. The Company
includes both of these components in its reserve. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded reserves of $25.1 million and $18.9 million,
respectively, included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is, or may become, a party to legal and regulatory proceedings with respect to a variety of matters in the ordinary course of business. Some of
these proceedings may be based on complex claims involving substantial uncertainties and unascertainable damages, such as litigation that centers around
intellectual property claims. Accordingly, except as discussed below, it is not possible to determine the probability of loss or estimate damages, and
therefore, the Company has not established reserves for any of these proceedings. When the Company determines that a loss is both probable and
reasonably estimable, the Company records a liability, and, if the liability is material, discloses the amount of the liability reserved. The Company does not
believe that the outcome of any existing legal or regulatory proceeding to

76



which it is a party, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Downtown Music Publishing, LLC et. al. v. Peloton Interactive, Inc.

On March 19, 2019, Downtown Music Publishing LLC, ole Media Management, L.P., Big Deal Music, LLC, CYPMP, LLC, Peer International Corporation,
PSO Limited, Peermusic Ltd., Peermusic lll, Ltd., Peertunes, Ltd., Songs of Peer Ltd., Reservoir Media Management, Inc., The Richmond Organization, Inc.,
Round Hill Music LLC, The Royalty Network, Inc., and Ultra International Music Publishing, LLC filed a lawsuit against the Company in the U.S. District Court
for the Southern District of New York, captioned Downtown Music Publ'g LLC, et. al v. Peloton Interactive, Inc., alleging that the Company engaged in
copyright infringement by using certain accused songs in streaming and recorded fitness classes without necessary licenses. The plaintiffs alleged that they
are music publishers that own or control the copyrights in numerous musical works that were synchronized by the Company without the plaintiffs’
authorization. The complaint asserted a single claim for copyright infringement.

On April 30, 2019, the Company answered the complaint and filed counterclaims against the original named plaintiffs and National Music Publishers’
Association, Inc., a trade association, alleging that they coordinated to collectively negotiate licenses in violation of the antitrust laws. The counterclaims also
asserted that the trade association tortuously interfered with the Company's attempts to engage in direct negotiations with music publishers in violation of
state law. The counterclaims sought injunctive relief, monetary damages (to be trebled under applicable statute), and attorneys’ fees and costs. An initial
pretrial conference was held on May 9, 2019 and discovery commenced thereafter. An amended complaint filed on May 31, 2019 named additional plaintiffs
Greensleeves Publishing Ltd., Me Gusta Music, LLC, Raleigh Music Publishing LLC, STB Music, Inc., and TuneCore, Inc. and identified additional musical
works. The Company answered the amended complaint on June 14, 2019. On June 24, 2019, counter-defendants filed a motion to dismiss the
counterclaims, to which the Company filed an opposition on August 8, 2019.

On September 27, 2019, the district court granted plaintiffs leave to file a second amended complaint identifying additional musical works and affiliated
entities, and requesting injunctive relief, more than $300 million in damages, and attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company answered the second amended
complaint and also filed counterclaims on October 11, 2019. On October 25, 2019, counter-defendants filed a motion to dismiss the counterclaims, to which
the Company filed an opposition on November 8, 2019. On January 29, 2020, the court granted plaintiffs’ motion to dismiss the Company’s counterclaims.
The parties agreed to settle the litigation and executed a confidential settlement agreement on February 24, 2020.

Other

On January 30, 2020, the Company entered into a confidential settlement agreement with Flywheel Sports, Inc. (“Flywheel”) pursuant to which the Company
and Flywheel agreed, among other things, to withdraw, and seek dismissal and termination of, a series of ongoing patent litigation matters between the
parties.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recognized $60.1 million, $12.1 million and $1.5 million, respectively, for litigation
and settlement expenses.

14. Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock

In August 2019, the Company implemented a dual class common stock structure by reclassifying all existing shares of common stock into Class B common
stock and authorizing a new class of common stock, the Class A common stock. The Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share and the Class
B common stock is entitled to twenty votes per share. The Class A and Class B common stock have the same dividend and liquidation rights, and the Class
B common stock converts to Class A common stock at any time at the option of the holder, or automatically upon the date that is the earliest of (i) the date
specified by a vote of the holders of 66 2/3% of the then outstanding shares of Class B common stock, (ii) 10 years from the closing date of the IPO, and (iii)
the date that the total number of shares of Class B common stock outstanding cease to represent at least 1% of all outstanding shares of the Company's
common stock. In addition, each share of Class B common stock will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock upon any transfer,
except for certain transfers described in the Company's restated certificate of incorporation. Upon the creation of the dual class common stock structure, all
outstanding options and the warrant to purchase common stock became options and a warrant, respectively, to purchase an equivalent number of shares of
Class B common stock.

The Board of Directors authorized the issuance of Class A common stock and Class B common stock, each with a par value of $0.000025 per share. As of
June 30, 2020, there were 2,500,000,000 shares of Class A common stock and 2,500,000,000 shares of Class B common stock authorized and 237,518,574
shares of Class A common stock and 50,538,538 shares of Class B common stock outstanding.

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

In September 2019, upon the closing of the Company's IPO, all outstanding shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock were automatically converted
into an aggregate of 210,640,629 shares of Class B common stock.

Preferred Stock
Effective September 2019, the Board of Directors authorized the issuance of undesignated preferred stock, with a par value of $0.000025 per share. As of
June 30, 2020, there were 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized and zero shares of preferred stock outstanding.

15. Equity-Based Compensation
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2015 Stock Plan

In April 2015, the Board of Directors approved the establishment of the 2015 Stock Plan (the “2015 Plan”) to provide stock award grants to employees,
directors, and consultants of the Company. The Board of Directors, or at its sole discretion, a committee of the Board of Directors, is responsible for the
administration of the 2015 Plan.

The 2015 Plan requires that the per share exercise price of each stock option shall not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common stock
subject to the stock option on the grant date. Stock option grants shall not be exercisable after the expiration of ten years from the date of its grant or such
shorter period as specified in a stock award agreement. For initial grants, vesting generally occurs over four years with the first 25% of the award vesting
upon the 12-month anniversary of the vesting commencement date and the remaining 75% vesting monthly over the following 36 months. The 2015 Plan
provides that the Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, impose such limitations on transferability of stock options as the Board of Directors shall
determine. In the absence of a determination by the Board of Directors to the contrary, stock options shall not be transferable except by will or by the laws of
descent and distribution, and domestic relations orders unless specifically agreed to by the plan administrator.

The 2015 Plan was terminated in connection with the adoption of the Company's 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2019 Plan") in September 2019, and the
Company will not grant any additional awards under the 2015 Plan. However, the 2015 Plan will continue to govern the terms and conditions of the
outstanding awards previously granted thereunder. Any reserved shares not issued or subject to outstanding grants under the 2015 Plan on the effective
date of the 2019 Plan became available for grant under the 2019 Plan and will be issued as Class A common stock.

2019 Equity Incentive Plan

In August 2019, the Board of Directors adopted the 2019 Plan, which was subsequently approved by the Company’s stockholders in September 2019. The
Company initially reserved 49,809,576 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock to be issued under the 2019 Plan, which figure includes all shares
reserved under the 2015 Plan not issued or subject to outstanding grants under the 2015 Plan as of the effective date of the 2019 Plan. The number of
shares reserved for issuance under the 2019 Plan will increase automatically on July 1 of each of 2020 through 2029 by the number of shares of the
Company’s Class A common stock equal to 5% of the total outstanding shares of all of the Company’s classes of common stock as of each June 30
immediately preceding the date of increase, or a lesser amount as determined by the Board of Directors.

Stock Options
The following summary sets forth the stock option activity under the 2019 Plan:

Options Outstanding

Weighted-
Average
P Aggregate
Weighted- Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Average Contractual Value (in
Stock Options Exercise Price Term (years) millions)
Outstanding — June 30, 2019 64,602,124 $ 6.71 86 $ 972.0
Granted 12,086,466 $ 27.11
Exercised (7,815,137) $ 412
Forfeited (2,054,593) $ 11.01
Outstanding — June 30, 2020 66,818,860 $ 10.57 80 $ 3,153.6
Vested and Exercisable— June 30, 2020 27,144,270 g 4.70 69 $ 1,440.5
Unvested option activity is as follows:
Weighted-Average
Options Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested - June 30, 2019 46,078,443 $ 4.89
Granted 12,086,466 $ 1217
Early exercised unvested (113,688) $ 3.94
Vested (16,335,310) $ 4.10
Forfeited (2,041,321) $ 5.33
Unvested - June 30, 2020 39,674,590 § 7.41

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding, vested and exercisable, were calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the options and
the fair value of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2020. Prior to the IPO, the fair value of the Company's common stock was determined by the
Board of Directors. After the IPO, the fair value of the common stock is the closing stock price of the Company's Class A common stock as reported on the
Nasdaq Global Select Market.
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As part of the 2015 Plan and 2019 Plan (the "Plans"), the Company issued options to certain key management that vest upon the achievement of certain
performance milestones. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related
to the performance based options of $5.2 million, $0.8 million and zero, respectively.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the weighted-average grant date fair value per option was $12.17, $6.71, and $1.67 respectively.
The fair value of each option was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
Weighted average risk-free interest rate () 1.1% 2.5% 2.4%
Weighted average expected term (in years) 6.2 6.3 6.3
Weighted average expected volatility ) 44.9% 45.0% 55.2%

Expected dividend yield — — —

(1) Based on U.S. Treasury seven-year constant maturity interest rate whose term is consistent with the expected term of the option.
(2) Expected volatility is based on an analysis of comparable public company volatilities and adjusted for the Company’s stage of development.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the holder of a warrant to purchase 240,000 shares of the Company's Class B common stock net exercised the
warrant into 238,253 shares of Class B common stock at an exercise price of $0.19 per share. As of June 30, 2020, there were no outstanding warrants.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units
The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company's restricted stock and restricted stock units:

Restricted Stock Units Outstanding

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Number of Awards Value
Outstanding — June 30, 2019 — 95 —
Granted 706,825 $ 32.02
Vested and converted to common stock (90,712) $ 31.99
Outstanding — June 30, 2020 616,113 ¢ 32.02

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In August 2019, the Board of Directors adopted, and in September 2019, the Company's stockholders approved, the ESPP, through which eligible
employees may purchase shares of the Company's Class A common stock at a discount through accumulated payroll deductions. The ESPP became
effective on the date the registration statement, in connection with the Company’s IPO, was declared effective by the SEC (the "Effective Date"). A total of
5,600,000 shares of the Company's Class A common stock are available for issuance and sale to eligible employees under the ESPP. The number of shares
of the Company's Class A common stock that will be available for issuance and sale to eligible employees under the ESPP will increase automatically on the
first day of each fiscal year of the Company beginning on July 1, 2020 through 2029, equal to 1% of the total number of outstanding shares of all classes of
the Company's common stock on the immediately preceding June 30, or such lesser number as may be determined by the Board of Directors or applicable
committee in its sole discretion.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, each offering period will consist of four six-month purchase periods, provided that the initial offering
period commenced on the Effective Date and will end on August 31, 2021, and the initial purchase period ended February 28, 2020. Thereafter, each
offering period and each purchase period will commence on September 1 and March 1 and end on August 31 and February 28 of each two-year period or
each six-month period, respectively, subject to a reset provision. If the closing stock price on the first day of an offering period is higher than the closing stock
price on the last day of any applicable purchase period, participants will be withdrawn from the ongoing offering period immediately following the purchase of
ESPP shares on the purchase date and would automatically be enrolled in the subsequent offering period ("ESPP reset"), resulting in a modification under
ASC 718.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, the purchase price for each share of Class A common stock purchased under the ESPP will be 85%
of the lower of the fair market value per share on the first trading day of the applicable offering period or the fair market value per share on the last trading
day of the applicable purchase period. There was an ESPP reset during the year ended June 30, 2020 that resulted in a total modification charge of $2.5
million, which is recognized over the new two-year offering period ending February 28, 2022.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model assumptions used to calculate the fair value of shares estimated to be purchased at the commencement of the
ESPP offering periods included weighted average expected terms of 1.1 years, weighted average expected volatility of
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54.8%, and weighted average risk-free rate of 1.5% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The expected term assumptions were based on each offering
period's respective purchase date. Since the Company does not have a historical trading history of its stock, the expected volatility was derived from the
average historical stock volatilities of several unrelated public companies that the Company considers to be comparable to its business over a period
equivalent to the expected terms. The risk-free rate assumptions were based on the U.S. treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grants. The dividend
yield assumption was zero as the Company has not historically paid any dividends and does not expect to declare or pay dividends in the foreseeable future.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense associated with the ESPP of $3.3 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, employees purchased approximately 162,639 shares of Class A common stock, under the ESPP, at a weighted-
average price of $22.69. As of June 30, 2020, total unrecognized compensation cost related to the ESPP was $8.6 million, which will be amortized over a
weighted-average remaining period of 1.7 years.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
The Company's total stock-based compensation expense was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)

Cost of revenue
Connected Fitness Products $ 32 % 03 $ —
Subscription 7.5 3.2 0.5
Total cost of revenue 10.7 3.5 0.5
Sales and marketing 15.3 8.4 0.7
General and administrative 524 70.5 6.5
Research and development 10.4 71 0.8
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 888 §$ 895 $ 8.5

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company recorded a one-time stock-based compensation charge of $61.7 million related to a tender offer
completed by the Company in August 2018 to purchase outstanding shares of common stock and preferred stock.

As of June 30, 2020, the Company had $291.1 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to unvested stock-based awards that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.3 years.

16. Concentration of Credit Risk and Major Customers and Vendors

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents. The
Company’s cash and cash equivalents are maintained with high-quality financial institutions, the compositions and maturities of which are regularly
monitored by management.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018, there were no customers representing greater than 10% of the Company’s total revenue.

The Company'’s top four vendors accounted for approximately 61% and 91% of total finished goods purchased for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

The Company’s top three vendors accounted for approximately 91% of total finished goods purchases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
17. Income Taxes

The components of loss before income taxes are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
United States $ (15.6) $ (164.4) $ (47.0)
Foreign (52.8) (31.2) (0.8)
Loss from operations before income taxes $ (68.4) $ (195.6) $ (47.8)
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The components of income tax expense/(benefit) are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
Current:

Federal $ — % — % —
State 1.2 0.1 0.1
Foreign 3.0 0.3 —
4.2 0.4 0.1

Deferred:
Federal — — —
State — — —
Foreign (0.9) (0.3) —
(0.9) (0.3) —
Total $ 33 § 01 $ 0.1

A reconciliation from the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
Federal income tax rate 21.0 % 21.0 % 28.1 %
Permanent differences (1.8) (4.2) (1.0)
Share based compensation 34.2 — —
Return to provision (3.8) (0.4) —
Effects of rates different than statutory — (0.3) —
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit 8.6 3.0 4.5
Franchise tax (1.2) — (0.1)
Change in valuation allowance (65.6) (21.0) 3.7
Rate change (0.5) (0.4) (39.3)
Federal credits 4.4 2.3 4.0
Other (0.1) — —
Effective income tax rate (4.8)% — % (0.1)%

The primary differences from the U.S. statutory rate and the Company’s effective tax rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 are due to the change in
valuation allowance and permanent differences related to stock compensation. The primary differences from the U.S. statutory rate and the Company’s
effective tax rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 are due to the change in valuation allowance and permanent differences related to stock
compensation. The primary differences from the U.S. statutory rate and the Company’s effective tax rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 are due to
the rate change on deferred tax assets as a result of the enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“Act”), partially offset by state and local taxes and federal
tax credits.

On March 27, 2020, The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the "CARES Act") was signed into law in the United States. The CARES Act
and related notices include several significant provisions. The Company does not currently expect the CARES Act to have a material impact on its financial
results, including the Company's effective tax rate. The Company will continue to monitor and assess the impact the CARES Act and similar legislation in
other countries may have on its business and financial results.

On December 22, 2017, the Act was signed into law making significant changes to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Changes include, but
are not limited to, a federal corporate tax rate decrease from 35% to 21% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, a one-time transition tax on the
mandatory deemed repatriation of foreign earnings, and numerous domestic and international-related provisions effective in 2018. The Company has
estimated its provision for income taxes specifically related to the reduction of the federal corporate tax rate in accordance with the Act and guidance
available as of the date of this filing and as a result has recorded $18.0 million of income tax expense, which was offset by a corresponding adjustment for
the same amount to the Company’s valuation allowance, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
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On December 22, 2017, Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 was issued to address the application of GAAP in situations when a company does not have the
necessary information available, prepared, or analyzed (including computations) in reasonable detail to complete the accounting for certain income tax
effects of the Act. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Company recorded $18.0 million of the income tax expense in connection with the re-
measurement of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2019, the Company has completed the accounting for all the impacts of the Act
with no material changes to the provisional estimate recorded in the prior period.

As of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, the Company’s deferred tax assets were primarily the result of U.S. federal and state net operating losses (“NOLs”),
deferred revenue, research and development tax credits, non-qualified stock options, and accrued litigation reserves. A valuation allowance was maintained
on substantially all worldwide gross deferred tax asset balances as of June 30, 2020 and 2019. As of each reporting date, the Company’s management
considers new evidence, both positive and negative, that could impact management’s view with regard to future realization of deferred tax assets. The
recognition of deferred tax assets was based on the evaluation of current and estimated future profitability of the operations, reversal of deferred tax liabilities
and the likelihood of utilizing tax credit and/or loss carryforwards. As of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, the Company continued to maintain that it is not at
the more likely than not standard, wherein deferred taxes will be realized in the United States and United Kingdom due to the recent history of losses and
management’s expectation of continued tax losses.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019
(in millions)
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss $ 639 $ 34.4
Accruals and reserves 13.7 10.0
R&D credit 9.2 7.7
Accrued legal and professional fees 5.3 4.8
Non-qualified stock options 20.8 8.8
Restricted stock options 2.5 —
Deferred rent — 29
Property and equipment — 0.2
Intangible amortization — 0.9
Inventory capitalization 8.8 5.0
Lease liability 129.6 —
Deferred revenue 8.4 10.4
Tenant Improvement Allowance — 2.9
Other 11 0.6
Total deferred tax assets: 263.3 88.5
Valuation allowance (128.5) (86.9)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid Expenses (3.1) (1.4)
Property and equipment (10.6) —
Intangible amortization (2.1) —
Right-of-use assets (116.4) —
Other (1.0) —
Total deferred tax liabilities: (133.2) (1.4)
Deferred tax assets, net $ 16 $ 0.3

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company had federal NOLs of approximately $191.1 million and $112.6 million, respectively, of which $59.3 million will
begin to expire in 2036 and the remainder will be carried forward indefinitely. The Company has undergone three ownership changes on November 30,
2015, April 18, 2017, and February 24, 2020 and its NOLs are subject to a Section 382 limitation. The total NOLs subject to a 382 limitation are $169.0
million and $72.3 million as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019. The resulting Section 382 limitations are large enough to avail the Section 382 limited
NOLs by June 30, 2022. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company had state NOLs of approximately $99.6 million and $95.8 million, respectively, which
will begin to expire at various dates beginning in 2021 if not utilized. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company had foreign NOLs of approximately $94.2
million and $26.7 million, respectively, generated from its operations in the United

82



Kingdom, which will be carried forward indefinitely. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company had $9.2 million and $7.7 million, respectively, of U.S.
research and development credit carryovers that will begin to expire in 2036.

As of June 30, 2020, the Company did not have material undistributed foreign earnings. The Company has not recorded a deferred tax liability for foreign
withholding or other foreign local tax on the undistributed earnings from the Company’s international subsidiaries as such earnings are considered to be
indefinitely reinvested.

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes using a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more likely than not to
be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that has a greater than 50%
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate audit settlement. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company has not recognized any uncertain tax positions.

The Company is subject to taxation in the United States, various state and local jurisdictions, as well as foreign jurisdictions including Canada, Germany,
Taiwan, and the United Kingdom. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Company closed a U.S. IRS audit for the year ended February 25, 2018 with no
assessments or adjustments. The tax years ended June 30, 2019, June 30, 2018, February 25, 2018, and February 26, 2017 remain open to examination by
tax authorities in various jurisdictions. As of June 30, 2020, there are no income tax audits in process.

18. Loss Per Share

The computation of loss per share is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Basic loss per share:
Net loss $ (71.6) $ (195.6) $ (47.9)
Less: Premium on repurchase of convertible preferred stock — (50.1) —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (71.6) $ (245.7) § (47.9)
Shares used in computation:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 220,952,237 22,911,764 21,934,228
Basic loss per share $ (0.32) $ (10.72) $ (2.18)

Basic and diluted loss per share are the same for each class of common stock because they are entitled to the same liquidation and dividend rights.

The following potentially dilutive shares were not included in the calculation of diluted shares outstanding as the effect would have been anti-dilutive:

Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
Stock options 41,476,591 20,609,654 12,890,826
Restricted stock and restricted stock units 41,855 — —
Shares estimated to be purchased under ESPP 66,019 — —
Warrants — 234,527 224,903
Redeemable convertible preferred stock — 210,640,629 176,313,468

19. Segment Information

The Company applies ASC 280, Segment Reporting, in determining reportable segments for its financial statement disclosure. The Company
has two reportable segments: Connected Fitness Products and Subscription. Segment information is presented in the same manner that the CODM reviews
the operating results in assessing performance and allocating resources. The CODM reviews revenue and gross profit for both of the reportable segments.
Gross profit is defined as revenue less cost of revenue incurred by the segment. Historically, the Company reported gross margin for three segments:
Connected Fitness Products, Subscription and Other, which was reflective of how the Company’s CODM reviewed financial information for purposes of
making operating decisions, assessing financial performance and allocating resources. Effective in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, following the Company's
annual strategy setting and budgeting process, the CODM changed how they assess performance and allocate resources. The Company revised prior
comparative periods to conform to the current period segment presentation.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the reportable segments. The Company does not allocate assets at the reportable segment level as
these are managed on an entity wide group basis and, accordingly, the Company does not report asset information by segment.
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The Connected Fitness Product segment derives revenue from sale of the Bike, Tread and related accessories, delivery and installation services, branded
apparel, and extended warranty agreements. The Subscription segment derives revenue from monthly Subscription fees. There are no internal revenue
transactions between the Company’s segments.

Key financial performance measures of the segments including Revenue, Cost of revenue, and Gross profit are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Connected Fitness Products:
Revenue $ 1,4622 $ 7339 §$ 354.7
Cost of revenue 833.5 427.8 199.9
Gross profit $ 628.8 $ 306.2 $ 154.9
Subscription:
Revenue $ 363.7 $ 181.1  $ 80.3
Cost of revenue 155.7 103.7 45.5
Gross profit $ 208.0 $ 774 % 34.7
Consolidated:
Revenue $ 1,8259 $ 9150 $ 435.0
Cost of revenue 989.1 531.4 2454
Gross profit $ 836.7 $ 383.6 $ 189.6

Reconciliation of Gross Profit

Operating expenditures, interest (income) and other expense, and taxes are not allocated to individual segments as these are managed on an entity wide
group basis. The reconciliation between reportable segment gross profit to consolidated loss before tax is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2020 2019 2018
(in millions)
Segment Gross Profit $ 836.7 $ 3836 $ 189.6
Sales and marketing (477.0) (324.0) (151.4)
General and administrative (351.6) (207.0) (62.4)
Research and development (89.0) (54.8) (23.4)
Total other income (expense), net 124 6.7 (0.3)
Loss before provision for income taxes $ (68.4) § (195.6) $ (47.8)

20. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Selected summarized quarterly financial information for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

Year ended Three months ended
Jun. 30, 2020 Jun. 30, 2020 Mar. 31, 2020 Dec. 31, 2019 Sept. 30, 2019
(in millions)

Total revenue $ 1,8259 § 6071 $ 5246 $ 466.3 $ 228.0
Gross profit 836.7 288.8 245.8 197.1 105.1
Income (loss) from operations () (80.8) 90.0 (58.4) (61.5) (50.9)
Net income (loss) (71.6) 89.1 (55.6) (55.4) (49.8)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic ? $ (0.32) $ 031 § (0.20) $ (0.20) $ (1.29)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, diluted @ $ (0.32) $ 027 $ (0.20) $ (0.20) $ (1.29)
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(1) Net income from operations for the three months ended June 30, 2020, reflects strong demand due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic coupled with the pause on the majority of marketing spend.
(2) The sum of the income (loss) per share for the four quarters may differ from annual income (loss) per share due to the required method of computing the weighted average shares in interim periods.

Year ended Three months ended
Jun. 30, 2019 Jun. 30, 2019 Mar. 31, 2019 Dec. 31,2018 Sept. 30, 2018
(in millions)

Total revenue $ 9150 $ 2233 $ 316.7 $ 2629 $ 112.1
Gross profit 383.6 100.1 120.6 111.3 51.5
(Loss) from operations (202.3) (49.4) (41.4) (56.0) (55.6)
Net (loss) (195.6) (47.4) (38.6) (55.1) (54.5)
Net (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted (") $ (10.72) $ (2.07) $ (1.76) $ (4.83) $ (2.18)

(1) The sum of the income (loss) per share for the four quarters may differ from annual income (loss) per share due to the required method of computing the weighted average shares in interim periods.
21. Subsequent Events
Restricted Stock Unit and Option Grants

Following June 30, 2020, the Board of Directors approved $95.0 million in value of equity awards consisting of a combination of restricted stock units for the
shares of the Company's Class A common stock and stock options to purchase shares of the Company's Class A common stock.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act as of June 30, 2020. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of June 30, 2020, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and submit
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported as and when required, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding its required
disclosure.

Remediation of Material Weakness
In connection with our audit of the fiscal year 2018 consolidated financial statements, we and our independent registered public accounting firm determined

that we had material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. These material weaknesses primarily pertained to IT general controls,
controls to address segregation of certain accounting duties, timely reconciliation and analysis of certain key accounts and the review of journal entries.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, we implemented enhanced procedures to remediate the deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting that
resulted in material weaknesses. Specific remedial actions undertaken by management included, without limitation:

+ implementation of IT general controls to manage access and program changes within our IT environment;

« the hiring of additional accounting and finance resources with public company experience;

+ implementation of additional review controls and processes and requiring timely account reconciliations and analyses;
+ implementation of processes and controls to better identify and manage segregation of duties risks; and

» implementation of journal entry approval workflow within our key financial system

We have completed execution of our remediation plan and successfully remediated the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting
described above as of June 30, 2020.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation
report of our independent registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by the rules of SEC for newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Except for the remediation measures described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the
evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2020 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or internal
control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and implemented, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there
are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues within a company are detected. The inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and may not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Part lll

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance
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The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC, within
120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC, within
120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Securities Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC, within
120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC, within
120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC, within
120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements are listed in the “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements” under Part Il, Item 8, of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not required or are not applicable, or the required information is shown in our
consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
Incorporated by Reference Filed or
e T - . - Furnished
Exhibit Exhibit Title Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
Number
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation 10-Q 001-39058 3.1 November 6,
2019
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws 8-K 001-39058 3.1 April 27, 2020
4.1 Form of Class A common stock certificate S-1/A 333-233482 41 September 10,
2019
4.2 Fourth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement S-1 333-233482 4.2 August 27, 2019
by and between the Registrant and certain security holders of
the Registrant, dated April 5, 2019
4.3 Description of Class A Common Stock Registered Under X
Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000163982519000018/exhibit31restatedcertifi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000163982520000054/amendedandrestatedbyla.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000119312519242158/d738839dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000119312519230923/d738839dex42.htm

10.1

10.2t
10.3t

10.41
10.5%
10.61
10.7%

10.8t
10.9t

10.10

10.11

10.12

211
23.1

241

31.1

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between Peloton
and each of its directors and executive officers.

2015 Stock Plan and forms of award agreements thereunder

2019 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of award agreements
thereunder

2019 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and form of
subscription agreement thereunder

Offer Letter by and between John Foley and the Registrant,
dated September 9, 2019

Offer Letter by and between William Lynch and the
Registrant, dated January 28, 2017

Offer Letter by and between Jill Woodworth and the
Registrant, dated December 8, 2017

Offer Letter by and between Thomas Cortese and the
Registrant, dated February 6, 2017

Severance and Change in Control Plan and form of
participation agreement thereunder
Agreement of Lease by and between the Registrant and

Maple West 25th Owner, LLC, dated November 11, 2015, as
amended.

Agreement of Lease by and between the Registrant and CBP
441 Ninth Avenue Owner LLC, dated November 16, 2018.

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and

between the Registrant and the Lenders party thereto, JP
Morgan Chase Bank, Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank
PLC, Goldman Sachs Lending Partners LLC, and Silicon

Valley Bank, dated June 20, 2019.

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Ernst & Young_ LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm

Power of Attorney (reference is made to the signature page
hereto)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules
13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a)_under the Exchange Act, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.
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S-1
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211

August 27, 2019

August 27, 2019

September 10,
2019

September 26,
2019

September 10,
2019

September 10,
2019

September 10,
2019

September 10,
2019
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000119312519230923/d738839dex101.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000119312519230923/d738839dex102.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1639825/000119312519242158/d738839dex103.htm
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31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules X
13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a)_.under the Exchange Act, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 X
U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 X
U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document X
does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL
tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. X

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase X
Document.

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase X
Document.

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. X

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase X
Document.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in iXBRL and X

contained in Exhibit 101)

1 Indicates a management or compensatory plan or arrangement in which directors or executive officers are eligible to participate.

* The certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are not deemed “filed” for
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall they be deemed incorporated by reference into any
filing under the Securities Act of the Exchange Act.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.

Date: September 10, 2020 By: /s/ John Foley

John Foley
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints John Foley, Jill
Woodworth, and Allen Klingsick and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, proxies, and agents, each with full power of substitution, for
him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact, proxies, and agents full power
and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully for all intents and
purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact, proxies, and agents, or their or his or her substitute
or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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Signature

By: /s/ John Foley
John Foley

By: /s/ Jill Woodworth
Jill Woodworth

By: /s/ Allen Klingsick
Allen Klingsick

By: /s/ Erik Blachford

Erik Blachford

By: /s/ Karen Boone

Karen Boone

By: /s/ Jon Callaghan

Jon Callaghan

By: /s/ Howard Draft

Howard Draft

By: /sl Jay Hoag

Jay Hoag

By: /s/ William Lynch

William Lynch

By: /s/ Pamela Thomas-Graham

Pamela Thomas-Graham

Title

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive

Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020

September 10, 2020



EXHIBIT 4.3

DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT’S SECURITIES
REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

As of June 30, 2020, Peloton Interactive, Inc., or “we,” “us,” and “our,” had one class of securities registered under Section 12 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended: our Class A common stock.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary of the terms of our capital stock is based upon our restated certificate of incorporation, our amended and restated
bylaws, and applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL. This summary is not complete, and is qualified by
reference to our restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws, which are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference herein. We encourage you to read our restated certificate of incorporation, our amended
and restated bylaws and the applicable provisions of the DGCL for additional information.

Capitalization

Our authorized capital stock consists of 2,500,000,000 shares of our Class A common stock, $0.000025 par value per share, 2,500,000,000
shares of our Class B common stock, $0.000025 par value per share, and 50,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock, $0.000025
par value per share.

Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

Dividend Rights

Subject to preferences that may apply to any shares of preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of our common stock are entitled
to receive dividends out of funds legally available if our board of directors, in its discretion, determines to issue dividends and then only at the
times and in the amounts that our board of directors may determine.

Voting Rights

Holders of our Class A common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Class A common stock held on all matters submitted to a
vote of stockholders and holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to 20 votes for each share of Class B common stock held on all
matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Holders of shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a
single class on all matters (including the election of directors) submitted to a vote of stockholders, unless otherwise required by Delaware law
or our restated certificate of incorporation. Delaware law could require either holders of our Class A common stock or Class B common stock
to vote separately as a single class in the following circumstances:

+ if we were to seek to amend our restated certificate of incorporation to increase or decrease the par value of a class of our capital
stock, then that class would be required to vote separately to approve the proposed amendment; and



* if we were to seek to amend our restated certificate of incorporation in a manner that alters or changes the powers, preferences, or
special rights of a class of our capital stock in a manner that affected its holders adversely, then that class would be required to vote
separately to approve the proposed amendment.

Our restated certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting for the election of directors. As a result, the holders of a
majority of our voting shares can elect all of the directors then standing for election. Our restated certificate of incorporation establishes a
classified board of directors, to be divided into three classes with staggered three-year terms. Only one class of directors will be elected at
each annual meeting of our stockholders, with the other classes continuing for the remainder of their respective three-year terms.

No Preemptive or Similar Rights
Our common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights and is not subject to redemption or sinking fund provisions.
Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

Upon our liquidation, dissolution, or winding up, the assets legally available for distribution to our stockholders would be distributable ratably
among the holders of our common stock and any participating preferred stock outstanding at that time, subject to the prior satisfaction of all
outstanding debt and liabilities and the preferential rights of and the payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any shares of preferred
stock outstanding at that time.

Change of Control Transactions

In the case of any distribution or payment in respect of the shares of our Class A common stock or Class B common stock upon a merger or
consolidation with or into any other entity, or other substantially similar transaction, the holders of our Class A common stock and Class B
common stock will be treated equally and identically with respect to shares of Class A common stock or Class B common stock owned by
them, unless the only difference in the per share distribution to the holders of the Class A common stock and Class B common stock is that
any securities distributed to the holder of a share Class B common stock have 20 times the voting power of any securities distributed to the
holder of a share of Class A common stock, or such merger, consolidation, or other transaction is approved by the affirmative vote of the
holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock, each voting as a separate class.

Subdivisions and Combinations

If we subdivide or combine in any manner outstanding shares of Class A common stock or Class B common stock, the outstanding shares of
the other class will be subdivided or combined in the same manner, unless different treatment of the shares of each class is approved by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock, each voting as a
separate class.

Conversion

Each outstanding share of Class B common stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holder into one share of Class A common
stock. In addition, each share of Class B common stock will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock upon any transfer,
whether or not for value, except for certain permitted transfers described in our restated certificate of incorporation, including transfers to



family members, trusts solely for the benefit of the stockholder or their family members, and partnerships, corporations, and other entities
exclusively owned by the stockholder or their family members. Once converted or transferred and converted into Class A common stock, the
Class B common stock may not be reissued.

All the outstanding shares of our Class B common stock will convert automatically into shares of our Class A common stock upon the date
that is the earlier of (i) the date specified by a vote of the holders of 66 2/3% of the then outstanding shares of Class B common stock, (i) ten
years from the closing of our initial public offering, and (iii) the date the shares of Class B common stock cease to represent at least 1% of all
outstanding shares of our common stock. Following such conversion, each share of Class A common stock will have one vote per share and
the rights of the holders of all outstanding common stock will be identical. Once converted into Class A common stock, the Class B common
stock may not be reissued.

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by Delaware law, to issue preferred stock in one or more series, to
establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series, and to fix the designation, powers, preferences, and rights of
the shares of each series and any of its qualifications, limitations, or restrictions, in each case without further vote or action by our
stockholders. Our board of directors can also increase or decrease the number of shares of any series of preferred stock, but not below the
number of shares of that series then outstanding, without any further vote or action by our stockholders. Our board of directors may authorize
the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of
our common stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate
purposes, could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control of our company and might
adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of our Class A common stock
and Class B common stock.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

The provisions of Delaware law, our restated certificate of incorporation, and our amended and restated bylaws could have the effect of
delaying, deferring, or discouraging another person from acquiring control of our company. These provisions, which are summarized below,
may have the effect of discouraging takeover bids.

Delaware Law

We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL regulating corporate takeovers. In general, DGCL Section 203 prohibits a
publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years
following the date on which the person became an interested stockholder unless:

» prior to the date of the transaction, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the
transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

« the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction
commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the voting stock outstanding, but not the outstanding voting stock owned by the
interested stockholder, (1) shares



owned by persons who are directors and also officers and (2) shares owned by employee stock plans in which employee participants
do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange
offer; or

« ator subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combination is approved by the board of directors of the corporation and
authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of
the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Generally, a “business combination” includes a merger, asset or stock sale, or other transaction or series of transactions together resulting in
a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. An “interested stockholder” is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns or,
within three years prior to the determination of interested stockholder status, did own 15% or more of a corporation’s outstanding voting
stock. We expect the existence of this provision to have an anti-takeover effect with respect to transactions our board of directors does not
approve in advance. We also anticipate that DGCL Section 203 may also discourage attempts that might result in a premium over the market
price for the shares of common stock held by stockholders.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaw Provisions

Our restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws include a number of provisions that could deter hostile
takeovers or delay or prevent changes in control of our management team, including the following:

Dual Class Common Stock. Our restated certificate of incorporation provides for a dual class common stock structure pursuant to which
holders of our Class B common stock have the ability to control the outcome of matters requiring stockholder approval, even if they own
significantly less than a majority of the shares of our outstanding Class A and Class B common stock, including the election of directors and
significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets. Holders of Class B common stock, including
investors, executives, and employees, have the ability to exercise significant influence over those matters.

Board of Directors Vacancies. Our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws authorize only our board of
directors to fill vacant directorships, including newly created seats. In addition, the number of directors constituting our board of directors is
permitted to be set only by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of our entire board of directors. These provisions prevent a stockholder
from increasing the size of our board of directors and then gaining control of our board of directors by filling the resulting vacancies with its
own nominees. This makes it more difficult to change the composition of our board of directors but promotes continuity of management.

Classified Board. Our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that our board of directors is classified
into three classes of directors. The existence of a classified board of directors could discourage a third-party from making a tender offer or
otherwise attempting to obtain control of us as it is more difficult and time consuming for stockholders to replace a majority of the directors on
a classified board of directors.

Directors Removed Only for Cause. Our restated certificate of incorporation provides that stockholders may remove directors only for cause.

Supermajority Requirements for Amendments of Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws. Our restated
certificate of incorporation further provides that the affirmative vote



of holders of at least 66 2/3% of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of voting stock are required to amend certain
provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation, including provisions relating to the classified board, the size of the board, removal of
directors, special meetings, actions by written consent, and designation of our preferred stock. In addition, the affirmative vote of holders of
75% of the voting power of each of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, voting separately by class, are required to amend
the provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation relating to the terms of our Class B common stock. The affirmative vote of holders of
at least 66 2/3% of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of voting stock are required to amend or repeal our amended and
restated bylaws, although our amended and restated bylaws may be amended by a simple majority vote of our board of directors.

Stockholder Action; Special Meeting of Stockholders. Our restated certificate of incorporation provides that special meetings of our
stockholders may be called only by a majority of our board of directors, the chairman of our board of directors, our lead independent director,
or our chief executive officer. Our restated certificate of incorporation provides that our stockholders may not take action by written consent,
but may only take action at annual or special meetings of our stockholders. As a result, holders of our capital stock would not be able to
amend our amended and restated bylaws or remove directors without holding a meeting of our stockholders called in accordance with our
amended and restated bylaws. Further, our amended and restated bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders may be called
only by a majority of our board of directors, the chairman of our board of directors, our lead independent director, or our chief executive
officer, thus prohibiting a stockholder from calling a special meeting. These provisions might delay the ability of our stockholders to force
consideration of a proposal or for stockholders to take any action, including the removal of directors.

Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals and Director Nominations. Our amended and restated bylaws provide advance
notice procedures for stockholders seeking to bring business before our annual meeting of stockholders or to nominate candidates for
election as directors at our annual meeting of stockholders. Our amended and restated bylaws also specify certain requirements regarding
the form and content of a stockholder’s notice. These provisions might preclude our stockholders from bringing matters before our annual
meeting of stockholders or from making nominations for directors at our annual meeting of stockholders if the proper procedures are not
followed. We expect that these provisions might also discourage or deter a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect
the acquirer’s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of our company.

No Cumulative Voting. The DGCL provides that stockholders are not entitled to the right to cumulate votes in the election of directors unless
a corporation’s certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Our restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws do
not provide for cumulative voting.

Issuance of Undesignated Preferred Stock. Our board of directors has the authority, without further action by the stockholders, to issue up to
50,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock with rights and preferences, including voting rights, designated from time to time by our
board of directors. The existence of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock enables our board of directors to render more difficult
or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest, or other means.

Choice of Forum. Our restated certificate of incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware is the exclusive forum for: any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, any action asserting a breach of
fiduciary duty, any action asserting



a claim against us arising pursuant to the DGCL, our restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws, or any action
asserting a claim against us that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine. Our amended and restated bylaws also provide that the federal
district courts of the United States of America, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint
asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act, or the Federal Forum Provision. While there can be no assurance that federal or
state courts will follow the holding of the Delaware Supreme Court which recently found that such provisions are facially valid under Delaware
law or determine that the Federal Forum Provision should be enforced in a particular case, application of the Federal Forum Provision means
that suits brought by our stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act must be brought in federal court and
cannot be brought in state court. Section 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, creates exclusive
federal jurisdiction over all claims brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations thereunder.
In addition, neither the exclusive forum provision nor the Federal Forum Provision applies to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability
created by the Exchange Act. Accordingly, actions by our stockholders to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the
rules and regulations thereunder also must be brought in federal court. Our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance
with the federal securities laws and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or
holding any interest in any of our securities shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to our exclusive forum provisions, including the
Federal Forum Provision. These provisions may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum of their choosing for disputes
with us or our directors, officers, or other employees, which may discourage lawsuits against us and our directors, officers, and other
employees.

Exchange Listing
Our Class A common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “PTON.”

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our Class A common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC.
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February 6, 2017

Thomas P. Cortese
Dear Tom:

Peloton Interactive, Inc. (together with its successors and assigns, the "Company") is pleased to offer you continued
employment on the terms set forth in this letter agreement (the "Agreement"), which supersedes and replaces any existing agreements,
whether written or oral, with respect to the matters set forth herein:

1. Position. Your title will be Chief Operating Officer, and you will report to the Company's President as determined by the
Company. This is a full-time position. While you render services to the Company, you will not engage in any other employment, consulting
or other business activity (whether full-time or part-time) that would create a conflict of interest with the Company. By signing this
Agreement, you confirm to the Company that you have no contractual commitments or other legal obligations that would prohibit you from
performing your duties for the Company.

2. Cash Compensation. The Company will pay you a starting salary at the rate of $400,000 per year, payable in accordance
with the Company's standard payroll schedule. This salary will be subject to adjustment pursuant to the Company's employee
compensation policies in effect from time to time. You will also be eligible for an annual bonus (the "Annual Bonus") with a target of 50% of
your base salary ("Target Bonus"). The actual Annual Bonus payout will be based on achievement of performance goals to be determined
by the Company's Board of Directors (the "Board") or its Compensation Committee and may be higher or lower than the Target Bonus. The
actual Annual Bonus payout may be higher or lower than the Target Bonus. The Annual Bonus, if any, will be payable within 2% months
following the end of the Company's fiscal year (currently February 28) to which it relates. The Annual Bonus, if any, will be payable following
the end of the fiscal year to which it relates. Except as set forth below, the Annual Bonus will be payable only if you remain employed by the
Company on the date of payment.

3. Employee Benefits. As a regular employee of the Company, you will be eligible to participate in a number of Company-
sponsored benefits. In addition, you will be entitled to paid vacation in accordance with the Company's vacation policy, as in effect from time
to time.

4. Equity.

(a) As of the date of this Agreement, you hold shares of the Company's common stock (the "Common Stock") and options to
purchase Common Stock as follows:
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(i) 494,263 shares of Common Stock, all of which are fully vested.

(ii) An incentive stock option ("Option 1") under the Company's 2015 Stock Plan (the "Plan") to purchase 156,384
shares of Common Stock pursuant to a Stock Option Agreement (with Notice of Stock Option Grant) dated July 13, 2015 ("Option
Agreement 1"). 25% of the shares subject to Option 1 vested on September 30, 2014, with the balance vesting in equal monthly
installments over the next 36 months of continuous service thereafter, as described in Option Agreement 1.

(iii) An incentive stock option ("Option 2") under the Plan to purchase 203,000 shares of Common Stock pursuant to a
Stock Option Agreement (with Notice of Stock Option Grant) dated July 13, 2015 ("Option Agreement 2"). 25% of the shares subject to
Option 2 vested on March 30, 2016, with the balance vesting in equal monthly installments over the next 36 months of continuous service
thereafter, as described in Option Agreement 2.

(iv) An incentive stock option ("Option 3") under the Plan to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock pursuant to a
Stock Option Agreement (with Notice of Stock Option Grant) dated April 20, 2016 ("Option Agreement 3"). 1/48th of the shares subject to
Option 3 vest upon the completion of each month of continuous service after January 1, 2016, as described in Option Agreement 3.

(b) Subject to the approval by the Board or its Compensation Committee, Option Agreement 1, Option Agreement 2 and
Option Agreement 3 will be amended such that if your employment is terminated without Cause (as defined below) or if you resign for Good
Reason (as defined below), 100% of the shares subject to Option 1, Option 2 and Option 3 will be deemed vested (the "Option
Acceleration").

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause” is defined as any of the following: (i) any act or omission that constitutes a
material breach by you of your obligations under this Agreement or any other agreement between you and the Company; (ii) your failure or
refusal to perform the lawful duties required of you as an employee of the Company to the reasonable satisfaction of the Company; (iii) any
material violation by you of any (x) written policy, rule or regulation of the Company or (y) any law or regulation applicable to the business
of the Company; (iv) your act or omission constituting fraud, dishonesty, breach of fiduciary duty, gross negligence, willful misconduct or
intentional misrepresentation in relation to your duties to the Company, or any of its respective customers, suppliers or other material
business relations; or (v) your conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any crime which constitutes a felony or crime of moral
turpitude.

(d) For purposes of this Agreement, "Good Reason” is defined as any of the following occurring without your prior written
consent: (i) relocation of your principal place of business by more than SO miles, (ii) a significant diminution of job function, including a
demotion that changes your title to anything other than a C-level executive position, or (iii) a
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significant decrease in base salary compensation or your Target Bonus opportunity as a percentage of your base salary; provided, in each
case, that you provide notice of such circumstances to the Company's Chief Executive Officer (or principal executive officer, regardless of
title) within 90 days of such circumstances' occurrence, the Company fails to cure such circumstances within 30.days of receipt of such
notice and you resign within 180 days of such circumstances coming into existence.

5. Termination Without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason.

(@)  If your employment with the Company is terminated by the Company without Cause, or in the event of your resignation for
Good Reason, then, subject to the conditions set forth in this Section S, you will become eligible to receive (i) severance pay in an
aggregate amount equal to twelve (12) months of your base salary, to be paid in equal installments at your then base salary rate
(determined without regard to any reduction giving rise to your right to resign for Good Reason) in accordance with the Company's regular
payroll cycle for 12 months following the date of your termination of employment, and (ii) the Option Acceleration (together, "Severance
Pay"). The salary continuation payments in (i) above will commence within 60 days after your termination date and, once they commence,
will include any unpaid amounts accrued from the termination date; provided that, if the 60 day-period described in the preceding clause
spans two calendar years, then the payments will in any event begin in the second calendar year.

(b)  Except as set forth herein, the Severance Pay does not entitle you to any ongoing benefits from the Company and you will
not be an employee of the Company for any purpose during any period that you are receiving Severance Pay. In order to receive
Severance Pay, you must: (i) sign and deliver to the Company a full general release of all claims prepared by the Company (the "General
Release"), and any revocation period, if any, applicable to the General Release must have expired, each within the time period specified by
the Company, (ii) cooperate with the orderly transfer of your duties as requested by the Company and; (iii) return all Company property by a
date specified by the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, upon any termination of your employment you shall be entitled to payment of
your base salary through your termination date, payment of any accrued but unused vacation days (if required by law and only to the extent
you have any vacation days accrued in accordance with the Company's then-current vacation policy), reimbursement of any unreimbursed
business expenses, and any vested benefits or entittements pursuant to any applicable Company plan, policy or other agreement. All
Severance Pay or other post-termination compensation is, in each case, subject to required withholding.

6. Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement. At all times in the future, you will remain bound by your Proprietary
Information and Inventions Agreement (Technical Employees) with the Company, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and which
you are executing at the same time as this Agreement (the "PIIA").
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7. Employment Relationship. Employment with the Company is for no specific period of time. Your employment with the
Company will be "at will," meaning that either you or the Company may terminate your employment at any time and for any reason, with or
without cause. Any contrary representations that may have been made to you are superseded by this Agreement. This is the full and
complete agreement between you and the Company on this term. The "at will" nature of your employment may only be changed in an
express written agreement signed by you and a duly authorized officer of the Company (other than you).

8. Tax Matters.

(a) Withholding. All forms of compensation referred to in this Agreement are subject to reduction to reflect applicable
withholding and payroll taxes and other deductions required by law.

(b) Tax Advice. You are encouraged to obtain your own tax advice regarding your compensation from the Company. You
agree that the Company does not have a duty to design its compensation policies in a manner that minimizes your tax liabilities, and you
will not make any claim against the Company or the Board related to tax liabilities arising from your compensation.

(c) Section 409A. It is the intent of the parties that this Agreement is interpreted such that it is either exempt from or complies
with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") in a manner which does not impose any additional
taxes, interest or penalties on you pursuant to Section 409A of the Code and its implementing notices and regulations and it shall be
interpreted consistent with this intent. Each salary continuation payment under Section S is hereby designated as a separate payment.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, any payment or benefit described herein which represents a "deferral
of compensation" within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code shall only be paid or provided to you if you have incurred a "separation
from service" in accordance with Section 409A of the Code. If the Company determines that you are a "specified employee" under Section
409A{a)(2){B)(i) of the Code at the time of your Separation, then (i) the salary continuation payments under Section S, to the extent that
they are subject to Section 409A of the Code, will commence on the first business day following
(x) expiration of the six-month period measured from your "separation from service" date or
(y) the date of your death and (ii) the installments that otherwise would have been paid prior to such date will be paid in a lump sum
when the salary continuation payments commence.

9. Interpretation, Amendment and Enforcement. This Agreement and the PIIA constitute the complete agreement between
you and the Company, contain all of the terms of your employment with the Company and supersede any prior agreements,
representations or understandings (whether written, oral or implied) between you and the Company. This Agreement may not be amended
or modified, except by an express written agreement signed by both you and a duly authorized officer of the Company. The terms of this
Agreement and the
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resolution of any disputes as to the meaning, effect, performance or validity of this Agreement or arising out of, related to, or in any way
connected with, this Agreement, your employment with the Company or any other relationship between you and the Company {the
"Disputes") will be governed by New York law, excluding laws relating to conflicts or choice of law. You and the Company submit to the
exclusive personal jurisdiction of the federal and state courts located in New York in connection with any Dispute or any claim related to any
Dispute. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and you and your respective successors and
assigns.

* Kk ok Kk

You may indicate your agreement with these terms by signing and dating the enclosed duplicate original of this Agreement
and returning it to me.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE
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If you have any questions, please feel free to reach out.

Kind Regards,

PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.

Vo Dl
By{ / John Foley /j |

Title: Chief Executive Officer

| have read and accept this employment offer:

Signature of Employée

Dated: February 7, 2017

ATTACHMENTS:

Exhibit A Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement (Technical Employees)



PELOTON INTERACTIVE, INC.

SEVERANCE AND CHANGE IN CONTROL PLAN

SECTION 1
PURPOSE

The Board of Peloton Interactive, Inc., a Delaware corporation (together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), considers it in the
best interests of the stockholders of the Company to reinforce the continued attention and dedication of certain key employees of the
Company to their duties of employment without personal distraction or conflict of interest, including as a result of the possibility or occurrence
of a change in control of the Company. Accordingly, the Company will provide designated individuals with rights to receive severance
payments and other benefits upon a Covered Termination pursuant to this Severance and Change in Control Plan (this “Plan”), as set forth
below.

SECTION 2
ELIGIBILITY

2.1. Eligibility for Participation. The Board may select from among Eligible Employees to participate in the Plan. Each such individual will
become a Participant upon his or her execution and delivery to the Company of an acknowledgement of participation in the form attached
hereto, as Exhibit A (as such form may be amended or modified by the Board, a “Participation Agreement’).

2.2. Termination of Participation. An individual shall cease to be a Participant on the date that such individual terminates service with the
Company or otherwise ceases to qualify as an Eligible Employee for any reason, in each case other than in connection with a Covered
Termination.

SECTION 3
SEVERANCE PAYMENTS AND BENEFITS

3.1. Covered Termination outside the Change in Control Period. If any Participant experiences a Covered Termination other than during a
Change in Control Period, the Participant shall be entitled to receive his or her Accrued Benefits and, subject to the requirements of
Section 3.3, the following payments and benefits:

(a) Cash Severance. An amount equal to the sum of (i) the product of (A) the Participant's Severance Multiplier multiplied by (B)
the Participant’s Base Salary, (ii) any annual bonus that has been earned for the Company’s prior fiscal year, but not yet paid, and (iii) the
product of (A) the Participant’s target annual cash bonus (assuming achievement of performance goals at 100% of target) for the fiscal year
in which the Covered Termination occurs multiplied by (B) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days in the calendar year of the
Covered Termination during which the Participant was employed by the Company and the denominator of which is 365, payable in 12
monthly installments, less applicable withholdings, as soon as administratively practicable following the date the Release (defined below) is
not subject to revocation and, in any event, within 60 days following the date of the Covered Termination.

(b) Continued Healthcare Coverage. If the Participant elects to receive continued healthcare coverage pursuant to the
provisions of COBRA, the Company shall continue the Participant’s coverage and directly pay, or reimburse the Participant for, the premium
for the Participant and the Participant’s covered dependents through the earlier of (i) the number of months following the Participant’s
Covered Termination equal to the Participant's COBRA Severance Period and (ii) the date that the Participant and the Participant’s covered
dependents become eligible for coverage under another employer’s plans (the



“Continuation Period’); provided, that as soon as administratively practicable following the date the Release becomes effective, the
Company shall pay to the Participant a cash lump-sum payment equal to the monthly premiums that would have been paid on behalf of the
Participant had such payments commenced on the date of the Covered Termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may elect
at any time during the Continuation Period that, in lieu of paying or reimbursing the premiums, the Company shall instead provide the
Participant with a monthly cash payment equal to the amount the Company would have otherwise paid pursuant to this Section 3.1(b), less
applicable tax withholdings.

(c) Equity Awards. Each outstanding and unvested Equity Award held by the Participant shall automatically become vested, and
if applicable, exercisable and any forfeiture restrictions or rights of repurchase thereon shall lapse (i) with respect to the number of shares as
would have been vested if the Participant had completed an additional twelve months of service for Tier 1 Participants and (ii) with respect to
such number of shares as would have become vested if the Participant had completed an additional six months of service for Tier 2
Participants (with a minimum of six months of vesting if the Tier 2 Participant would otherwise receive no vesting as a result of a vesting cliff);
provided that in each case any performance-based vesting criteria shall be treated in accordance with the applicable award agreement or
other applicable equity incentive plan governing the terms of such equity award. Each stock option held by the Participant shall remain
exercisable until the earlier of the original expiration date for such stock option as set forth in the applicable award agreement or the 12-
month anniversary of the Participant's Covered Termination, and shall otherwise remain subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable
award agreement.

3.2. Covered Termination within the Change in Control Period. If any Participant experiences a Covered Termination during a Change in
Control Period, then in lieu of the payments provided in Section 3.1 hereof, the Participant shall be entitled to receive his or her Accrued
Benefits and, subject to the requirements of Section 3.3, the following payments and benefits:

(a) Cash Severance. An amount equal to the sum of (i) the product of (A) the Participant’s CIC Severance Multiplier multiplied
by (B) the Participant’'s Base Salary, (ii) any annual bonus that has been earned for the Company’s prior fiscal year, but not yet paid, and (iii)
the Participant’s target annual cash bonus (assuming achievement of performance goals at 100% of target) for the fiscal year in which the
Covered Termination occurs; provided that in clauses (i) and (iii), such amounts shall be calculated at the rate equal to the higher of (x) the
rate in effect immediately prior to the Participant’s Covered Termination and (y) the rate in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control.
The foregoing amounts shall be payable in a cash lump-sum, less applicable withholdings, as soon as administratively practicable following
the date the Release becomes effective and in any event, within 60 days following the date of the Covered Termination.

(b) Continued Healthcare Coverage. If the Participant elects to receive continued healthcare coverage pursuant to the
provisions of COBRA, the Company shall continue a Participant’s benefit plan coverage and directly pay, or reimburse the Participant for, the
premium for the Participant and the Participant’'s covered dependents through the earlier of (i) the number of months following the
Participant’'s Covered Termination, equal to the Participant's CIC COBRA Period and (ii) provided that as soon as administratively practicable
following the date the Release becomes effective, the Company shall pay to the Participant a cash lump-sum payment equal to the monthly
premiums that would have been paid on behalf of the Participant had such payments commenced on the date of the Covered Termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may elect at any time during the Continuation Period that, in lieu of paying or reimbursing the
premiums, the Company shall instead provide the Participant with a monthly cash payment equal to the amount the Company would have
otherwise paid pursuant to this Section 3.1(b), less applicable tax withholdings.



(c) Equity Awards. Each outstanding and unvested Equity Award held by the Participant shall automatically become vested, and
if applicable, exercisable and any forfeiture restrictions or rights of repurchase thereon shall lapse, in each case with respect to (i) 100% of
the shares underlying his or her outstanding Equity Awards as of the date of the Covered Termination for Tier 1 Participant and (ii) 50% of the
shares underlying his or her outstanding Equity Awards as of the date of the Covered Termination for Tier 2 Participants; provided that any, in
either case, performance-based vesting criteria shall be treated in accordance with the applicable award agreement or other applicable
equity incentive plan governing the terms of such equity award. Each stock option held by the Participant shall remain exercisable until the
earlier of the original expiration date for such stock option as set forth in the applicable award agreement or the 12-month anniversary of the
Participant's Covered Termination, and shall otherwise remain subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable award agreement. Any
award that is not assumed or substituted for following a Change in Control shall accelerate in full.

3.3. Release. No Participant will be eligible for the severance payment and benefits described in Section 3.1 or Section 3.2, as
applicable, unless the Participant has executed a general release of all claims that the Participant may have against the Company (or its
successor) or entities or persons affiliated with the Company (or its successor), in the form prescribed and to be provided to the Participant
by the Company (or its successor) (the “Release”), and such Release becomes effective on or before the 60t day following date of the
Covered Termination. If the Participant fails to return the Release on or before such deadline, or if the Participant revokes the Release, then
the Participant will not be entitled to any severance payments or benefits described in Section 3.1 or Section 3.2, as applicable.

3.4. Section 280G;_Limitation on Payments. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, if any payment or distribution to a
Participant pursuant to this Plan or otherwise (“Payment’) would (i) constitute a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of
the Code and (ii) but for this sentence, be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then such
Payment shall either be (A) delivered in full or (B) delivered as to such lesser extent as would result in no portion of such Payment being
subject to the Excise Tax, whichever of the foregoing amounts, after taking into account the applicable federal, state and local income taxes
and the Excise Tax, results in the receipt by the Participant on an after-tax basis of the largest payment, notwithstanding that all or some
portion of the Payment may be taxable under Section 4999 of the Code. The accounting firm engaged by the Company for general audit
purposes as of the date prior to the effective date of the Change in Control, or such other person or entity as determined in good faith by the
Company, shall perform the foregoing calculations and the Company shall bear all expenses with respect to the determinations by such
accounting firm required to be made hereunder. Any good faith determinations of the accounting firm made pursuant to this Section 3.4 shall
be final, binding and conclusive upon all parties. Any reduction in payments and/or benefits pursuant to the foregoing shall be made in
accordance with Section 409A of the Code in the following order (1) Payments that do not constitute “nonqualified compensation” subject to
Section 409A of the Code shall be reduced first; and (2) all other Payments shall then be reduced as follows: (a) reduction of cash payments;
(b) cancellation of accelerated vesting of equity awards other than stock options, if any; (c) cancellation of accelerated vesting of stock
options, and (d) reduction of other benefits payable to the Participant.

SECTION 4
ADMINISTRATION

4.1 Administration; Duties and Power